
 
 
 
 
 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL
 

Wednesday, November 27, 2019, 5:30 p.m.

Council Chambers, 2nd Floor, City Hall

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. MOTION TO GO INTO THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

a. City of Moose Jaw 2020 Budgets, CC-2019-0236

b. Solid Waste Utility – Material Crushing and Recycling, CC-2019-0241, CC-2019-0241

c. Urban Forestry Program, CC-2019-0228

d. Economic Development Initiatives, CC-2019-0242

e. Parks and Recreation Department Capital Budget Shortfall, CC-2019-0243

f. Slumping Strategy, CC-2019-0251, CC-2019-0251

g. WW16 BPWTP Transmission Line - Phase II Fluoridation System and Northeast Reservoir
Influent, CC-2019-0250, CC-2019-0250

h. 2020 Investment Portfolio Drawdown, CC-2019-0245

i. Referred Matter: Moose Jaw Board of Police Commissioners & Moose Jaw Police Service
2020 Budget Submission, CC-2019-0234

j. Referred Matter: Moose Jaw Public Library 2020 Operating Budget Estimates, CC-2019-0221

k. Referred Matter: Third-Party Funding Group Presentations, CC-2019-0248

l. Referred Matter: Options for the Introduction of an Infrastructure Levy, EC-2019-0141

m. Referred Matter: Recycling Collection Contract Renewal, CC-2019-0154

3. ADOPTION OF THE REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

4. ADJOURNMENT

The next Special Meeting of City Council is scheduled for December 4, 2019.



 

 

 
 

COMMUNICATION # CC-2019-0236 
 

TITLE:  City of Moose Jaw 2020 Budgets 

 

TO:  City Council 

 

FROM:  City Manager 

 

DATE:  November 12, 2019 

 

PUBLIC:  PUBLIC DOCUMENT    

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. THAT the 2020 Operating Budget be approved; and 

 

THAT the 2020 – 2024 Capital and Equipment Reserve Budgets be approved; and 

 

THAT City Administration be authorized to tender and award the Capital and 

Equipment purchases set forth in year 2020 of the 2020 – 2024 Capital and Equipment 

Reserve Budgets subject to the limitations set forth in: 

 

a) The City’s Purchasing Policy; and 

b) The City Administration Bylaw; and 

 

THAT a mill rate increase of 2.02% which will generate an additional $595,289 for the 

City’s Operating and Capital Budgets be approved; and further 

 

THAT 1% of the mill rate increase be directed to the General Capital Reserve portion 

of the Capital Budget for funding of Parks, Recreational and Facilities capital projects 

on an ongoing basis. 

 

2. THAT an additional $1.3 million in land development proceeds be allocated to the 

General Capital Reserve portion of the Capital Budget in 2020. 

 

3. THAT Waterworks Utility rates be increased 6% effective February 1, 2020. 

 

4. THAT Sanitary Sewer Utility rates be increased 5% effective February 1, 2020. 

 

5. THAT Capital Project WW-9 Feeder Lines be designated as the City of Moose Jaw’s 

2020 Municipal Gas Tax Funded program. 

 

 

City of  

Moose Jaw 
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TOPIC AND PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this report is to present City Council with the Operating, Capital and 

Equipment Reserve Budgets for 2020.  

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Annually the City of Moose Jaw develops an Operating and Capital Budget as required 

by The Cities Act.  The section of the Act reads as follows: 

 

 “Adoption of budget 

128(1)  A council shall adopt an operating and capital budget for each 

financial year. 

  

      (2) No council shall pass a property tax bylaw with respect to a financial 

year unless it has adopted the operating and capital budget for that 

year.” 

 

The contents of the Capital Budget are outlined in the Act under Section 130 as follows: 

 

 “A capital budget is required to include the estimated amount of each of the 

following for a financial year: 

(a) the amount needed to acquire, construct, remove or improve 

capital property; 

(b) the anticipated sources and amounts of money to pay the costs 

described in clause (a).” 

 

The Cities Act requires the preparation of only a one-year Capital Plan; however, it has 

been the City of Moose Jaw’s practice to prepare a five-year plan.  

 

Also included with this year’s budgets is the Equipment Reserve Budget which provides 

for necessary equipment replacement and establishes equipment contributions and 

rental rates. 

 

The City of Moose Jaw utilizes a planning framework that encompasses Strategic 

Planning, Planning Session consultations and referrals or tabling of matters to budget 

deliberations. City Administration gathers this framework of information, along with 

internal and external factors that influence the budget and create a call for estimates, 

which goes out to all City Departments.  

 

City Departments utilize this framework to develop their business plans and budget 

accordingly to be able to deliver that business plan. Budget development by 

Administration is guided by this framework as well as thoughtful consideration of the 

various factors that impact the budget being developed to deliver the business plan. 

  

City Administration does their best to balance service levels, expectations and 

affordability as the budget is developed.  City Council has the responsibility to amend 

the proposed budget as they deem appropriate and ultimately approve a budget for 

2020. 
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In addition, external factors impact the City’s budgets: 

 

 The Provincial Economy 

 Local Economic Activity 

 Financial Factors. 

 

A discussion of the various components that comprise the City of Moose Jaw 2020 Budget 

follows. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

General Operating Budget 

 

The General Operating Budget provides the funding for the City’s various programs and 

services. These include things like transit services, snow removal and recreational 

programs to name a few.   

 

The budget presented does not include any new initiatives, rather those will be presented 

to Council as part of the budget process and if approved, will then form part of the 

General Operating Budget. 
 

 
 

2020-2019

Gross Revenue 2019 Budget 2020 Budget INC(DCR) % Change

Budget

Municipal Taxation 27,897,391             28,067,000             169,609                  0.61

Other Levies 1,652,326               1,658,627               6,301                       0.38

Licenses and Permits 1,452,270               1,501,681               49,411                    3.40

Rents and Concessions 1,378,427               1,206,550               (171,877)                 (12.47)

Law Enforcement 1,307,099               1,377,599               70,500                    5.39

Interest and Tax Penalties 623,753                  628,526                  4,773                       0.77

Fines & Penalties 1,675,000               1,133,700               (541,300)                 (32.32)

Service Charges 145,051                  138,253                  (6,798)                     (4.69)

Parks & Recreation 1,627,359               2,337,959               710,600                  43.67

Federal Grants & Subsidies 110,467                  97,793                    (12,674)                   (11.47)

Provincial Grants & Subsidies 9,767,416               10,544,683             777,267                  7.96

Other Contributions 550,000                  550,000                  -                               0.00

Miscellaneous Revenues 325,488                  251,307                  (74,181)                   (22.79)

Gross Revenues 48,512,047 49,493,678 981,631                  2.02

2020 GROSS REVENUES

Municipal Taxation
56.71%

Other Levies
3.35%

Licenses and Permits
3.03%

Rents and Concessions
2.44%

Law Enforcement
2.78%Interest and Tax Penalties

1.27%

Fines & Penalties
2.29%

Service Charges
0.28%

Parks & Recreation
4.72%

Federal Grants & Subsidies
0.20%

Provincial Grants & Subsidies
21.31%

Other Contributions
1.11%

Miscellaneous Revenues
0.51%

REVENUES
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Municipal Taxation is the City’s largest single revenue source accounting for almost 57% 

of General Operating Budget revenues. The City of Moose Jaw has modest growth in tax 

revenues and continues to see commercial appeal losses. The table below illustrates the 

tax losses to date for 2019: 

 

 

 
 

 

The loss of commercial assessment appeals has been a steady trend since the last 

reassessment in 2013 with a total of $133,161,200 in lost commercial assessment due to 

appeals. This translates into a loss in revenue of $1,798,740 which loss has been borne by 

the commercial sector as a whole. It is also important to note that the City still has 28 

outstanding assessment appeals that are yet to be rendered. The table below provides 

additional detail: 

 

 

 
 

 

  

 

AGREEMENTS 

TO ADJUST

BOARD OF 

REVISION 

DECISIONS

MUNICIPAL 

Subclass

Change in 

Assessed Taxable 

Value

Change in 

Assessed 

Taxable Value

Loss in Tax 

Revenue

COMM (1,165,200) (22,762,780) ($320,780)

GOLF

RESI (816,000) ($5,787)

MRES (364,080) ($2,582)

CNDO (18,960) ($134)

NAIR

OAGR (3,130) ($8)

ELEV (6,023,590) ($74,068)

CRIR

RRPL

TOTAL (2,367,370) (28,786,370) ($403,359)

2019

Assessment Adjustment Type
Assessment 

Lost on Appeal

Lost Tax 

Revenue

Assessment 

Lost on 

Appeal

Lost Tax 

Revenue

Assessment 

Lost on 

Appeal

Lost Tax 

Revenue

Assessment 

Lost on 

Appeal

Lost Tax 

Revenue

Assessment 

Lost on 

Appeal

Lost Tax 

Revenue

Assessment 

Lost on 

Appeal

Lost Tax 

Revenue

Assessment 

Lost on 

Appeal

Lost Tax 

Revenue

Agreement to Adjust (10,707,200)      (152,475)$  (582,200)      (8,305)$     (3,853,600)  (49,061)$   (693,130)    (11,214)$  (6,733,170)   (85,101)$   (1,624,440)   ($19,635) (2,367,370)   ($24,132)
Agreement to Adjust (Federal) (616,700)      ($8,030)
Board of Revision (11,093,880)      (157,981)$  (17,129,000)  (244,329)$  (3,075,470)  (39,155)$   (3,874,400)  (62,684)$  (21,431,700) (270,877)$  (10,278,850) ($137,868) (28,786,370) ($379,227)
Sask Muni Board (7,080,420)        (100,828)$  (1,878,600)   (26,796)$   (1,060,200)  (13,498)$   (1,192,300)  (19,290)$  (148,400)      (1,876)$     1,046,200 $13,622

Totals (28,881,500)      (411,284)$  (19,589,800)  (279,430)$  (7,989,270)  (101,714)$  (5,759,830)  (93,188)$  (28,313,270) (357,854)$  (11,473,790) (151,911)$  (31,153,740) (403,359)$  

Total Lost Assessment : 2013-2019 (133,161,200)$  
Total Lost  Tax Revenue : 2013-2019 (1,798,740)$       

Note:  The values previously given for 2018 did not contain all of the BOR decisions for that year. SMB decision for 2017 and 2018 were received in 2019 and added to the chart.

2019

Historical Commerical Appeal Losses

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
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The continued loss of assessment and the resulting taxation in the commercial area has 

made the gap between residential and commercial taxes widen. In 2018, City Council 

took a first step in narrowing that gap by adopting the following motion:  

 

“THAT future Municipal Tax increases be split between residential and commercial 

based upon the ratio of taxable assessment in each class and that this split be 

accomplished by adjusting the appropriate mill rate factors for each class of 

property” 

 

The proposed adoption of a tax-sharing approach to future tax increases results in a 

gradual shift in the level of taxation on commercial properties to residential properties.  

 

The overall commercial to residential tax gap has slowly been decreasing from 2.25 in 

2017 to 2.19 in 2019 excluding changes to the Hospital Levy. This gradual reduction in the 

tax gap is a direct result of City Council’s policy decision as outlined above. Depending 

on the final mill rate increase, a further reduction in the tax gap of several basis points 

can be expected in 2020. 

 

City Administration will ask City Council to continue with this tax-sharing approach in 2020. 

 

Rents and Concessions revenue is down approximately $170,000 due to a reduction in 

farmland lease revenue and airport rent revenue. This reduction relates to the transfer of 

lease revenue to the airport authority and the sale of City land previously leased for 

farming purposes. 

 

Fines & Penalties revenue is down approximately $540,000. This reduction in revenue is 

related to automated speed enforcement revenues which are reduced due to SGI 

taking over paying for all of the costs and a provincial decision to share some of the 

excess with other municipalities. The City has an offsetting reduction in expenditures for 

this amount of decreased revenue so there is no direct impact on the City’s Operating 

Budget from these changes. The only change is the amount left available for contribution 

to the City’s Traffic Safety Reserve. 

 

Parks & Recreation revenues are up approximately $710,000. This is due to Yara Centre 

becoming part of the City and some increased revenues as a result of the 

implementation of a recreation season pass. 

 

Provincial Grants & Subsidies are up approximately $775,000 due primarily to an increase 

in Provincial Revenue Sharing funding to the City.  

 

Overall, revenues are up by 2.02% or $981,631 from the 2019 budget.  
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The Budget presented is a status quo budget and there are no new enhancements 

contained within the budget numbers. The increases in the various areas are the result of 

negotiated Collective Agreement increases, or provisions for same, and inflation. The 

cost of providing the same programs and services increases each year. 

 

The General Government area is seeing an increase in the costs to provide programs 

and services of approximately $300,000 or 3.55%. The increases are spread across a 

number of departments. An increase in City Clerks/Solicitor Department costs is a result 

of City memberships in organizations like SUMA and FCM being transferred to this 

Department from the Mayor & Councillors area. 

 

Information Technology is seeing increases of about $109,000 due to increased 

equipment reserve contributions and software maintenance costs. Human Resource 

Services costs are up approximately $43,000 due to primarily to increased education and 

training funding. This funding has been reallocated from other departments to provide 

for the Human Resource area to manage this spending in conjunction with succession 

training. Employer paid benefits have also increased approximately $49,000 due to 

increased contribution requirements for the Canada Pension Plan and increased pension 

contributions.  

 

2020-2019

Gross Expenditure 2019 Budget 2020 Budget INC(DCR) % Change

Budget

General Govt 8,444,198               8,744,108               299,910                  3.55

Fire Dept 6,149,303               6,886,759               737,456                  11.99

Police Services 11,116,746             11,507,162             390,416                  3.51

Other Protection 1,934,593               1,907,518               (27,075)                   (1.40)

Public Works 5,574,847               4,705,054               (869,793)                 (15.60)

Sanitation & Waste 451,124                  466,574                  15,450                    3.42

Social Services 237,157                  326,818                  89,661                    37.81

Parks & Recreation 6,026,093               6,222,555               196,462                  3.26

Art Museum 393,110                  388,402                  (4,708)                     (1.20)

Library 1,476,790               1,483,581               6,791                       0.46

Cultural Centre 376,942                  378,818                  1,876                       0.50

Fieldhouse -                               713,939                  713,939                  100.00

Mosaic Place 566,370                  526,347                  (40,023)                   (7.07)

Provisions/Misc/Debt 5,764,774               5,831,332               66,558                    1.15

Gross Expenditures 48,512,047 50,088,967 1,576,920               3.25

2020 GROSS EXPENDITURES

General Govt
17.46%

Fire Dept
13.75%

Police Services
22.97%Other Protection

3.81%
Public Works

9.39%

Sanitation & Waste
0.93%

Social Services
0.65%

Parks & Recreation
12.42%

Art Museum
0.78%

Library
2.96%

Cultural Centre
0.76%

Fieldhouse
1.43%

Mosaic Place
1.05% Provisions/Misc/Debt

11.64%

EXPENDITURES
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The Fire Service is seeing an increased request of $737,456 which relates primarily to the 

recent Collective Agreement and its incorporation into this budget area. Provision for this 

funding had been provided in the Provisions/Misc/Debt area in previous years. 

 

The Police Service expenditure request is up $390,416 or 3.51% from 2019 levels. The Police 

Service Administration presented their budget request to Council on November 18.   

 

The Public Works area is seeing a decrease in overall expenditures of about $870,000. This 

relates to a decrease in overall salary expenditures in the City Engineer’s Department 

due to the implementation of a design team funded from Capital and the allocation of 

the Engineering Technologists that manage capital projects to capital projects. This 

resulted in the ability to discontinue the 6% overhead charge to capital that had 

previously been charged as a recovery to the Operating Budget.  

 

Also, the Traffic Division has a reduction of expenditures of $505,000 related to a reduction 

in automated speed enforcement costs as mentioned earlier in the revenue section of 

this report. 

 

The Parks & Recreation Department is seeing an increased expenditure budget request 

of $196,462. This is primarily in the Parks and Recreation areas of this department. Many 

of these cost increases relate to water and other utility costs related to parks and 

recreational facilities. 

 

Yara Centre now appears in budgeted expenditures at a request of $713,939. This is offset 

by expected revenues of $647,561 a recovery rate of over 90%. 

 

Lastly, the Provisions/Misc/Debt area is seeing an increase of approximately $66,558 in 

budgeted expenditures related to salary provisions and the appropriation of municipal 

taxation to the Waterworks Utility and the Capital Expenditure Fund. In terms of the 

appropriation to Waterworks and Capital, City Administration has included an additional 

1% of municipal taxation to the General Capital Reserve for recreation and facilities 

capital funding. This is an increase of $295,000.  This increase will be subject to City Council 

approval. 

 

As indicated earlier, there are no enhancements included in the status quo budget other 

than the 1% increase for Parks, Recreation and Facilities funding. All other enhancement 

requests will come to City Council in separate report form for Council’s consideration. 

 

The overall increase in expenditures is 3.25% of which 0.60% relates to the appropriation 

of an additional 1% of municipal taxation to the Capital Budget. Therefore, the overall 

expenditure increases to maintain programs and services is 2.65%. 
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Transit Service 

 

 
 

 

Both the regular Transit and Para-Transit services receive a subsidy from the City which 

totals $1,475,430 in 2020 or approximately 73% of overall costs. In 2019, the budgeted 

subsidy was $1,230,715 or 65% of costs.  

 

Both the regular Transit and Para-Transit areas are seeing a decrease in revenues as 

compared to the 2019 Budget. The regular Transit service is seeing a revenue decrease 

of $75,400 and the Para-Transit service a decrease in revenue of $41,000. The most 

significant cost increases in the Transit and Para-Transit areas are related to vehicle 

maintenance and administration costs. The increased administration costs relate to 

increased equipment reserve contributions. 

 

 

General Capital Budget 

 

The General Capital Budget provides for the provision of funds to allow the City of Moose 

Jaw to undertake major construction, renovation and rehabilitation projects.  The Capital 

Budget consists of two components, the General Capital Reserve and the Land 

Development Reserve. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Descrip tion
2019

Pro jection

2019

Budge t

2020

Budge t

2020 - 2019

INC (DCR)
% Change

BUS EARNINGS 89,000 100,000 90,000 (10,000) (10.0)%

BUS EARNINGS CHARTER 15,000 20,000 15,000 (5,000) (25.0)%

MONTHLY PASSES 156,000 203,400 160,000 (43,400) (21.3)%

YEARLY PASSES-SENIORS 20,107 32,000 20,000 (12,000) (37.5)%

ADVERTISING 24,100 29,000 24,000 (5,000) (17.2)%

SUBSIDY 1,187,601 1,033,660 1,189,687 156,027 15.1%

TRANSIT REVENUE 1,491,808 1,418,060 1,498,687 80,627 5.7%
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 415,000 415,000 436,000 21,000 5.1%

TRANSPORTATION 497,552 489,900 495,840 5,940 1.2%

ADMINISTRATION 579,256 513,160 566,847 53,687 10.5%

TRANSIT EXPENDITURES 1,491,808 1,418,060 1,498,687 80,627 5.7%
USER FARES 16,000 25,000 16,000 (9,000) (36.0)%

BUS EARNINGS CHARTER 675 5,000 1,000 (4,000) (80.0)%

PROV GOVT FUNDING 164,026 225,000 200,000 (25,000) (11.1)%

SOC SERVICES FUNDING 8,500 12,000 9,000 (3,000) (25.0)%

SUBSIDY 349,034 197,055 285,743 88,688 45.0%

PARA-TRANSIT REVENUES 538,235 464,055 511,743 47,688 10.3%
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 120,000 75,000 100,000 25,000 33.3%

TRANSPORTATION 282,250 273,817 273,890 73 0.0%

ADMINISTRATION 135,985 115,238 137,853 22,615 19.6%

PARA-TRANSIT EXPENDITURES 538,235 464,055 511,743 47,688 10.3%

City of Moose Jaw

Budget Summary of Revenues & Expenditures

For Transit
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The General Capital Reserve component of the Capital Budget provides for funding for 

all the core infrastructure projects for the City of Moose Jaw. These projects include 

sidewalks, pavement rehabilitation, bridges, building improvements and general parks 

upgrades to name only a few.  

 

The source of funding for the General Capital Reserve core infrastructure projects comes 

from seven main sources totalling $45,549,175 over the five-year period: 

 

 SPC Municipal Surcharge $15,527,665 

 Taxation $5,585,133 

 Investment Income $12,560,000 

 Land Sale Proceeds $5,975,000 

 Parks Dedication Reserve $119,000 

 Federal/Provincial Funding $898,385 

 SaskEnergy Municipal Surcharge $4,883,992. 

 
The Capital Expenditure Fund Interest revenue is forecast to increase significantly in 

revenue from $1,295,000 in 2019 to $2,610,000 in 2020. The majority of this increase in 

revenues is a result of Council’s initiative to look at broadening the scope of the City’s 

Investment Policy and investing in an array of financial assets that will provide a higher 

return on invested monies. 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total

6,675,897$         4,785,266$           388,814$          (7,305,667)$       (9,322,939)$       (11,079,847)$     

 

2,814,524$         2,895,620$           2,996,967$       3,101,861$        3,210,426$        3,322,791$        15,527,665$         

257,000$            -$                         -$                     -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                        

3,583,283$         3,844,186$           3,876,751$       3,993,054$        4,112,845$        4,236,231$        20,063,067$         

1,295,000$         2,610,000$           2,450,000$       2,475,000$        2,500,000$        2,525,000$        12,560,000$         

910,000$            2,210,000$           1,125,000$       880,000$           880,000$           880,000$           5,975,000$          

20,000$              -$                         39,000$            19,500$             40,000$             20,500$             119,000$             

Federal/Provincial Funding -$                       381,275$              517,110$          -$                      -$                      -$                     898,385$             

SaskEnergy Mun. Surcharge 912,500$            938,500$              957,270$          976,415$           995,944$           1,015,863$        4,883,992$          

Fundraising Contributions 296,989$            -$                         -$                     -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                        

Transfer to Waterworks (2,691,492)$        (2,726,985)$          (2,808,795)$      (2,893,058)$       (2,979,850)$       (3,069,246)$       (14,477,934)$       

Uncompleted Works (3,672,747)$        (4,126,906)$          -$                     -$                      -$                      -$                     

10,400,954$       10,810,956$         9,542,117$       1,247,105$        (563,574)$          (2,148,708)$       45,549,175$         

4,468,962$         6,096,400$           12,629,500$     7,044,930$        7,317,500$        7,587,500$        40,675,830$         

1,093,130$         1,072,995$           1,320,585$       1,257,010$        853,153$           1,012,300$        5,516,043$          

2,546,445$         2,395,247$           2,157,699$       1,445,604$        1,430,620$        1,421,892$        8,851,062$          

65,000$              67,500$                70,000$            72,500$             75,000$             77,500$             362,500$             

-$                       -$                         -$                     -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                        

-$                       -$                         -$                     -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                        

405,000$            790,000$              670,000$          750,000$           840,000$           640,000$           3,690,000$          

8,578,537$         10,422,142$         16,847,784$     10,570,044$      10,516,273$      10,739,192$      59,095,435$         

1,822,417$         388,814$              (7,305,667)$      (9,322,939)$       (11,079,847)$     (12,887,900)$     

Parks and Recreation

Other Services

Police Services

Fire Services

Downtown Facility & FieldHouse

Storm Sewers

Total Funding Required

Surplus/Shortfall

Transportation

GENERAL CAPITAL RESERVE SUMMARY

2020 - 2024

Carry over from previous year

SPC Funds Available

Hospital Levy

Taxation Revenue

Capital Expenditure Fund Interest

Land Sale Proceeds

Parks Dedication Reserve

Capital Funding Available
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The General Capital Reserve has funding challenges over the five-year period; there is 

insufficient funding to service all of the spending demands.  The current budgeted 

shortfall is $12,887,900. 

 

In 2020, City Administration is proposing a 1% municipal tax increase be levied and 

dedicated to providing funding to the General Capital Reserve Budget for Parks, 

Recreation and Facilities capital projects on an ongoing basis.  This will generate an 

additional $295,000. The 1% has been incorporated into the overall proposed mill rate 

increase of 2.02% and is contained as revenue in the General Capital Reserve summary 

above. 

 

Also, in 2020, City Administration is proposing that an additional $1,300,000 of Land Sale 

proceeds be directed to the General Capital Reserve.  These additional proceeds would 

come from sale proceeds from development of the Southeast Industrial Subdivision.  This 

contribution has been factored into the preliminary budget above. 

 

The end result is sufficient funding for year 2020 of the Capital Plan, but insufficient funding 

for the planned work over the entire five-year plan.  

 

 

Land Development Reserve 

 

 
 

The Land Development Reserve provides for the funding needed for land development 

projects. Excess revenues over expenditures are redirected to the General Capital 

Reserve of the General Capital Budget to fund needed infrastructure projects in that 

area.  

 

There is currently one major land development project in this Capital Plan, that being 

Westheath Phase V at $4,771,148. Westheath Phase V is not expected to be under 

development until 2021.  The key benefits to the City of land development are that it 

gives the City a tool to influence land development in the direction that best benefits the 

City overall, and also generates profits which can be utilized to fund other Capital 

projects. The current contribution from land development to the General Reserve is 

$5,975,000 over the next five years. 

 

 

  

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total

($2,129,352) ($2,519,371) $996,547 $1,240,080 $3,233,613 $4,327,146 

$3,103,100 $8,287,066 $243,533 $1,993,533 $1,093,533 $1,093,533 $12,711,198 

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

$6,249,805 $4,771,148 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,771,148 

($5,276,057) $996,547 $1,240,080 $3,233,613 $4,327,146 $5,420,679 Year End Balance

LAND DEVELOPMENT RESERVE

2020 - 2024

Opening Balance

Contributions during the year

Loan Proceeds

less Land Dev Projects

less Uncompleted Works
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Equipment Reserve Budget 

 

The Equipment Reserve is funded by an annual contribution from Operating to the 

reserve such that sufficient funds are in place to purchase equipment when required. The 

annual contribution is based upon a detailed analysis of equipment needs, replacement 

values and expected life. The annual contribution then earns interest and is also credited 

to this account. The attached budget request represents the spending plan for the 

replacement of this equipment.  

 

 
 

The overall request in 2020 for equipment funding is $3,851,496. This is higher than usual 

due to the Engineering Department not having an Equipment Reserve Budget request 

for three years. As can be seen from the budget summary equipment purchase requests 

return to more normal levels in the remaining years of the budget. 

 

The value of the Equipment Reserve to the City of Moose Jaw is threefold. First, the ability 

to save funds for future purchases allows the fund to generate investment earnings, which 

goes toward the purchase of the equipment. This benefit is in the neighbourhood of 

$740,000 even in this period of low interest rates. 

 

City Council’s initiative of establishing an Investment Committee and directing the City’s 

reserve funds to professional portfolio managers is expected to generate benefits to the 

Equipment Reserve in terms of the investment income. Based upon the Investment 

                                    2020 - 2024 Equipment Reserve Budget
                                                                            SUMMARY

DESCRIPTION 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 TOTAL

ENGINEERING 2,505,298$ 691,802$    1,133,832$ 885,968$    998,355$    6,215,255$    

PARKS & RECREATION 261,823      467,687      135,604      244,580     269,504      1,379,198      

FINANCE 44,458        199,133      24,822       4,000         16,642       289,055        

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 520,556      180,409      173,444      99,950       222,873      1,197,232      

 TRANSIT 3,964         68,187        658,312      1,177,275   43,428       1,951,166      

FIRE SERVICE 302,407      143,480      138,284      56,013       26,745       666,929        

 CITY MANAGER, MAYOR 3,268         8,292          49,727       2,000         2,000         65,287          

CITY CLERK/SOLICITOR 25,407        2,067          7,435         1,000         1,000         36,909          

HUMAN RESOURCES 1,000         4,958          2,962         3,111         3,928         15,959          

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 24,721        1,541          29,000       39,000       1,000         95,262          

SAFETY 500            500            2,612         500            500            4,612            

LIBRARY 49,381        70,060        203,491      258,841     95,850       677,623        

ART MUSEUM 17,864        13,098        19,257       21,020       10,597       81,836          

 CULTURAL CENTRE 51,815        134,736      39,005       6,635         41,965       274,156        

 MOSAIC PLACE 39,034        34,149        31,646       141,866     235,141      481,836        

FUNDING REQUIRED 3,851,496$ 2,020,099$ 2,649,433$ 2,941,759$ 1,969,528$ 13,432,315$  

FUNDING SOURCES:

AVAILABLE FROM DEPRECIATION 3,076,451   2,020,099   2,649,433   2,941,759   1,969,528   12,657,270    

AVAILABLE FROM CONTROL ACCOUNT 775,045      -                 -                -                -                775,045        

3,851,496$ 2,020,099$ 2,649,433$ 2,941,759$ 1,969,528$ 13,432,315$  

5YR BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 156,922$    3,682$        558$          33,270$     28,324$      222,756$       

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS ALL YEARS 645,536$    
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targets established for the City’s invested funds, the annual investment income would be 

expected to grow to nearly double to an estimated $1,400,000 annually. This additional 

investment earnings will allow for annual equipment reserve contribution to decrease by 

a similar amount which will result in a reduction of required funds from the municipal tax 

levy. 

 

Secondly, if funds were not set aside for future purchases, there would be a need to 

borrow and the associated cost of borrowing would add significantly to the overall 

purchase price and additional taxation funded contributions would be required.  

 

Thirdly, the Equipment Reserve, by reserving, provides for the necessary funding of 

replacement equipment and in doing so, takes away the need for equipment purchases 

to compete with other Capital projects for funding. Many cities do not have an 

equipment reserving system and as such, must allocate a portion of their Capital monies 

each year for equipment purchases. For the City to deliver its programs and services as 

well as rehabilitate its aging infrastructure, it must have the necessary equipment to 

perform those tasks. 

 

The Equipment Reserve Budget as presented will result in increased contribution costs 

which have been accounted for in the various budgets. In future years, as investment 

income increases, these contributions will be able to be decreased. 

 

The ability to earn interest on monies set aside, coupled with not having to borrow funds 

to buy equipment, continues to provide the City and its citizens a significant benefit each 

year.   

 

 

Utility Operating Budget 

 

The City operates three utilities, they are the Waterworks, Sanitary Sewer and Solid Waste 

Utilities. 

 

Waterworks 
 

 
 

 

Descrip tion
2019

Pro jection

2019

Budge t

2020

Budge t

2020 - 2019

INC (DCR)
% Change

GENERAL SERVICE 11,125,633 11,174,300 11,364,433 190,133 1.7%

UTILITY BILLING PENALTIES 67,253 60,387 70,044 9,657 16.0%

CONNECTION FEES 63,135 62,940 61,200 (1,740) (2.8)%

WATER DEPOTS 28,492 28,390 29,331 941 3.3%

HOUSE CONNECTIONS 370,000 300,000 400,000 100,000 33.3%

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 100 1,000 1,000 0 0.0%

WATER METER REVENUE 9,000 20,000 10,000 (10,000) (50.0)%

REVENUES 11,663,613 11,647,017 11,936,008 288,991 2.5%
PRODUCTION 3,108,000 3,047,945 3,270,136 222,191 7.3%

DISTRIBUTION 4,870,031 4,032,884 4,568,411 535,527 13.3%

ADMINISTRATION 1,562,378 1,500,084 1,676,485 176,401 11.8%

RESERVE CHARGE 2,123,204 3,066,104 2,420,976 (645,128) (21.0)%

EXPENDITURES 11,663,613 11,647,017 11,936,008 288,991 2.5%

City of Moose Jaw

Budget Summary of Revenues & Expenditures

For Waterworks
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The Waterworks Utility provides potable drinking water to the community from the Buffalo 

Pound Water Treatment Plant that the City owns in partnership with the City of Regina. 

 

The challenges facing the utility are operational issues in respect to maintaining and 

repairing distribution mains, hydrants, valves and house connections.  An aging 

infrastructure has greatly increased the maintenance demands on the utility.  These 

demands continue to require additional resources in order to maintain the system, most 

recently the creation of an additional work crew to help alleviate work backlogs. 

 

In addition, the cost of water from the Buffalo Pound Water Treatment Corporation 

continues to increase each year as funding is being gathered for a major plant 

rehabilitation project in the near future. Administrative costs have also risen in relation to 

provisions for doubtful accounts, franchise fees and general administration. 

 

The continued investment in infrastructure rehabilitation is expected to result in a 

decrease in operational costs over time.  This will allow the utility to direct additional 

resources to infrastructure renewal in the future as a result of operational savings.  In order 

for the utility to be able to fund its financial commitments, City Administration is 

recommending a utility rate increase of 6% in 2020. 

 

Sanitary Sewer 
 

 
 
 

The Sanitary Sewer Utility provides wastewater services to the City of Moose Jaw.  The 

utility is facing infrastructure challenges but at a more moderate rate than the 

Waterworks Utility.   

 

The utility is seeing increased costs in the Administration, Sewage Treatment and Sanitary 

Sewer areas. Administrative cost increases relate to an increased allowance for doubtful 

accounts, increased franchise fee and general administrative costs. The Sewage 

Treatment area is seeing increased costs at Crescentview, the wastewater treatment 

facility and for lagoon maintenance. Lastly, the Sanitary Sewers area is seeing increased 

costs related to house connections and supervisory expenses. 

 

The long-term debt of the utility will be retired in 2023 which will place the utility on a 

sound financial footing. City Administration will be recommending a 5% utility rate 

increase for 2020. 

Descrip tion
2019

Pro jection

2019

Budge t

2020

Budge t

2020 - 2019

INC (DCR)
% Chang e

GENERAL SERVICE 8,157,693 7,980,635 8,331,575 350,940 4.4%

SEWER BLOCKS 842 806 842 36 4.5%

UTILITY BILLING PENALTIES 52,448 46,217 55,200 8,983 19.4%

SEPTAGE FEES 33,930 26,811 32,160 5,349 20.0%

HOUSE CONNECTIONS 400,000 400,000 435,000 35,000 8.8%

REVENUES 8,644,913 8,454,469 8,854,777 400,308 4.7%
ADMINISTRATION 1,079,004 1,038,449 1,135,945 97,496 9.4%

RESERVE CHARGE 4,497,162 4,368,201 4,480,322 112,121 2.6%

SEWAGE TREATMENT 1,787,747 1,859,573 1,945,550 85,977 4.6%

SANITARY SEWERS 1,281,000 1,188,246 1,292,960 104,714 8.8%

EXPENDITURES 8,644,913 8,454,469 8,854,777 400,308 4.7%

City of Moose Jaw

Budget Summary of Revenues & Expenditures

For Sanitary Sewer
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Solid Waste Utility 
 

 
 

The Solid Waste area was established as a utility in 2002.  In 2008, City Council passed a 

motion and later a bylaw to make the Solid Waste Utility a self-funded utility. A self-funded 

utility is one in which the charges for its services are such as to provide for all funding 

necessary to operate the utility. Steps taken in 2017 to charge the utilities’ customers 

directly for the services they receive have made this a self-funded utility. The garbage 

collection and curbside recycling revenue is reflective of these charges for residential 

garbage and recycling collection.  

 

Revenues for the utility will decline to approximately 5.054 million dollars in 2020. The 

majority of the decline coming from decreased landfill revenues. 

 

On the expenditure side, the Superintendent and Administration costs have increased as 

have wages and equipment costs, landfill operations and franchise fees. These increased 

costs are partially offset by a reduction in the landfill closure contribution for 2020 which 

is estimated to no longer be required as sufficient funds will have been accumulated for 

closure and post closure cost funding given the current estimated costs of providing 

these services. 

 

Overall, the utility is generating a sustainable surplus which will be put towards the 

planned landfill replacement project.  The utility will be able to fund this project and its 

operations from revenues.  As such, City Administration is not proposing any increase in 

Solid Waste fees in 2020. 

 

De scrip tio n
2019

Pro je c tio n

2019

Bud g e t

2020

Bud g e t

2020 - 2019

INC (DCR)
% Cha ng e

GARBAGE COLLECTION 1,359,984 1,368,777 1,359,984 (8,793) (0.6)%
SANITARY LANDFILL 2,400,000 2,500,000 2,350,000 (150,000) (6.0)%
SOLID WASTE MISCELL REVENUE 4,500 10,000 5,000 (5,000) (50.0)%
ECOCENTRE REVENUES 12,000 12,000 12,000 0 0.0%
CURBSIDE RECYCLING REVENUES 986,928 986,928 986,928 0 0.0%
MULTI-MATERIAL RECYCLING GRT 340,290 340,290 340,290 0 0.0%

REVENUES 5,103,702 5,217,995 5,054,202 (163,793) (3.1)%
TRAVEL & CONVENTIONS 4,600 4,000 4,080 80 2.0%
EDUCATION & TRAINING 1,757 1,757 1,792 35 2.0%
GENERAL REPAIRS & SUPP 6,000 6,662 6,709 47 0.7%
SICKNESS & HOLIDAYS 50,000 43,178 43,178 0 0.0%
WAGES & EQUIPMENT 650,000 679,176 696,021 16,845 2.5%
INSPECTIONS 8,000 10,747 10,812 65 0.6%
SUPERINTENDENT & ADMIN 85,692 85,692 124,100 38,408 44.8%
HOUSEHOLD HAZ WASTE 35,000 26,298 60,000 33,702 128.2%
WASTE RECYCLING PRGM 110,000 133,057 102,527 (30,530) (22.9)%
RECYCLING INITIATIVES 15,000 21,630 21,630 0 0.0%
SANITARY LANDFILL OPER 1,127,462 1,127,462 1,151,110 23,648 2.1%
LANDFILL CLOSURE 72,465 72,465 0 (72,465) (100.0)%
SOLID WASTE RESERVE CONT 1,749,023 1,809,129 1,611,769 (197,360) (10.9)%
ADMINISTRATION 151,464 151,464 147,206 (4,258) (2.8)%
CURBSIDE RECYCLING PROGRAM 805,000 805,000 807,811 2,811 0.3%
SOLID WASTE UTLY-FRANCHISE FEE 231,189 234,958 260,900 25,942 11.0%
RESERVE DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 1,050 5,320 4,557 (763) (14.3)%

SCAVENGING & TRADE WASTE 5,103,702 5,217,995 5,054,202 (163,793) (3.1)%

City of Moose Jaw

Budget Summary of Revenues & Expenditures

For Solid Waste
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Utility Capital Budget 

 

The Utility Capital Budget consists of infrastructure projects for the City’s Water, Sanitary 

Sewer and Solid Waste Utilities. 

 

Waterworks 
 

 
 

The Waterworks Utility has $100,281,197 of planned spending over the next five years.  In 

addition, the Buffalo Pound Water Treatment Plant will also be renewed with Moose Jaw 

responsible for its share of this project.   

 

The infrastructure demands of the utility are large with the following major projects: 

 

 
 
Funding for the utility’s capital needs will come from: 

 

 Utility Revenues    $23,565,345 

 Gas Tax funding    $10,451,676 

 ICIP funding      $18,332,800 

 Municipal Taxation    $14,477,934 

 Proposed Infrastructure Levy  $  8,437,500 

 Contributions Sanitary Sewer Utility $  3,000,000 

       $78,265,255 

 

The Waterworks Utility will also need to borrow $15,000,000 in 2020 to meet all planned 

financial commitments. The capital demands on the utility are significant and are 

providing an extreme funding challenge for the utility. The financial model for this utility is 

based upon a number of assumptions such as approval by Council of the Infrastructure 

Levy, contributions from Sanitary Sewer Utility and ICIP funding for the reservoir and 

pumphouse project. City Administration is recommending a 6% utility rate increase in 

2020. If some of the assumed funding sources do not materialize, then additional 

borrowing and future rate increases will be required. 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total

$18,071,573 $8,135,841 ($12,103,027) ($1,757,594) ($2,248,107) ($2,602,104)

$7,960,506 $12,645,937 $25,504,970 $11,378,199 $12,316,706 $16,419,443 $78,265,255 

$0 $15,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,000,000 

$20,885,349 $26,645,250 $15,159,537 $11,868,712 $12,670,703 $12,697,440 $79,041,642 

$13,066,249 $21,239,555 $0 $0 $0 $0 $21,239,555 

($7,919,519) ($12,103,027) ($1,757,594) ($2,248,107) ($2,602,104) $1,119,899 Year End Balance

less Uncompleted Works

WATER UTILITY RESERVE

2020 - 2024

Opening Balance

Contributions during the year

Loan Proceeds

less Water Works Projects

Objec t

Account

2019 Carry 

Forward
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Total Inc luding 

CFW DS

9618 - WW1 WATER DISTRIBUTION -                            653,000                666,000                675,000                675,000                702,000                3,371,000             

9604 - WW4 WATER RESERVOIRS 6,450,000             10,000,000           500,000                500,000                500,000                500,000                18,450,000           

9612 - WW5 BPWTP 2,764,555             600,000                -                            -                            -                            -                            3,364,555             

9609 - WW9 FEEDER MAINS 2,725,000             1,600,000             100,000                200,000                1,000,000             1,000,000             6,625,000             

9616 - WW16 BPWTP TRANSMISSION LINE 6,200,000             -                            100,000                -                            -                            -                            6,300,000             

9617 - WW17 CAST IRON WATERMAIN REP 3,100,000             9,900,000             9,900,000             6,600,000             6,600,000             6,600,000             42,700,000           

9625 - WW25 WATERWORKS LOAN REPAYMENT -                            3,892,250             3,893,537             3,893,712             3,895,703             3,895,440             19,470,642           

W ater Utility Reserve Summary 21,239,555     26,645,250     15,159,537     11,868,712     12,670,703     12,697,440     100,281,197   
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Sanitary Sewer 
 

 
 

 

The Sanitary Sewer Utility has $32,054,639 of planned spending over the next five years. 

 

 
 
Funding for the utility’s capital needs will come from: 

 

  Utility Revenues  $27,406,498 

 

These revenues generated from the utility will be sufficient to meet its financial 

commitments. 

 

The Sanitary Sewer Utility provides for all of its Capital Funding from the surplus that comes 

from the operation of the utility and any available grant funding. The Financial Model for 

this utility calls for 5% rate increases over the next five years which if approved, would put 

the utility in a position to be able to fully fund its capital works from the utility rates that it 

generates. This is the definition of a self-funded utility and where all of the City’s utilities 

need to work towards. 

 

The borrowing repayments will be completed in 2023 at which time it may make sense to 

combine the utility with the Waterworks utility. This combining of utilities would allow for 

some of the funding generated within the Sanitary sewer Utility to be directed to 

Waterworks. 

 

  

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total

$5,568,202 $7,416,337 $3,701,591 ($1,852,326) ($4,365,252) ($1,351,988)

$4,494,632 $4,968,532 $5,177,544 $5,372,142 $5,708,096 $6,180,184 $27,406,498 

$3,838,494 $5,761,278 $10,731,461 $7,885,068 $2,694,832 $2,060,000 $29,132,639 

$1,075,000 $2,922,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,922,000 

$5,149,340 $3,701,591 ($1,852,326) ($4,365,252) ($1,351,988) $2,768,196 

SANITARY SEWAGE UTILITY RESERVE

2020 - 2024

Opening Balance

Contributions during the year

less Sewer Projects

less Uncompleted Works

Year End Balance

Objec t

Account

2019 Carry 

Forward
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Total Inc luding 

CFW DS

9731 - S1 SANITARY SEWERS 1,790,000             2,676,000             1,785,000             1,340,000             1,350,000             1,360,000             10,301,000           

9733 - S3 WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 1,005,000             1,000,000             1,400,000             500,000                500,000                500,000                4,905,000             

9734 - S4 LIFT STATIONS 127,000                540,000                6,000,000             4,500,000             200,000                200,000                11,567,000           

9725 - S25 WASTEWATER LOAN REPAYMENT -                            1,545,278             1,546,461             1,545,068             644,832                -                            5,281,639             

Sanitary Sewage Reserve Summary 2,922,000       5,761,278       10,731,461     7,885,068       2,694,832       2,060,000       32,054,639     
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Solid Waste 

 

 
 
The Solid Waste Utility has $11,320,000 of planned spending over the next five years. 

 

 
 
Funding for the utility’s capital needs will come from: 

 

  Utility Revenues  $8,439,089 

 

These revenues generated from utility charges will be sufficient to fund the utilities 

planned financial commitments. 

 

The utility faces a major landfill expansion or replacement project at an estimated cost 

of $11 million dollars. This project will see the landfill’s life extended or a new landfill 

developed. 

 

Decisions made by City Council in 2017 to move towards a fully self-funded utility model, 

bi-weekly garbage collection, partial curb side collection, increased landfill rates and a 

residential garbage fee have significantly increased the annual contribution from Solid 

Waste operations to capital. The contributions are of a magnitude such that borrowing is 

not anticipated to be needed over the next five-year period. As well, for 2020 City 

Administration is not recommending any rate increases. 

 

Summary 

 

The City of Moose Jaw 2020 Budget was based upon the Budgeting Policy approved by 

City Council in 2019. In that policy there were 9 guiding principles of budgeting. The City 

has utilized these in developing this budget: 

 

1. The City should live within its means – In preparing this budget, every effort has been 

made to find solutions and ways to fund programs and services that are efficient and 

effective while living within available funding parameters. For example, there were 

additional requests for staffing that have not moved forward to City Council as 

departments have been challenged to find other ways of finding solutions. 

  

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total

$340,344 $1,722,300 $3,230,963 $3,866,673 ($4,448,976) ($2,853,060)

$1,832,305 $1,676,163 $1,753,210 $1,684,351 $1,613,416 $1,711,949 $8,439,089 

$15,000 $117,500 $1,117,500 $10,000,000 $17,500 $17,500 $11,270,000 

$100,000 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000 

$2,057,649 $3,230,963 $3,866,673 ($4,448,976) ($2,853,060) ($1,158,611)

less Solid Waste Projects

less Uncompleted Works

Year End Balance

Contributions during the year

SOLID WASTE UTILITY RESERVE

2020 - 2024

Opening Balance

Objec t

Account

2019 Carry 

Forward
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Total Inc luding 

CFWDS

9211 - SW1 SOLID WASTE 50,000                  117,500                1,117,500             10,000,000           17,500                  17,500                  11,320,000           

Solid Waste Reserve Summary 50,000           117,500          1,117,500       10,000,000     17,500           17,500           11,320,000     
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2. The City should only budget what work can reasonably be expected to be 

completed within each year - In reviewing capital requests, City Administration has 

made every effort to only include capital works projects that can be completed. An 

example of this would be the increase in the Cast Iron Watermain Project to $9,900,000 

in 2020 and 2021. This could have been increased to $13,200,000 in 2020, but it was 

not felt that this was realistically an amount of work the City could accomplish in one 

year. 

 

3. The City should seek to invest in infrastructure when productivity, efficiency and 

effectiveness increases are possible – Capital projects that provide a payback have 

been given a high priority in the Capital Plan submitted for approval. Examples would 

include the solar power initiative for facilities and additional cast iron replacement. 

 

4. The City may borrow from reserves on a short term basis (7 to 10 years), however the 

borrowing must be paid back with interest at the expected rate of return that the 

Institutional Investing program provides – The current economic climate makes it more 

cost effective to externally borrow than to utilize internal funds from reserves. The best 

example of this is the proposed $15,000,000 in external borrowing for the water utility 

in 2020. The external rate of borrowing will be less than the expected rate of return on 

the invested reserves. 

 

5. The City should generally focus on completing one major study at a time before 

starting another and ensure that the existing systems are operating as intended 

before completing a study to determine system enhancements – An effort has been 

made to limit the number of studies and ensure studies are completed and acted 

upon before new studies are commenced. A good example of this is the solid waste 

study that is underway in Engineering. Once this study is complete, the department 

will look at other areas. 

 

6. The City should be innovative and make the most effective use of its existing funds – 

This budget incorporates a number of innovative ideas such as the implementation 

of a VOIP telephone system, solar initiatives for facilities, and the crushing of waste 

concrete to produce aggregate. 

 

7. The City should reduce reliance on external consultants and where possible and 

economically feasible develop the required expertise internally – Over the years, the 

City has become more and more reliant on external consultants to provide expertise. 

There has been a general overall culture developed that reinforces the idea that 

someone external telling the City how to do things is the best way to proceed. A 

concerted effort has been made to break away from that way of thinking and utilize 

existing resources and their expertise. A good example of this is the pathway study 

which is being undertaken with internal resources from Planning and Parks and 

Recreation. The resulting cost savings are significant. 

 

8. The City should seek to centralize functions and refine core services when prudent to 

do so – There is a conscious effort within this budget to centralize services. A good 

example of this is the movement of education and training funding resources to the 

Human Resource Services Department where they can be consistently managed in 

conjunction with the succession planning program. There are also a number of efforts 

underway to centralize procurement practices for things like electrical and plumbing 

services and office supplies. 
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9. City Administration is expected to carefully scrutinize every budget item and only 

present to City Council what is considered necessary – The budget presented to City 

Council has been scrutinized for efficiencies and effectiveness in the delivery of the 

various programs and services. A by-product of this scrutiny is an Operating Budget 

that requires a 1.02% municipal tax increase to fund. 

 

The resulting budget requests for 2020 are: 

 

 General Operating Budget request    $  50,088,967 

 General Capital Budget request for new spending      10,422,142 

 Equipment Reserve Budget request for new spending        3,851,496 

 Utility Operating Budget request         25,844,987 

 Utility Capital Budget request for new spending       32,524,028 

  Total Spending Request     $122,731,620 

 

Additional funding required to fund this budget request: 
 

         Cost per month 

1.02% Municipal Tax Increase for Operating Budget  $   1.24 

1.00% Municipal Tax Increase for General Capital Budget       1.22 

6.00% Waterworks Utility Rate Increase       3.64 

5.00% Sanitary Sewer Utility Rate Increase      2.45 

Infrastructure Levy          7.08 *  

         $ 15.63  
 

* Note: additional cost from $15 Hospital Levy 

 

 

Council New and Referred Items 

 

A number of items have been referred, tabled, or will be presented at Budget discussions. 

These items include: 

 

1. Police Service Budget – The submission of the Police Service Operating and Capital 

Budget estimates occurred at the November 18, 2019 Special City Council meeting. 

The net Operating Budget request from the Police Service is $10,129,563 an increase 

of 3.26% over 2019 levels of funding. A contribution of $110,000 from the Traffic Safety 

Reserve and Capital Funding of $67,500 is being requested. The preliminary budget 

estimates contain the requested amount of funding for the Police Service.   

 

2. Public Library Budget - The submission by the Moose Jaw Public Library Board 

occurred at the November 18, 2019 Special City Council meeting. The net budget 

request of $1,206,944 is currently incorporated into the overall City Budget and 

represents a 1.39 % increase over 2019 levels. The Equipment Budget, which is one of 

the three budgets before Council for approval, contains a request from the Public 

Library. That request is for $49,381 in equipment purchases for 2020.  

 

3. Urban Forestry Program – Trees are an important part of a vibrant, liveable city. 

Growing research supports the many benefits of an urban forest on the environment, 

economy and human health. Moose Jaw’s publicly owned and managed urban 

forest has an estimated population of fifteen thousand (15,000) trees with an 

estimated collective value of $90-$100 million.  Like many other City assets, the City’s 

Page  20 of 792



 

 
20 

urban forest requires annual maintenance funding to ensure it remains healthy, safe 

and valuable into the future. The Parks and Recreation Department is requesting a 2-

person urban forestry crew to ensure dedicated and trained staff are maintaining the 

City’s urban forest year-round. The Department is also requesting to expand the 

contracted block pruning program which would decrease the City’s tree pruning 

cycle from thirty-three (33) years to fourteen (14) years.  The total cost of both requests 

is $60,035.00. 

 

4. EDC Initiatives – The EDC area will be bringing forward a request to City Council for 

funding to carry out a Business Retention and Expansion Triage program, with a focus 

on Value-add Agriculture and Food Production as well as a request for financial 

support for the Rural and Northern Immigration pilot program.  The total cost of both 

requests is $20,000.  There is also a request for travel related to land development for 

$10,000. 

 
5. Aggregate Program – Engineering Services will be bringing forward a request to 

proceed with a program to create aggregate for use in City works as well as for resale. 

The aggregate would be produced from waste concrete collected by the City. The 

funding for this program would come from the City’s cashflow for inventories with 

anticipated savings coming from the use of this aggregate versus the City purchasing 

aggregate. 

 
6. Parks & Recreation Capital Funding Shortfall - The Parks and Recreation Department 

has identified a shortfall in the Department’s Capital Budget. The proposed 2020 

Capital Budget is also 2% less then the 10-year Capital Budget average, while City 

facilities and infrastructure continue to age. The report identifies the risks associated 

with underfunding facility renewal projects as well as an overview of the current 

Capital Budget, the current unfunded projects and a request for an additional 

$295,000 in capital funding in 2020. 

 

7. Slope/Slumping Program – The Engineering Services area will be proposing a 

Slope/Slumping program for Council’s consideration. 

 
8. Fluoridation –The decision on whether to invest the required capital funding to 

continue to provide fluoridation of the City’s water supply will come before Council 

for their considerations. 

 
9. Investment Earnings proposed Drawdowns – Now that the City of Moose Jaw has 

developed a revised Investment Policy and contracted a professional portfolio 

manager, it is necessary for the City to annually determine the drawdown of these 

funds. A report will be placed on the agenda outlining the proposed drawdowns for 

2020 and requesting Council’s approval. These proposed drawdowns have been 

incorporated into the preliminary budget that has been presented to City Council. 
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10. Infrastructure Levy – Council considered options for an infrastructure levy in 

September of this year and referred the matter to budget deliberations. City 

Administration is recommending a levy of $100, the same basis as the previous hospital 

levy. The levy is necessary to provide the last portion of funding for the ongoing cast 

iron project. The original funding for the cast iron project annually was: 

 

  Municipal Taxation  $1,537,000 

  Local Improvement Levy $1,608,000 

  Contribution from Utility $2,225,000 

  Utility Savings   $   480,000 
 

for a total of $5,850,000 million annually to fund it. After the referendum on the LIP 

funding portion of the cast iron program, it left a shortfall in annual funding of $1.608 

million. The implementation of an infrastructure levy would satisfy this funding shortfall. 

 

11. Recycling Contract Renewal – City Council had referred this communication to 

budget for consideration in conjunction with the overall budget process. 

 

12. 3rd Party Funding Groups – City Council entertained a number of third party funding 

groups at the November 18th, 2019 Special City Council meeting. That communication 

was subsequently referred to budget deliberations for further consideration. All of the 

groups presenting with the exception of the Moose Jaw and District Seniors 

Association and the Cosmos Senior Citizens Association all have funding allocations 

in the budget equal to last year’s level of funding plus a 2% cost of living increase. 

There is currently no funding in the preliminary budget allocated to the Moose Jaw 

and District Seniors Association, the Cosmos Senior Citizens Association or 2021 Moose 

Jaw Air Show.   

 

OPTIONS TO RECOMMENDATION 

 

Other direction as Council deems appropriate. 

 

COMMUNICATION PLAN 

 

The objectives of communication activities related to the 2020 Budget are to 

communicate the City’s long-term financial planning, investment in infrastructure 

renewal and service delivery as outlined in the proposed budget.  Detailed information 

is available on Moose Jaw Budget. 

  

Administration actively engaged residents to understand their spending priorities as part 

of pre-budget planning.  An online survey was promoted on MooseJaw.ca to obtain 

feedback on the key spending priorities of residents.  A total of 212 respondents 

completed the survey with infrastructure, water and wastewater listed as top spending 

priorities. A majority of those that responded also expressed support for an infrastructure 

levy and modest tax increases to maintain services.  

 

In conjunction with the release of the proposed 2020 Budget, detailed information will be 

available online at City of Moose Jaw 2020 Budget. 
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The objectives of communication activities related to the recommended 2020 Utility 

Budget are to inform residents of its anticipated impact on utility bills.  The City will work 

to help residents better understand how the utility works, the services delivered and how 

the capital investment over the period will be undertaken. 

 

From November 15 to 26, the City will encourage residents to learn about the proposed 

budget.  Following City Council’s approval of the 2020 Budget, the City will provide 

information to the public on the approved budget and its impact on the average 

homeowner. As well, utility customers will receive information in their Utility Bills to provide 

information on the rate increases and the Utility. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

 

The City’s budget is based upon the Strategic Plan and is structured such that funding is 

provided to enable the various programs and services to work towards the goals and 

objectives of the Strategic Plan. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

The 2020 Preliminary Budget presented to City Council proposes the following: 

 

 General Operating Budget request of $50,088,967 

 

o A municipal tax increase of 1.02% to fund operating cost increases. 

o A municipal tax increase of 1.00% directed to the General Capital Budget 

for the funding of Parks and Recreation capital projects. 

 

 General Capital Budget request of $10,422,142 in 2020 

 

o $6,096,400 for Transportation 

o $1,072,995 for Parks and Recreation 

o $2,395,247 for Other Services 

o $67,500 for the Police Service 

o $790,000 for Storm Sewers 

o Request to redirect $1,300,000 of Southeast Subdivision sale proceeds to 

the General Capital Budget in 2020. 

 

 Equipment Reserve Budget request of $3,851,496 in 2020 

 

o $2,505,298 Engineering Equipment 

o $261,823 Parks & Recreation Equipment 

o $520,556 Information Technology Equipment 

o $302,407 Fire Service Equipment 

o $261,412 all other departments and third party groups. 

 

 Utility Operating Budget request of $25,844,987 

 

o $11,936,008 Waterworks Utility 

 6% rate increase requested for 2020 

 $100 infrastructure levy requested 
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o $8,854,777 Sanitary Sewer Utility 

 5% rate increase requested for 2020 

 

o $5,054,202 Solid Waste Utility 

 No rate increases requested for 2020. 

 

 Utility Capital Budget request of $32,524,028 for 2020 

 

o $26,645,250 Waterworks 

o $5,761,278 Sanitary Sewer 

o $117,500 Solid Waste. 
 

The impact on the average homeowner: 

          Cost per month 

1.02% Municipal Tax Increase for Operating Budget  $   1.24 

1.00% Municipal Tax Increase for General Capital Budget       1.22 

6.00% Waterworks Utility Rate Increase       3.64 

5.00% Sanitary Sewer Utility Rate Increase      2.45 

Infrastructure Levy          7.08 *  

          $ 15.63  
 * Note: additional cost from $15 Hospital Levy 

 

PRESENTATION 

 

AUDIO/VISUAL:  Mr. Brian Acker, Director of Financial Services, will provide a verbal 

overview of this report. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

1. 2020 City of Moose Jaw Preliminary Budget.  

 

REPORT APPROVAL 

 

Written by:  Jim Puffalt, City Manager; Brian Acker, Director of Financial Services 

Reviewed by: Tracy Wittke, Assistant City Clerk 

Approved by:    Jim Puffalt, City Manager  

Approved by:    Fraser Tolmie, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be completed by the Clerk’s Department only. 

 

Presented to Regular Council or Executive Committee on _____________________________________________________. 

 

No. _________________________         Resolution No. _________________________________________________ 
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Report Approval Details 

Document Title: City of Moose Jaw 2020 Budgets - -2019-0236.docx 

Attachments: - City of Moose Jaw 2020 Budget.pdf 

Final Approval Date: Nov 22, 2019 

 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

No Signature - Task assigned to Tracy Wittke was completed by assistant 

Maureen Latta 

Tracy Wittke 

 
Jim Puffalt 

No Signature - Task assigned to Fraser Tolmie was completed by workflow 

administrator Maureen Latta 

Fraser Tolmie 
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COMMUNICATION # CC-2019-0241 
 

TITLE:  Solid Waste Utility – Material Crushing and Recycling 

 

TO:  City Council  

 

FROM:  Department of Engineering Services 

 

DATE:  November 27, 2019 

 

PUBLIC:  PUBLIC DOCUMENT    

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

That the City proceed with a tender to crush the diverted asphalt and concrete 

stockpiles at an estimated cost of $179,200 funded from inventory cash flow accounts. 

 

That the City sell all but two years’ worth of the by-products to industry with profits 

offsetting capital requirements in the Water Utility. 

 

TOPIC AND PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this report is to obtain Council’s permission on a new initiative for the City 

of Moose Jaw.  Construction and demolition waste (asphalt and concrete) has been 

diverted from the landfill for the last 3-1/2 years.  This material can be crushed and 

repurposed to the City’s benefit. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The City of Moose Jaw began diverting most construction and demolition waste (asphalt 

and concrete) from the landfill in 2016 beginning with the demolition of the Union 

Hospital.  This practice has continued as part of normal operations in the Solid Waste 

Utility.  The current landfill site does not have adequate storage for these materials, so 

space was made for contractors to deposit this material south of the City’s aggregate 

materials storage compound on High Street West.  This area is nearing full capacity for 

storage and the material should now be processed for re-use by the City or others. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

There is an estimated 18,000 cubic meters (9,200 tonnes) of concrete and 8,000 cubic 

meters (3,600 tonnes) of asphalt based upon a drone survey completed in May 2019.   

 

City of  

Moose Jaw 
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This is a recycling initiative that will have a positive environmental impact, diverting 

material from the landfill through the recycling of a non-renewable resource (aggregate 

material). This volume represents diversion of 4 months of landfill waste over a 3-1/2-year 

timespan or 10% of the total waste stream diverted.  This practice helps prolong the life 

of the landfill, stretching out capital investment requirements 

 

Asphalt reclaim and concrete have material value if processed through a crushing 

operation to render the material into useable aggregate.  The asphalt reclaim can be 

crushed into 3/4-inch aggregate suitable for limited applications in back lanes and 

gravel roads.  The concrete can also be crushed into 7/8-inch crushed aggregate, which 

the City uses in wet excavations such as water main breaks, service leaks and some 

hydrant and valve repairs. Both materials have broader applications for use within private 

industry. The City has obtained an estimate to crush this material at a cost of 

approximately $14.00 per tonne.  The estimated cost to crush all the material is $179,200. 

 

The approximate open market values for 7/8-inch crushed aggregate and 3/4-inch 

crushed asphalt is $45.00 and $35.00 respectively.  The potential value of the material 

recovered by the City is $540,000.  Current uses for this material at the City indicate a 

feedstock inventory of 18 years for the 7/8-inch crushed aggregate and 7 years for the 

3/4-inch crushed asphalt reclaim.   

 

Funding to crush this material can come from the City’s inventory cash flow accounts 

with no requirement for a tax increase or rate charge to the citizens of Moose Jaw.  It is 

recommended that the internal use of this material be charged out at cost recovery, an 

estimated $14.00/tonne.  Due to the volume of material previously indicated, it is 

recommended that the City retain 2 years’ worth of inventory and sell the rest at a slight 

discount to open market rates and re-direct those proceeds into offsetting Capital needs 

in the Water Utility.  The potential maximum value of material sold is $308,800.  Once this 

material is processed, the City can begin to measure and quantify annual diversion and 

incorporate these practices into normal business activities. 

 

 

OPTIONS TO RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. Start to landfill concrete and asphalt reclaim as current storage is near capacity. 

2. Find a new location and continue stockpiling diverted concrete and asphalt. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

$179,200 to be funded from inventory. 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

Public Notice pursuant to the Public Notice Policy as incorporated into the City 

Administration Bylaw No. 5175 of 2016 is not required. 
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PRESENTATION 

 

VERBAL:  Mr. Josh Mickleborough, Director of Engineering, will provide a brief overview 

of this report. 

 

 

REPORT APPROVAL 

 

Written by:  Darrin Stephanson, Manager of Utilities 

Reviewed by: Josh Mickleborough, Director of Engineering Services 

 Tracy Wittke, Assistant City Clerk 

Approved by:    Jim Puffalt, City Manager  

Approved by:    Fraser Tolmie, Mayor 

 

 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 

 

This is a great opportunity for the City to recycle and divert materials from the Waste 

Management Facility and then be able to crush the product into useable aggregate 

that would reduce our costs substantially and finally create the potential to generate 

revenue. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be completed by the Clerk’s Department only. 

 

Presented to Regular Council or Executive Committee on _____________________________________________________. 

 

No. _________________________         Resolution No. _________________________________________________ 
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Report Approval Details 

Document Title: Solid Waste Utility - Material Crushing - CC-2019-0241.docx 

Attachments:  

Final Approval Date: Nov 27, 2019 

 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

 
Josh Mickleborough 

 
Tracy Wittke 

 
Jim Puffalt 

 
Fraser Tolmie 
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COMMUNICATION # CC-2019-0228 
 

TITLE:  Urban Forestry Program 

 

TO:  City Council 

 

FROM:  The Department of Parks and Recreation 

 

DATE:  November 4, 2019 

 

PUBLIC:  PUBLIC DOCUMENT      

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

THAT the City of Moose Jaw establish a dedicated crew to maintain the City’s Urban 

Forest with the source of funding being the 2020 Operating Budget in the amount of 

$45,850.00; and 

 

THAT the City of Moose Jaw expand the contracted block pruning program with the 

source of funding being the 2020 Operating Budget in the amount of $14,185.00. 

 

TOPIC AND PURPOSE 

 

Requesting that City Council approve an additional $45,850.00 to implement a year-

round, 2-person urban forestry crew and that an additional $14,185.00 be approved to 

expand the contracted block pruning program to decrease the City’s tree pruning cycle 

from thirty-three (33) years to fourteen (14) years.  

 

The total cost of both requests is $60,035.00. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Trees are an important part of a vibrant, liveable city. Growing research supports the 

many benefits of an urban forest on the environment, economy and human health. 

Moose Jaw’s publicly owned and managed urban forest has an estimated population 

of fifteen thousand (15,000) trees with an estimated collective value of $90-$100 million.  

Like many other City assets, the City’s urban forest requires annual maintenance funding 

to ensure it remains healthy, safe and valuable into the future. 

 

Please see link below for further information regarding the benefits of an Urban Forest: 
 
https://treecanada.ca/resources/canadian-urban-forest-compendium/3-benefits-of-urban-forests/ 
 

City of  

Moose Jaw 
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Current State of Moose Jaw’s Urban Forest 

 

The Parks and Recreation Department is currently completing a GIS tree inventory of all 

City-owned trees, which provides data on the health, species, size and maintenance 

history of the trees.   

 

There are currently 6,661 trees logged in the inventory.  Of these trees, 522 have been 

marked as “poor health” and have a remaining lifespan of less than ten (10) years, which 

means these trees will need to be removed and replaced in the near future.  Additionally, 

2,128 trees have been marked as “fair health”, indicating that they have an estimated 

remaining lifespan of greater than ten (10) years but need maintenance to prevent a 

further decline in their health and becoming a safety concern.  

 

In order to maintain our urban forest, the Department strives to plant a new tree for every 

tree that is removed. Ideally, every newly planted tree would be pruned approximately 

three (3) years after planting and again approximately seven (7) years after planting to 

ensure a strong structure which reduces the risk of failure when it’s mature and increases 

the trees’ longevity. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

The request to implement a year-round, 2-person urban forestry crew would result in an 

additional seasonal staff being added to the department from the beginning of May to 

the end of October. In November one of the existing crew leads would replace the 

seasonal staff to maintain the 2-person crew for the winter months. 

 

The second request to increase the funding for contracted block pruning would allow 

the City’s in-house forestry crew to focus on other priorities such as responding to requests 

for service, the removal of dead fall, tree planting, stump removals, tree inventories and 

tree inspections.  The request would also assist in decreasing the City’s tree pruning cycle 

to a projected fourteen (14) year cycle instead of the current thirty-three (33) year cycle. 

 

Current In-House Pruning 

 

The in-house tree pruning crew prunes mainly in November, January, February, March 

and April but not full time.  The Parks Department carries seven (7) staff through the winter 

months which try to balance the outdoor rinks, pathway snow removal, cemetery 

operations and tree maintenance.  In December, this crew is primarily concentrated on 

building ice for the outdoor rinks. Pruning can be sporadic in January and February as 

outdoor rinks and snow removal are priority.  Summer tree pruning consists of responding 

to tree damage from storms, addressing safety concerns, addressing infestation or 

disease issues and the removal of trees infected with Dutch elm disease (DED).  The 

pruning crew also does stump removals throughout the warmer months.    

 

The current in-house tree pruning program has pruned 1,355 trees over the past seven (7) 

years which accounts for approximately 9% of our urban forest. 

 

In-house tree pruning is primarily complaint driven but in 2019 City staff were able to 

complete some block pruning. Staff pruned the boulevard trees along the 1100 block of 

Duffield Crescent, all of Currie Crescent and the 900, 1000, 1100 and 1200 blocks of Grace 

Street, for a total of 0.6% of City-owned trees. The estimated cost of in-house block 
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pruning is $150 per tree and this cost will decrease over time with experienced staff and 

a dedicated crew. 

 

A year-round, 2-person forestry crew would provide a greater response time to 

complaints and would deal with tree removals related to underground infrastructure 

replacements, DED removals, stump removals and additional block pruning.  The full-time 

forestry crew would also be two (2) more sets of eyes watching for symptoms of DED, 

Cottony Ash Psyllid, and the future threat of emerald ash borer, which is expected to be 

found in Moose Jaw in the next few years.  

 

It is uncommon for a city the size of Moose Jaw to not have a year-round crew dedicated 

to urban forestry.  For example, the City of Prince Albert has an inventory of 40,000 trees 

with a 4-person year-round crew and the City of North Battleford has an inventory of 

20,000 trees with a 3-person year-round crew. 

 

Current Block Pruning 

 

In 2014, $40,000.00 was added to the Parks and Recreation budget for contracted tree 

pruning.  The budgeted amount is now $47,816.00 and the request for an additional 

$14,185.00 would bring the total budgeted amount to $62,000.00. 

 

The following is a summary of the contracted block pruning that has been completed 

since 2014:  

 
 2019 YTD – No contracted block pruning completed  

 2018 – No contracted block pruning completed 

 2017 - 420 trees completed at a cost of $33,463.00; $80 per tree (2.8% of our trees)  

 2016 - 319 trees completed at a cost of $24,715.00; $78 per tree (2.1% of our trees) 

 2015 - 309 trees completed at a cost of $42,258.00; $136 per tree (2.1% of our trees) 

 2014 - 290 trees completed at a cost of $31,125.00; $107 per tree (2% of our trees) 

 

In 2019, most of the urban forestry work required a contractor due to a shortage of 

qualified in-house staff which did not allow for any block pruning to take place. (Spent 

$37,700 YTD on these services) 

 

In 2018 the Department only contracted emergency calls and trees that the City bucket 

truck could not reach. (Spent $10,900 on these services). The Department was advised 

to limit spending in this area due to potential budget cuts stemming from the Provincial 

government municipal funding reductions.  

 

In 2014/2015 work was concentrated in the Avenues. The boulevard trees in this location 

are large, older trees that require more work, contributing to the higher cost per tree.  

 

It is also important to note that the price for contract tree pruning has been decreasing 

due to greater competition in the market and a possible work slow-down for contractors.  

 

In total, contractors have pruned approximately 9% of our trees since 2014. 
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The following table reflects the City’s current pruning cycle and options to enhance it: 

 
Current Program Trees per year Projected Pruning Cycle 

In-house 200 75 years 

Contracted Block Pruning 260 58 years 

In-house & Contracted Block Pruning Combined 460 33 years 

Expanded Program Trees per year Projected Pruning Cycle 

In-house 600 25 years 

Contracted Block Pruning 500 30 years 

In-house & Contracted Block Pruning Combined 1,100 14 years 

 

*Based on estimated tree population of 15,000 

 

If approved in 2020, contracted block pruning could complete roughly 500 trees and the 

in-house crew could complete an additional 400-600 trees.  The in-house forestry crew 

would also have the opportunity to catch up on other priorities such as responding to 

requests for service, the removal of dead fall, tree planting, stump removals, tree 

inventories and tree inspections.   

 

OPTIONS TO RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. City Council can decide to approve only one (1) of the two (2) recommended 

options.  This was not recommended as the establishment of a full-time urban 

forestry crew and the enhancement of the City’s block pruning program are both 

considered high priority. 

2. City Council can deny the expansion of the Urban Forestry Program in 2020.  This 

option was not recommended as it would result in a further backlog of urban 

forestry work for the Department.  Tree health would continue to decline at an 

increased rate which also heightens safety and liability concerns.  

STRATEGIC PLAN 

 

The Urban Forestry Program request supports the strategic priorities of Community Safety 

and Community Pride. It also aligns with our values of being forward thinking and 

innovative when addressing problems. 

 

OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN 

 

The request also supports the Official Community Plan objectives identified in the Natural 

Environment/Conservation Section of the plan which speaks to ensuring the protection 

and sustainability of the “urban forest” in Moose Jaw through new planting and the 

protection and maintenance of existing trees throughout the City. 

 

BYLAW OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

 

The Parks and Recreation Department is working on a Tree Protection Bylaw which will be 

brought to City Council for approval in 2020.  This new Bylaw would align well with the 

protection and maintenance strategies identified with the expansion of the Urban 

Forestry Maintenance Program. 
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FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

The request would result in an additional $60,035.00 being added to the Parks and 

Recreation Department operating budget. 

 

Breakdown: 

Wages – $25,300  

Seasonal Employee Benefits - $2,050 

Equipment Charges - $18,500 

Contracted Services – $14,185 

 

Note: There will be no additional training costs as one of the City’s certified arborists 

resigned in 2019 therefore training for a new staff person will be required either way. 

 

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS/IMPLICATIONS 

 

There is no privacy implications or other considerations. 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

Public Notice pursuant to the Public Notice Policy as incorporated into the City 

Administration Bylaw No. 5175 of 2016 is not required. 

 

PRESENTATION 

 

VERBAL:  The Director of Parks and Recreation will provide a verbal presentation and will 

be available to answer any questions related to the report. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

i. Pruning Cycles of Urban Forests 

 

REPORT APPROVAL 

 

Written by:  Derek Blais, Director, Parks and Recreation 

 Daily Lennox, Parks Supervisor 

         Sarah Wist Regent, Parks Gardener 

Reviewed by:  Tracy Wittke, Assistant City Clerk 

Approved by:    Jim Puffalt, City Manager  

Approved by:    Fraser Tolmie, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 

 

To be completed by the Clerk’s Department only. 

 

Presented to Regular Council or Executive Committee on _____________________________________________________. 

 

No. _________________________         Resolution No. _________________________________________________ 
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Report Approval Details 

Document Title: Urban Foresty Program - -2019-0228.docx 

Attachments: - attachment i Pruning Cycles of Urban Forests.docx 

Final Approval Date: Nov 21, 2019 

 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

 
Tracy Wittke 

 
Jim Puffalt 

 
Fraser Tolmie 
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Attachment i 

Pruning Cycle of Urban Forests 

 

A systematic regular pruning program has many benefits: 

 Decreased cost per tree pruned 

 Reduced requests for pruning services (complaints) 

 Improved safety and decreased liability 

 Improved pest and disease management (DED, black knot) 

 Improved tree condition and therefore increased tree value and property value 

 Improved sidewalk and street clearance 

 Improved public image 

 Increased tree longevity 
 

Under the current program, the tree pruning cycle for all trees in the City of Moose Jaw 

is projected at thirty-three (33) years. Traditionally, the City has tried to maintain a 7-year 

pruning cycle for our elm population but has not been able to maintain this. 

 

The following is a comparison to pruning cycles in other cities:  

City of Moose Jaw:  33-year cycle, 7-year cycle for elms 

City of Regina:   13 – 15-year cycle 

City of Winnipeg:   12-year cycle 

City of Oakville:   5-year cycle 

City of Lethbridge:   5-year cycle  

Town of Okotoks:   3-year cycle 

City of Swift Current:  5-6-year cycle 

City of Saskatoon:   7-year cycle for boulevards, 13-year cycle for parks 

City of Yorkton:  5-year cycle for elms, as needed for other trees 

City of Prince Albert  19-year cycle, working on a plan to bring it down to 10 years 

 

The City of Lethbridge compiled information from various cities in order to establish their 

current program.  The following was taken from their Urban Forestry Management 

Program: 

“Many cities strive for a five-year cycle, but only a few have the financial resources to 

actually meet this goal.  A five-year pruning cycle is desired for a comprehensive urban 

forestry program and a pruning cycle in the seven to eight-year range is the minimum 

arboriculturally acceptable cycle length.  The longer the time frame between pruning, 
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the greater the cultural requirements will be for the tree.  Cycles beyond eight (8) years 

are further complicated by larger numbers of service requests.  Scheduling problems 

develop that prevent the crews from adhering to a systematic pruning program, and 

cycle goals become more difficult to attain.” 

 

The Department also found the following in The Research Foundation to Tree Pruning: A 

review of the Literature by James R. Clark and Nelda Matheny, published in the May 2010 

issue of Arboriculture & Urban Forestry (page 112):  

“Municipal arborists have benefited from research dealing with pruning of street trees (10 

citations).  In 1981, Miller and Sylvester addressed the question:  What is the appropriate 

length of the pruning cycle for municipal trees?  Using Milwaukee, WI, as a test case, they 

concluded four to five years was the appropriate pruning cycle.  They observed that tree 

condition declined as the length of the pruning cycle increased.” 
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COMMUNICATION # CC-2019-0242 
 

TITLE:  Economic Development Initiatives 

 

TO:  City Council  

 

FROM:  Department of Planning and Development –  

Economic Development Services 

 

DATE:  November 14, 2019 

 

PUBLIC:  PUBLIC DOCUMENT    

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

THAT the City of Moose Jaw contract with MDB Insight to carry out the Business Retention 

and Expansion (BR + E) Triage Project, with a focus on value-add Agriculture and Food 

Production, with the source of funding being the 2020 Operating Budget in the amount 

of $15,000. 

 

THAT the City of Moose Jaw financially support the Rural and Northern Immigration Pilot 

(RNIP) Program with the source of funding being the 2020 Operating Budget in the 

amount of $5,000. 

 

THAT City Council support the inclusion of funding to facilitate participation in trade 

missions with the source of funding being from the Land Reserve in the amount of 

$10,000. 

 

TOPIC AND PURPOSE 

 

Economic Development Services is presenting two new initiatives for consideration in the 

2020 Budget year, including the BR + E Triage Project, and funding support for the Rural 

and Northern Immigration Pilot (RNIP) Program.  

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Economic Development Services continuously looks for opportunities to enhance its 

activities in order to grow the City’s business and industry sector, as well as the labour 

market in order to support and sustain this growth. Business retention, expansion and 

workforce development are key strategic priorities in our economic development 

strategies.  

 

City of  

Moose Jaw 
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During the time the South Central Enterprise Region program was in effect, a strategic 

business expansion and retention program was carried out through funding support from 

the provincial government.  This program achieved critical engagement with the 

business community in order to identify barriers to growth and at the same time identify 

opportunities for growth. The program provided value in this respect and was well 

received by the business community.   

 

Since 2012 there has been no BR & E Program in the City due to lack of capacity to 

support the program.  MDB Insight is a nationally respected Economic Development 

entity that offer a BR + E Triage Project (Attachment 1).  

 

Workforce attraction and attention to labour market needs is an equally critical priority 

for the City. With the loss of labour due to baby boomers exiting the workforce over the 

next number of years, it is of critical importance to attract and retain workers.  The RNIP 

Program (Attachment 2) is a federal government initiative that supports the attraction 

and retention of immigrants to rural and northern cities. The City of Moose Jaw is one of 

eleven (11) communities across Canada that has been successful in offering the pilot 

program and has targeted an April 2020 roll out. There were no funding dollars provided 

to support the pilot program by the federal government.      

 

DISCUSSION 

 

TRIAGE BR + E 

A key and critical tool of any economic development program is a Business Retention & 

Expansion (BR&E) strategy that takes the pulse of local businesses. We currently achieve 

this through visitations, along with business and industry engagement on a modest level 

based on capacity challenges. The proposed MDB Insight BR&E Triage program offers a 

new way to better predict future business opportunities and challenges. It is a 

community/sector outreach plan with 80-100 completed interviews (a critical aspect of 

BR&E). Real time insight is acquired, barriers to growth identified (red flags), benchmarks 

established, and opportunities identified (green flags). The value-add agriculture/food 

processing sector is a key focus and would be our target area, particularly as we attract 

ag value-added/food processing industry to our industrial park. This project would 

support growing existing business where more than 70% of a City’s economic growth 

comes from.  The cost of this initiative would be $15,000.  

 

RNIP PILOT PROGRAM 

The Rural and Northern Immigration Pilot (RNIP) program has been initiated to help spread 

the benefits of economic immigration to smaller communities in Canada.  Moose Jaw is 

among eleven (11) communities selected to participate under the pilot that will: 

 

 use immigration to help meet local labour market needs and support 

regional economic development (a key focus of the City’s economic 

development strategy). How many positions are required in Moose Jaw?  

What type of population would come from those jobs? 

 test a new pathway to permanent residence in rural Canada for skilled 

foreign nationals at various skill levels; and 

 create welcoming environments that encourage and help new immigrants 

to stay in their new communities 
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According to The Conference Board of Canada Mid-Sized Cities Outlook 2019, the City 

of Moose Jaw’s economy generated a total of 1,600 jobs over the past three years, but 

it is expected to shed 500 jobs this year before recovering with the addition of 200 net 

new jobs in 2020. It is expected that with the SaskPower project coming on stream and 

the need for 700 plus construction workers, labour demands will increase over the next 

few years. The accommodation, service and retail sectors will see a demand in labour 

needs over the next few years with the RNIP program helping to address this demand.  

 

There are no federal financial resources available for the pilot communities and as a result 

local securing of funds will be required. The yearly cost to administer and carry out the 

program is anticipated to be $75,000 per year.  The Manager of Economic Development 

is a member of the leadership team that is leading the project. The pilot in Moose Jaw’s 

case will be rolled out in April of 2020. Since no funds were provided by the federal 

government, local initiatives are required to raise funds to support the pilot. Resources 

from the federal government are being provided to assist in establishing the project and 

training the leadership team. 

 

There are however, concerns with the ability to fund the pilot project as a great deal of 

administration and organization will be involved. It is anticipated that a full-time 

administrator will be required for the duration of the pilot program.  

 

In order to effectively attract business and industry, direct approaches to companies 

through visitations is a desirable strategy. Our commitment to Carpere Canada includes 

supporting and participating in missions to meet with potential investors and companies 

outside of the City. It was also addressed through the strategic planning process that 

there was value in the City participating in trade missions. We are projecting a cost of 

$10,000 to help achieve this goal and believe that land sales will be enhanced by this 

kind of activity, therefore funding from this account can be justified. This initiative can be 

considered an investment in future land sales.   

 

OPTIONS TO RECOMMENDATION 

 

 Not approve the funding of the BR + E Triage project at a cost of $15,000. 

 Not approve the RNIP Pilot funding request at a cost of $5,000.  

 Not approve the trade missions funding request at a cost of $10,000. 

PUBLIC AND/OR STAKEHOLDER INVOLVEMENT 

 

The Leadership Team coordinating the RNIP Pilot project includes the Moose Jaw and 

District Chamber of Commerce, South Central Regional Immigration Partnership, Moose 

Jaw Multicultural Council and Accola Immigration Services. The Leadership Team has 

been very active in the application process and planning of the initiative and will perform 

ongoing oversight during the pilot project.  

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

 

The City’s updated Community Strategic Plan identifies that new opportunities, actions 

and tactics are required in order to successfully advance the community into the future. 

Both these initiatives would contribute to achieving that goal. 
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OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN 

 

According to Section 15 of The Official Community Plan, Bylaw No. 5345, the RNIP 

proposal meets the following objective: 

  

15.1 OBJECTIVES 

 

 d) To develop and promote a positive employment environment in 

Moose Jaw which will retain and increase the numbers of young residents 

in the work force. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

 Approval of one or both will have an impact of up to $20,000 on the 2020 

City budget.  

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

Public Notice pursuant to the Public Notice Policy is not required. 

 

PRESENTATION 

 

VERBAL:  The Manager of Economic Development will be presenting the report.  

  

ATTACHMENTS 

 

i. Overview of MDB Insight’s BR + E Triage project.  

ii. BR + E Triage Presentation. 

iii. Overview of the RNIP pilot project.  

REPORT APPROVAL 
 

Written by:  James Dixon, Economic Development Manager 

Reviewed by:  Michelle Sanson, Director of Planning and Development 

 Tracy Wittke, Assistant City Clerk 

Approved by:    Jim Puffalt, City Manager  

Approved by:    Fraser Tolmie, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be completed by the Clerk’s Department only. 

 

Presented to Regular Council or Executive Committee on _____________________________________________________. 

 

No. _________________________         Resolution No. _________________________________________________ 
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Report Approval Details 

Document Title: EDC Initiatives - CC-2019-0242.docx 

Attachments: - MDB Insight BRE Triage.pdf 

- Presentation - Triage BR+E.pdf 

- RNIP Overview.pdf 

Final Approval Date: Nov 21, 2019 

 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

No Signature - Task assigned to Sue Brabant was completed by workflow 

administrator Maureen Latta 

Sue Brabant 

No Signature - Task assigned to Michelle Sanson was completed by 

workflow administrator Maureen Latta 

Michelle Sanson 

No Signature - Task assigned to Tracy Wittke was completed by assistant 

Maureen Latta 

Tracy Wittke 

 
Jim Puffalt 

 
Fraser Tolmie 
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TRIAGE BR+E
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BR+E programs are considered to be 
“foundational” elements of economic 
development services delivery.
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Thriving local businesses drive economic 
growth for communities. They create jobs 
and add to the tax base. Sometimes at a 
faster pace than attracting new investment.
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Business Retention and Expansion 
(BR+E) programs have significant 
benefits, but there are also hurdles for 
economic developers to overcome.
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Financial resources often limited.
Understanding best practices is essential.
Staff time is often stretched. 

Whether you’re new to BR+E or have an
established program in place, the 
challenges are similar.
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Our Triage BR+E solution
overcomes these challenges
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Triage BR+E builds on 
the best of traditional 
approaches while 
eliminating some of the 
biggest downsides.
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Traditional Triage BR+E
Minimizes staff time on 
administration x 
Maximizes staff time on business 
visits x 
Has a timeline of weeks rather 
than months x 
Uses leading-edge best practices x 
Generates statistically significant 
data ? 
Uses derived importance x 
Is affordable ? 
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The result is not 
attributed to chance or 
the opinions of a few.

The findings are 
accurate and reliable. 

This data is statistically 
significant, meaning:
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Prioritize your 
resources
more effectively

Predict, and respond to, 
challenges and  
opportunities on the 
horizon

This real-time, statistically 
significant data means you can:
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What is Derived 
Importance?

Page  211 of 792



Derived importance has been 
used for years in private sector 
market research.

Derived importance gives 
community leaders insight into 
the services that drive re-
investment and overall business 
satisfaction.

Derived importance measures 
how well the community is 
performing on services that 
businesses care about. 
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Derived Importance
Issue Importance Performance Priority 

 

Land costs 0.483 64 1  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Increasing 
Priority 

Zoning 0.480 76 2 
Support from municipality 0.521 79 3 
Development/building permit process 0.420 74 4 
Development charges 0.389 73 5 
Municipal property taxes 0.302 68 6 
Availability of serviced land 0.329 75 7 
Regional/Provincial roads and highways  0.423 80 8 
Local roads and streets 0.315 79 9 
Availability of space for rent or lease 0.205 67 10 
Support from other businesses 0.421 85 11 
Off-site levy 0.450 87 12 
Workforce 0.293 81 13 
Support from local residents 0.542 90 14  

 
 
 

Decreasing 
Priority 

Internet service 0.185 79 15 
Water/wastewater fees 0.178 79 16 
Proximity to rail 0.291 88 17 
Cost of natural gas 0.092 62 18 
Water/wastewater capacity 0.288 90 19 
Availability of adequate housing 0.230 91 20 
Cellular phone service 0.214 94 21 
Quality of Life 0.442 98 22 
Availability of health and medical services 0.078 92 23 
Lack of business tax 0.211 99 24 
Proximity to airports 0.000 70 25 
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Derived Importance can be used to 
Triage the issues and measure 
performance.

Put your time and money towards issues 
you know will have a positive impact on 
the business environment.

No longer will you be distracted by the 
opinions of a few who are telling you to 
focus on issues that you now know are 
not significant.

Benchmark priorities and then measure 
how your efforts have had an impact.
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Reach out
to businesses
in the greatest 
need

Triage BR+E also allows you to 
triage individual business needs:
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For example, a local business’ lease is 
expiring soon. Or it has export potential 
but doesn't know how to capitalize

Issues like these are flagged 
immediately so you can respond 
quickly to keep businesses in your 
community.
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Triage BR+E helps you take the 
pulse of your business community. 
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www.mdbinsight.com

Paul Blais
pblais@mdbinsight.com

1 855 367 3535 ext. 241

Page  218 of 792



Page  219 of 792



Page  220 of 792



Page  221 of 792



Page  222 of 792



Page  223 of 792



Page  224 of 792



 

 

 
 

COMMUNICATION # CC-2019-0243 
 

TITLE:  Parks and Recreation Department Capital Budget Shortfall 

 

TO:  City Council 

 

FROM:  The Department of Parks and Recreation 

 

DATE:  November 15, 2019 

 

PUBLIC:  PUBLIC DOCUMENT     

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

THAT the Parks and Recreation Department complete dressing room upgrades at the Pla-

Mor Palace to better serve all users of the facility with the source of funding being the 

2020 Capital Budget in the amount of $109,000.00; and 

 

THAT the Parks and Recreation Department complete an LED lighting conversion at the 

Moose Jaw Cultural Centre to increase energy efficiency with the source of funding 

being the 2020 Capital Budget in the amount of $80,000.00; and 

 

THAT the Parks and Recreation Department complete irrigation upgrades in the Iron 

Bridge development to improve the quality of the Parks space with the source of funding 

being the 2020 Capital Budget in the amount of $51,000.00; and 

 

THAT the Parks and Recreation Department engage an external consultant to work with 

the Department on completing a Parks and Recreation Master Plan with the source of 

funding being the 2020 Capital Budget in the amount of $55,000.00. 

 

TOPIC AND PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of the report is to provide information to City Council regarding the Capital 

Budget shortfall within the Parks and Recreation Department and to request an 

additional $295,000.00 to the Department’s Capital Budget program in 2020. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Annual capital funding is required in order to properly conserve, maintain and improve 

facilities and assets within the Parks and Recreation Department.   
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A 2017 report from the Department to the Budget Committee estimated that the 

replacement value of the capital assets and facilities identified in the current capital 

program are in excess of $155,000,000. (Does not include Mosaic Place.) 

 

The facilities and assets in the capital program include: 

 
Yara Centre Library/Art Museum Outdoor Basketball (1) 

 

Spray Parks (4) 

Kinsmen Sportsplex City Hall Skate Park (1) Paddling pools (2) 

 

Pla-Mor Palace City Complex 

 

BMX Park (1) 40 kms of Trails  

Phyllis Dewar Pool 

 

Ross Wells Park Dog Parks (2) Rosedale Cemetery 

Natatorium Memorial Field Outdoor Rinks (12) Moose Jaw Cemeteries 

 

YMCA Building Outdoor Sports Fields (17) Playground Buildings (10) 

 

Storage Buildings 

MJ Cultural Centre Ball Diamonds (17) Playgrounds (29) Irrigation Systems 

 

 

The average annual capital funding provided to the Parks and Recreation Department 

over the past 10 years is $1,096,181. The current 2020 Capital Budget allotment for the 

Parks and Recreation Department is $1,072,995, which is a 2% reduction from the 10-year 

average. Other areas of the City’s Capital Budget, specifically the utilities, have seen 

drastic increases in their 2020 capital budgets over their 10-year averages as a result of 

under spending in the past.   

 

If investments are made in facility renewal, life cycles will increase, emergency repairs will 

decrease, and the City will avoid having to allocate large amounts of capital funding to 

completely renew a facility at one-time. 

 

A recent study completed by PwC Canada for the City of Saskatoon indicated that the 

American Public Works Association has published guidelines allocating a minimum of 2% 

to 4% of current replacement value to provide for renewal of facilities, while other 

published guidelines refer to a range of 1.5% to 2.5%. 

 

The current 2020 Capital Budget allotment for the Parks and Recreation Department is 

$1,072,995 which equates to .69% of the approximate replacement value being put 

towards facility renewal.  If the City was to allocate capital funding to facilities based on 

1.5% of the replacement value, annual funding would need to be increased to 

approximately $2,300,000. (114% increase in funding) 

 

With the current capital priorities in other areas, the Parks and Recreation Department 

understands that this would not be immediately feasible but would like to work on a 

sustainable plan to attain proper capital investment levels in the future. 

 

An important part of creating a capital budgeting and life-cycle plan will be the 

implementation of an asset management software system, which will be made available 

through the implementation of a new Enterprise Resource Planning System.  Once a 

proper asset inventory is established, the Department will be able to create accurate 

replacement values and life-cycle projections for each facility. 
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DISCUSSION 

 

An overview of the current Parks and Recreation Department Capital Budget is attached 

to the report and includes the age of each facility and very broad life-cycle estimations.  

The overview also indicates which projects are currently funded and unfunded.   

 

The total value of the funded projects over the 5-year plan is $5,941,043 while the total 

value of the unfunded projects is $8,791,800 with a significant portion of that being the 

outdoor pool replacement. The current funded plan consists strictly of facility renewal 

projects and does not include any new infrastructure projects. 

 

In order to catch up on some of the outstanding priorities the Department is 

recommending that the following projects be considered in the 2020 Capital Budget as 

part of the 1% proposed increase: 

 

 Dressing Room Upgrades – Pla-Mor Palace ($109,000) 

 LED Lighting Conversion – Moose Jaw Cultural Centre ($80,000) 

 Irrigation Upgrades – Iron Bridge ($51,000) 

 Parks and Recreation Master Plan ($55,000) 

 

*detailed descriptions of each project are included in Attachment ii. 

 

It is important to note that the following priority projects would remain unfunded: 

 

 Outdoor Pool Replacement  

 YMCA Building Demolition  

 Iron Bridge Pathway Lights  

 Iron Bridge Landscaping Upgrades  

 Memorial Field Upgrades 

 City Hall Bell Restoration 

 Yara Centre LED Lighting Conversion 

 Outdoor Pickleball/Tennis Courts 

 

OPTIONS TO RECOMMENDATION 

 

City Council may choose to not approve any of the recommendations. 

 

City Council may choose to allocate funding towards other priorities that are not 

identified in the recommendations but included in the unfunded projects list.  

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

 

The report supports the objectives in the Strategic Plan regarding infrastructure renewal 

and innovation. 

 

OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN 

 

The report supports the following Parks, Open Space, Community Recreation objective 

in the Official Community Plan which is to provide parks, open space and recreational 

program delivery at a level that aids in the attraction and retention of young families to 

the City. 
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FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

Approval of the recommendations would result in an additional $295,000 being allocated 

to the 2020 Parks and Recreation Department Capital Budget. 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

Public Notice pursuant to the Public Notice Policy is not required. 

 

PRESENTATION 

 

VERBAL: The Director of Parks and Recreation will present the report and be available to 

answer any questions. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

i. Parks and Recreation Capital Budget Overview 

ii. Summary of Recommended Projects 

 

REPORT APPROVAL 

 

Written by:  Derek Blais, Director of Parks & Recreation 

Reviewed by:  Tracy Wittke, Assistant City Clerk 

Approved by:    Jim Puffalt, City Manager 

Approved by:    Fraser Tolmie, Mayor 

 

 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 

 

This report is the basis for the 1% increase in property taxes that has been 

recommended to provide more funding towards capital requirements for facilities and 

other assets.    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be completed by the Clerk’s Department only. 

 

Presented to Regular Council or Executive Committee on _____________________________________________________. 

 

No. _________________________         Resolution No. _________________________________________________ 
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Report Approval Details 

Document Title: Parks and Recreation Department Capital Budget 

Shortfall - CC-2019-0243.docx 

Attachments: - Attachment i Parks and Rec Capital Budget Overview.xlsx 

- Attachment ii Recommended Projects.docx 

Final Approval Date: Nov 21, 2019 

 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

 
Tracy Wittke 

 
Jim Puffalt 

 
Fraser Tolmie 
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Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 2011 Last Upgrade: 2011

Remaining Life: 67 years (2087) Remaining Life: 17 years (2037)

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 2011 Last Upgrade: 2011

Remaining Life: 32 years (2052) Remaining Life: 27 years (2047)

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 2011 Last Upgrade: 2011

Remaining Life: 17 years (2037) Remaining Life: 17 years (2037)

Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Piping Retrofit $35,000 2022 LED Lighting Upgrades $300,000 2021

Turf Replacement $500,000 2024

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED

Additional Comments:

Turf Replacement currently estimated at $1,000,000 and remaining funding would be from Multiplex Reserve

Attachment i

Parks and Recreation - Capital Budget Overview

Yara Centre
Facility Age: 8 years (2011)

Structure (Concrete & Steel) Mechanical & Electrical Systems

75 years 25 years

Metal Cladding (Roof & Exterior) Windows & Doors

Capital Projects

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

$535,000 $300,000

40 years 35 years

Roofing Cosmetic (Flooring, Painting & Fixtures)

25 years 25 years
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Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 1996 Last Upgrade: 1996

Remaining Life: 51 years (2071) Remaining Life: 1 year (2021)

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 1996 Last Upgrade: 1996

Remaining Life: 16 years (2036) Remaining Life: 11 years (2031)

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: Lower roof in 2017 Last Upgrade: In progress

Remaining Life: Lower - 10 years, Upper - 1 year Remaining Life: 25 years (2045)

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 1975 Last Upgrade: 1996

Remaining Life: 30 years (2050) Remaining Life: 1 year (2021)

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 1996 Last Upgrade: 1996

Remaining Life: 16 years (2036) Remaining Life: 11 years (2031)

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: Lower roof in 2017 Last Upgrade: In progress

Remaining Life: Lower - 10 years, Upper - 1 year Remaining Life: 25 years (2045)

Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Replace Upperbuilt Roof $145,560 2020 (gas tax) Parking Lot Crossing $20,000 2020

Changeroom & Reception Upgrades $163,440 2020 (gas tax) Outdoor Patio Renovation $30,000 2021

Pool Grate Replacement $113,000 2022 Exterior Painting and Brick Restoration $200,000 2021

Consulting - Mechanical System Upgrades $30,000 2024

Dehumidifier Replacement $105,000 2020

Cross Connection Protection $50,000 2022

Cooling System Upgrades $117,000 2022

Installation of Real-Ice System $45,000 2022

Kinsmen Sportsplex - Pool
Facility Age: 24 years (1996)

Structure (Concrete & Steel) Mechanical & Electrical Systems

Facility Age: 45 years (1975)

25 years

Structure (Concrete & Steel)

Metal Cladding (Roof & Exterior)

40 years

Roofing

Mechanical & Electrical Systems

Windows & Doors

35 years

Cosmetic (Flooring, Painting & Fixtures)

25 years

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

Kinsmen Sportsplex - Arena

75 years 25 years

75 years 25 years

Capital Projects

Metal Cladding (Roof & Exterior) Windows & Doors

40 years 35 years

Roofing Cosmetic (Flooring, Painting & Fixtures)

25 years 25 years
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Replace Fire Suppression System $116,000 2020 (gas tax)

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED$885,000 $250,000
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Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 1967 Last Upgrade: 31 years (1989)

Remaining Life: 22 years (2042) Remaining Life: 6 years past estimated life

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 31 years (1989) Last Upgrade: 31 years (1989)

Remaining Life: 9 years (2029) Remaining Life: 4 years (2024)

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 31 years (1989) Last Upgrade: 31 years (1989)

Remaining Life: 6 years past estimated life Remaining Life: 6 years past estimated life

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 1989 Last Upgrade: 31 years (1989)

Remaining Life: 44 years (2064) Remaining Life: 6 years past estimated life

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 31 years (1989) Last Upgrade: 31 years (1989)

Remaining Life: 9 years (2029) Remaining Life: 4 years (2024)

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 31 years (1989) Last Upgrade: 31 years (1989)

Remaining Life: 6 years past estimated life Remaining Life: 6 years past estimated life

Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Heat Exchanger Replacement $170,000 2021 Rink Board and Glass Replacement $90,000 2021

Consulting - Roof Repairs $26,200 2021 Additional Dressing Rooms $109,000 2020

Cross Connection Protection $50,000 2022 Rubber Flooring Replacement $95,000 2022

Installation of Real-Ice System $80,000 2022 Window and Door Replacement $75,000 2024

Roof Repairs $200,000 2022 Interior Painting and Fixture Replacement $70,000 2022

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED$526,200 $439,000

25 years

Capital Projects

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

Metal Cladding (Roof & Exterior) Windows & Doors

40 years 35 years

Roofing Cosmetic (Flooring, Painting & Fixtures)

Pla-Mor Palace - Wally Boshuck Arena

Pla-Mor Palace - Bert Hunt Arena
Facility Age: 31 years (1989)

Structure (Concrete & Steel) Mechanical & Electrical Systems

75 years 25 years

40 years 35 years

Roofing Cosmetic (Flooring, Painting & Fixtures)

25 years 25 years

Facility Age: 53 years (1967)

Structure (Concrete & Steel) Mechanical & Electrical Systems

75 years 25 years

Metal Cladding (Roof & Exterior) Windows & Doors

25 years
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Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 53 years (1967) Last Upgrade: Power supply - 2018

Remaining Life: Remaining Life: unknown - past due

Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Outdoor Pool, Mechanical, Changerooms $3,980,000 2021

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 15 years (2004) Last Upgrade: 15 years (2004)

Remaining Life: 60 years (2080) Remaining Life: 10 years (2030)

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 15 years (2004) Last Upgrade: 15 years (2004)

Remaining Life: 10 years (2030) Remaining Life: 20 years (2040)

Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 15 years (2004)

Remaining Life: 10 years (2030)

Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Cross Connection Protection $50,000 2022 LED Lighting Upgrades $80,000 2020

Cooling System Upgrades $457,000 2021

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED

Facility Age: 53 years (1967)

Pool Structure Mechanical & Electrical Systems

50 years 25 years

75 years 25 years

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

$507,000 $80,000

Roofing Windows & Doors

25 years 35 years

Cosmetic (Flooring, Painting & Fixtures)

25 years

Phyllis Dewar Outdoor Pool

Moose Jaw Cultural Centre
Facility Age: 104 years (Original in 1916 - Major Renovation in 2004)

Structure (Concrete & Steel) Mechanical & Electrical Systems

3 years past estimated life

Capital Projects

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

$0 $3,980,000

Capital Projects
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Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 53 years (1967) Last Upgrade: Humidifier - 2019

Remaining Life: 22 years (2042) Remaining Life: 3 years past estimated life

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 28 years (1992) Last Upgrade: 28 years (1992)

Remaining Life: 3 years past estimated life Remaining Life:

Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 28 years (1992)

Remaining Life: 3 years past estimated life

Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Flooring Replacements $320,000 2022 - 2023 Interior Painting and Fixture Replacement $90,000 2021

Consulting - Roof Repairs $33,000 2023 Library Window & Door Replacement $135,000 2024

Cross Connection Protection $50,000 2023

Roof Repairs $100,000 2024

Consulting - Window Replacements $75,000 2024

LED Lighting Upgrades $120,000 2021

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED

Arts Museum windows have 7 

years. Older side of Library past 

estimated life.

$698,000 $225,000

Additional Comments:

Recommend completing LED Lighting Upgrades and Flooring Replacements a year sooner

Library & Art Museum
Facility Age: Library - 108 years (1912); Art Museum - 53 years (1967)

Structure (Concrete & Steel) Mechanical & Electrical Systems

Roofing Windows & Doors

25 years 35 years

Cosmetic (Flooring, Painting & Fixtures)

25 years

75 years 25 years

Capital Projects

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)
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Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 34 years (1986) Last Upgrade: 34 years (1986)

Remaining Life: 41 years (2061) Remaining Life: 9 years past estimated life

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 4 years (2016 & 2019) Last Upgrade: 34 years (1986)

Remaining Life: 21 years (2041) Remaining Life: 1 year (2021)

Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 34 years (1986)

Remaining Life: 9 years past estimated life

Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Cooling System Upgrades $757,000 2020 Bell Restoration $41,300 2020

Repointing Exterior Bricks $120,000 2021-2022 Boiler Replacement $230,000 2024

Building Automation System Upgrades $100,000 2023 Interior Renovations - Flooring, Paint, Fixtures $350,000 2020-2024

Cross Connection Protection $50,000 2024 City Council Chambers Renovations $15,000 2020

Window & Door Replacement $210,000 2022-2024

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED

Facility Age: 108 years (1912)

25 years

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

$1,027,000 $846,300

City Hall

75 years 25 years

Capital Projects

Structure (Concrete & Steel) Mechanical & Electrical Systems

Roofing Windows & Doors

25 years 35 years

Cosmetic (Flooring, Painting & Fixtures)
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Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 53 years (1967) Last Upgrade: Scheduled for 2020

Remaining Life: 22 years (2042) Remaining Life: 25 years (2045)

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 9 years (2011) Last Upgrade: 9 years (2011)

Remaining Life: 31 years (2051) Remaining Life: 26 years (2046)

Estimated Life: Estimated Life:

Last Upgrade: 9 years (2011) Last Upgrade: 9 years (2011)

Remaining Life: 16 years (2036) Remaining Life: 16 years (2036)

Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Cross Connection Protection $50,000 2022 4-Bay Quonset $120,000 2024

Laundry Facility Upgrades $20,000 2024

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED

Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Annual Facilities Reserve Contribution $190,000 2020-2024 YMCA Building Demolition $295,500 2020

Parks Buildings Accessibility Upgrades $171,225 2020-2024 Scouts Hall-West End Park - Building Demo $80,600 2020

Summer Student - Development Technician $79,000 2021-2024

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED

Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

$440,225 $376,100

City Complex

75 years 25 years

Facilities General

Facility Age: Original structure 53 years (1967). Major renovation in 2011.

Structure (Concrete & Steel)

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

$50,000 $140,000

Capital Projects

Funded (2020 - 2024)

Metal Cladding (Roof & Exterior) Windows & Doors

Mechanical & Electrical Systems

40 years 35 years

Roofing Cosmetic (Flooring, Painting & Fixtures)

25 years 25 years

Capital Projects
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Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Capital Grant Program $160,118 2020 - 2024

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED

Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Park Upgrades $33,000 2020 - 2023 Outdoor Fitness Equipment $11,200 2020

Serpentine Dredging $20,000 2020 & 2022 Pathway Repairs $64,500 2020-2022

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED

Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Automated Irrigation System - MJ Cemetery $78,000 2021 Front Gate Upgrades - Rosedale Cemetery $10,000 2021

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

$78,000 $10,000

Capital Projects

Outdoor fitness equipment has a matching grant opportunity where City would receive $20,000 if matched.  Requested funding would be combined with 

$8,800 donation provided from SSFA 55+ Summer Games Donation.

Cemeteries

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

$53,000 $75,700

Additional Comments:

Capital Projects

Crescent Park

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

$160,118 $0

Capital Projects

Wakamow Valley Authority
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Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Rosswells Park Grandstand Replacement $25,000 2020 Purchase Tip & Role Bleachers $45,000 2024

Fencing/Dugouts - Blackwell Diamond $27,600 2022

Fencing/Dugouts - McCullough Diamonds $75,000 2023

Western Dev. Ball Diamond Parking $60,000 2020

Memorial Field Upgrades $142,000 2020-2022

Ross Wells Lighting Upgrades $200,000 2021

MacDonald Athletic Fields Parking Lot $100,000 2021

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED

Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Sunnngdale Park Building - Exterior Siding $51,000 2021 Outdoor Rink Removal - Admiral Park $10,000 2021

Building Replacement - Moose Square $91,000 2022

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED

Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Clark Gillies Playground Replacement $105,000 2023 Park Furnishings Replacement Program $50,000 2022

Moose Square Playground Replacement $120,000 2023 New Spray Park - Decomission Paddling Pools $200,000 2022

Garbage Bin Replacement Program $50,000 2021-2022

Playground Fencing Replacements $30,000 2021

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

$225,000 $330,000

Capital Projects

Playgrounds & Spray Parks

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

$51,000 $101,000

Capital Projects

Outdoor Sports Fields

Capital Projects

Outdoor Rinks

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

$25,000 $649,600
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Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Pathway Repairs & Development $205,000 2021-2024 Pathway Accessibility Upgrades $250,000 2020-2024

Pathway Amenities Replacement Program $100,000 2020-2024

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED

Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Reforestation and New Tree Maintenance $71,000 2020 - 2023

Boulevard Tree Program $40,000 2021 & 2023

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED

Project Cost Year Project Cost Year

Irrigation System Backflow Valves $50,000 2020 - 2024 Seasonal Washroom Facility - Hamilton Flats $75,000 2022

Irrigation System Sprinkler Heads $60,000 2020 - 2024 Hillcrest Park Pickleball/Tennis Courts $198,600 2020

Park Sign Replacements $60,000 2020 - 2021 Iron Bridge Irrigation Upgrades $51,000 2020

Admiral Park Utility Shack $12,000 2021 Iron Bridge Landscaping Upgrades $120,000 2021 & 2022

Consulting - Irrigation System Controls $15,000 2023 Iron Bridge Pathway Lights $44,500 2020 & 2021

Capital Grant Program Projects $167,500 2020-2024 Permanent Stand for Bell $15,000 2020

Parks & Recreation Master Plan $55,000 2020

City Entrance Landscaping Upgrades $80,000 2021

TOTAL FUNDED TOTAL UNFUNDED

GRAND TOTAL FUNDED PROJECTS:

GRAND TOTAL UNFUNDED PROJECTS:

$5,941,043

$8,791,800

Capital Projects

Trails & Pathways

$364,500 $639,100

Capital Projects

Parks & Open Spaces General

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

$111,000 $0

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

Capital Projects

Reforestation

Funded (2020 - 2024) Unfunded (2020 - 2024)

$205,000 $350,000
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Attachment ii 

Summary of Recommended Projects 

 

Dressing Room Upgrades – Pla-Mor Palace ($109,000) 

The Pla-Mor Palace currently has 4 dressing rooms for each arena.  This causes issues 

when there are both male and female players on the same team as there is no additional 

dressing room to assign them to.  A storage area under the bleachers was converted into 

a “female dressing room” at the Bert Hunt Arena but does not have benches, ventilation, 

a washroom, or showers. 

Previous capital budgets identified $400,000 to build a new dressing room outside of the 

existing building structure.  The large cost was primarily associated with having to expand 

the facilities heating, plumbing and ventilation units. 

The Department has obtained price quotes to renovate space within the existing building 

structure that would allow for 200 sq ft dressing rooms to be built at both the Burt Hunt 

and Wally Boschuk Arenas.  The dressing rooms would include LED light fixtures, 

baseboard heaters, exhaust fans, shower & vanity, rubber flooring and benches. 

 

LED Lighting Conversion – Moose Jaw Cultural Centre ($80,000) 

The progression of lighting has reached a point at which facility lighting needs can be 

served at a much lower cost due to LED technology.  

The LED lighting conversion at the Cultural Centre was initially planned to be completed 

in Phase 2 with the City Hall conversion in 2019.  $120,000 was budgeted for both facilities 

but only ended up being enough to complete City Hall.  The Department is requesting 

that funding be allocated to complete the Cultural Centre in 2020.  Since lighting 

accounts for approximately 50% of a facility’s electricity consumption, cost savings are 

available from the reduced energy consumption estimated at an annual $10,000 - 

$15,000 per year.  This project would also be viewed as a green initiative. 

  

Irrigation Upgrades – Iron Bridge ($51,000) 

Irrigation was only installed in select areas of the Municipal Reserve in the Iron Bridge 

development.  It is recommended that the irrigation coverage be expanded so that turf 

can be properly seeded and maintained in the park area within the residential 

properties.  The lack of irrigation has led to continuous weed control issues and has not 

allowed the turf in the area to properly develop.  
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Page 2 of 2 
 

Parks and Recreation Master Plan ($55,000) 

The Parks and Recreation Department currently does not have any formally adopted 

Master Plans and/or Strategies.  The last plan adopted by the Department was the 1976 

Parks and Recreation Master Plan. 

Master Plans are tools used by municipalities to guide future development in key areas.  

They are generally adopted for 10 to 20-year periods with annual reporting on the 

outcomes and regular feedback from the community through public surveys and 

meetings.  Municipalities typically engage an external consultant to assist with the 

development of these plans as they have the expertise and resources to conduct 

community engagement, provide links to provincial and national initiatives and deliver 

professional formatting.  It is also beneficial to have an external viewpoint from 

professionals that have worked with many other organizations.  The typical timeframe for 

a consultant to complete a master plan is 9 to 12 months. 

The Parks and Recreation Master Plan would: 

 Engage the public and user groups through public meetings and surveys. 

 Establish the community need for recreational facilities, parks and open spaces 

and recreational programs based upon the public and user group input.  

 Review existing recreational programs and provide recommendations for the 

future direction of the role of the Parks and Recreation Department. 

 Review existing facilities and park spaces to determine current and future 

community requirements. 

 Prioritize the current upgrades and future development of recreation facilities 

based on public feedback. 

 

By completing a Parks & Recreation Master Plan, the City will adopt a clear vision for the 

delivery of parks and recreation services in the City of Moose Jaw.  It is anticipated that 

the Plan will provide clear recommendations when it comes to service delivery, 

programming, infrastructure, and finances.   
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COMMUNICATION # CC-2019-0251 
 
 

TITLE:  Slumping Strategy 

 

TO:  City Council 

 

FROM:  Engineering Department 

 

DATE:  November 21, 2019   

 

PUBLIC:  PUBLIC DOCUMENT 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

THAT the City engage an expert consultant to evaluate slumping areas and formulate a 

plan for the City on how to manage these areas consistent with best practice; and, 

 

THAT an estimated cost of $110,000 be partially funded from the former Flood Reserve. 

of $68,095 with the remaining $ 41,905 being funded by the general fund. 

 

TOPIC AND PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this report is to request funding to develop a plan to manage slumping 

areas in the City. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The City has slump zoning along the river valley area.  This zoning has been in place for 

some time and serves as an information tool to ensure citizens are aware of the risk.  Over 

time best practices for municipalities have changed with regard to due-diligence on the 

oversight, management and communication of slumping areas.  The intent of this is to 

update the City’s management approach. 

 

Efforts have been made over the last year to monitor the slumping areas.  These include 

regular photographs of the areas to monitor for movement and the edge of the slumping 

areas has been surveyed. 

 

The City is aware of four (4) active slumping areas that movement is being monitored.  

See Attachment i. 

 

 

 

 

City of  

Moose Jaw 
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DISCUSSION 

 

Slumping can cause safety and protection of property issued and concerns. 

 

The goal of the plan is to create determine potential courses of action to manage the 

risk and optimize any potential investment.  And to ensure that any action that is taken is 

consistent with the plan and are in line with best practice.   

 

OPTIONS TO RECOMMENDATION 

 

Status quo – leave existing monitoring in place. 

 

Other direction of City Council. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

A one-time Capital cost of $110,000 would be required.  Any significant potential costs 

would be identified in the report and subject to further City Council approval. 

 

PRESENTATION 

 

VERBAL:  Mr. Josh Mickleborough, Director of Engineering Services, will provide a brief 

overview of this report. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

i.  Map of Slump Areas 

 

REPORT APPROVAL 

 

Written by:  Josh Mickleborough, Director of Engineering Services 

Reviewed by:  Tracy Wittke, Assistant City Clerk 

Approved by:    Jim Puffalt, City Manager  

Approved by:    Fraser Tolmie, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be completed by the Clerk’s Department only. 

 

Presented to Regular Council or Executive Committee on _____________________________________________________. 

 

No. _________________________         Resolution No. _________________________________________________ 

  

Page  244 of 792



 

 
3 

Report Approval Details 

Document Title: Budget Initiative - Slumping - CC-2019-0251.docx 

Attachments: - Slump map.docx 

Final Approval Date: Nov 27, 2019 

 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

No Signature - Task assigned to Tracy Wittke was completed by delegate Myron 

Gulka-Tiechko 

Tracy Wittke 

No Signature - Task assigned to Tracy Wittke was completed by workflow 

administrator Jim Puffalt 

Tracy Wittke 

 
Jim Puffalt 

 
Fraser Tolmie 
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COMMUNICATION # CC-2019-0250 
 

TITLE: Request to Proceed with Construction of the New Fluoridation System 

WW16 BPWTP Water Supply Transmission Line Project – Phase II 

    

TO:  Special City Council  

 

FROM:  Department of Engineering Services 

 

DATE:  November 22, 2019 

 

PUBLIC:  PUBLIC DOCUMENT    

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

THAT City Council approve construction of the new Fluoridation System at the Buffalo 

Pound Water Treatment Plant (BPWTP) and Northeast Reservoir (NER) influent line 

including tie ins and increase the 2020 capital budget to $2,300,000. 

 

TOPIC AND PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this report is to obtain approval for the additional cost to proceed with 

construction of the new Fluoridation System and NER influent line including tie ins.  

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The City retained Stantec Consulting Ltd. as the engineering consultant for this project. 

The project has two phases: 1) The Pipeline Construction and 2) The Pumps & Electrical 

Upgrades. This phasing is based on BPWTP current improvements and upgrades to their 

electrical systems that will also house the City’s pumps and electrical system.  This work 

at BPWTP was completed this spring of 2019 and therefore, Phase II – Pumps & Electrical 

Upgrades construction can be carried out. 

 

Construction of Phase I began on November 30, 2017 and was substantially completed 

on December 4, 2018 after a successful pressure test of 750 mm diameter, 19 kilometres 

long PVC pipe with 17 trenchless crossings.  

 

The NER pumphouse and influent line were constructed and commissioned in 1982. 

Replacement of this line was not considered during preliminary design in 2011 due to its 

current service life at that time. The plan was to carry out an assessment to determine the 

condition of the steel line. Assessment ranges from $25k to $50k depending on the extent 

of work, which partially covers the replacement cost. Upon further review of 

methodology and associated cost, it was concluded to not undertake this assessment. 
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The City Council, at its regular meeting held dated April 22, 2019 approved to complete 

the detailed design of a fluoridation system to replace the old fluoridation system, which 

has exceeded its service life. The existing fluoride system had experienced several 

mechanical and hardware issues.  It is currently out of service because replacement parts 

are difficult to obtain and/or obsolete.  

 

DISCUSSION 

 

This report addresses two issues related to the Buffalo Pound Transmission Line Project – 

Phase II – Pumps and Electrical Upgrades.   

 

1. Fluoride system – replacement of an existing system.  This was not previously 

budgeted and not part of the original scope.  It is recommended to be included 

due to failure of the existing system. 

2. Influent tie in at the Northeast reservoir – replacing existing tie in line.  This was not 

previously included in the budget and was not part of the original scope.  It is 

now recommended to be included as the line is reaching the end of its 

expected life and would be the only section of the transmission line not 

replaced, and a contractor will be doing tie in work at the plant. 

These items require additional budget, the overall budget impact is outlined in this 

report.   Both items are being considered to be included as part of the Phase II – Pumps 

and Electrical Upgrades tender package, scheduled for tender this year.    

 

Fluoride system 

The current system has failed and is no longer operational.  The regulatory permit to 

operate includes fluoridation of our water at the BPWTP.  Council approved design of the 

replacement system and design of the fluoride system is now complete.  A letter from 

Saskatchewan Health Authority was received by the Department of Engineering Services 

in support for community water fluoridation. The letter states “that many governments 

and health organizations in Canada support the fluoridation of drinking water as an 

important public health measure to prevent tooth decay.  Community water fluoridation 

remains a safe, cost-effective and equitable public health practice and an important 

tool in protecting and maintaining health and well-being of Canadians.” The 

advantages and benefits are also stated in this letter.  See Attachment i. 

 

Influent tie in at Northeast reservoir 

This is the replacement of the section of line from the new transmission line to the 

Northeast reservoir. It includes a new Flow Control Valve (FCV), 160m of pipe and an 

access for maintenance 

 

Replacement the NER influent line is recommended based on the following factors:  

 

1. Age – the line is approaching 38 years of its service life. 

2. Swabbing structures – no pig launch and retrieval. 

3. Maintenance, serviceability and operations. 

4. Appropriate sizing and optimum capacity.  
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Under normal conditions, a steel water pipe service life span is about 20 to 50 years. For 

steel water pipes, it is recommended to carry out swabbing as a preventive measure to 

maintain and prolong its service life. Not having these structures will expedite the 

deterioration of its condition.  

 

In addition, the new influent line is designed to accommodate future expansions of the 

reservoir. A reservoir expansion is one of the recommendations stated in Associated 

Engineering’s Potable Water Storage and Pumping Facilities Conceptual Study dated 

August 2018 to meet current capacity requirements of two times average day demand 

(short term) and to meet projected demand for a population of 45,000 (long term). The 

replacement of NER influent line will complete the renewal of the entire transmission line, 

which will ensure a safe and reliable supply of potable water.  

 

With the construction contract for Phase II scheduled to be committed in January 2020, 

it is recommended the full amount be available to proceed with the construction and 

complete the project in its entirety.  

 

The total estimated cost of the entire project is summarized below: 

 

 
 

** Class 2 estimate with -10% to +15% accuracy range. 

 

Current: 2019-2023 Capital Budget 

 

Budget 

allocated 

2018 CF 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total 

$ 3,659,694 $ 3,500,000 $ 100,000 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 7,259,694  

 

Proposed: 2020-2024 Capital Budget 

 

Phase II 
2019 CF 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total 

$ 6,100,000 $ 2,300,000 $0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 8,400,000  

 

 

Market conditions will determine the final construction costs.  

Description Subtotal 10% Contingency PST (6%) Total

Engineering Services - Stantec 1,976,520.96$   -$                     -$                     1,976,520.96$       

Phase I Pipeline Contract - Hamm 17,090,020.65$ -$                     1,025,401.24$       18,115,421.89$     

Land Management Services 

(TWS, Crop Loss, Easement, 

land reinstatement & others)

269,880.11$      -$                     4,235.57$             274,115.68$         

Phase II Pumps Upgrades** 3,230,000.00$   323,000.00$         213,180.00$         3,766,180.00$       

BPWTP Tie Ins** 1,100,000.00$   110,000.00$         72,600.00$           1,282,600.00$       

HSR Tie Ins** 780,000.00$      78,000.00$           51,480.00$           909,480.00$         

NER Tie Ins** 860,000.00$      86,000.00$           56,760.00$           1,002,760.00$       

Fluorosilicic Acid System** 1,030,000.00$   103,000.00$         67,980.00$           1,200,980.00$       

TOTAL 26,336,421.72$ 700,000.00$         1,491,636.81$       28,528,058.53$     
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OPTIONS TO RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. Reject this report and not replace the Fluoridation System at Buffalo Pound 

Water Treatment Plant and the influent line at Northeast Reservoir, and direct 

Administration to make changes to the City’s permit to operate with the 

provincial regulator. 

2. Other City Council direction to proceed with one or the other of the fluoride 

systems or influent line at the Northeast Reservoir. 

 

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS/IMPLICATIONS 

 

There is no policy or privacy implications, official community plan implementation 

strategies or other considerations. 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

Public Notice pursuant to the Public Notice Policy is not required. 

 

PRESENTATION 

 

VERBAL:  Administration from the Department of Engineering Services will provide a verbal 

overview of the report. 

 

ATTACHMENT 

 

i. Saskatchewan Health Authority – Position Statement on Community Water 

Fluoridation dated April 16, 2019. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL 

 

Written by:  Mark Caringal, Engineering Technologist 

Reviewed by:  Josh Mickleborough, Director of Engineering Services 

 Tracy Wittke, Assistant City Clerk 

Approved by:    Jim Puffalt, City Manager  

Approved by:    Fraser Tolmie, Mayor 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

To be completed by the Clerk’s Department only. 

 

Presented to Regular Council or Executive Committee on _____________________________________________________. 

 

No. _________________________         Resolution No. _________________________________________________ 
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Report Approval Details 

Document Title: WW16 Transmission Line - Phase II Fluoridation System and 

Northeast Reservoir Influent - CC-2019-0250.docx 

Attachments: - Attachment i -  Letter Public Health Services  - Water 

Fluoridation.pdf 

Final Approval Date: Nov 27, 2019 

 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

 
Josh Mickleborough 

 
Tracy Wittke 

 
Jim Puffalt 

 
Fraser Tolmie 
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COMMUNICATION # CC-2019-0245 
 

TITLE:  2020 Investment Portfolio Drawdown 

 

TO:  City Council 

 

FROM:  Department of Financial Services 

 

DATE:  November 18, 2019 

 

PUBLIC:  PUBLIC DOCUMENT    

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

THAT City Council approve the drawdown of the investment portfolio in the amount of 

$3,067,341 for 2020. 

 

TOPIC AND PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide an outline of the proposed 2020 drawdown of 

Investment funds for use in the City’s 2020 Budgets. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The City of Moose Jaw has approximately $100 million dollars managed by professional  

portfolio managers. The expected returns of the City’s Long Term Investment Portfolio is 

6%; the expected return of the Moderate Term Investment Portfolio is 4.25%; Inflation is 

estimated to be 2%. 

 

The City utilizes the investment income from these invested funds to fund a variety of 

programs and services. As a result, it is necessary each year to estimate the required 

drawdowns and incorporate them in the proposed budgets. 

 

The drawdown of funds is subject to City Council approval as outlined in the Investment 

Committee Bylaw  No. 5558: 

 

“5(7) Annually determine the sustainable amount of Investment Portfolio funds 

that will be drawn down to support City Operations and submit this 

recommendation to City Council for approval.” 
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DISCUSSION 

 

The City of Moose Jaw utilizes investment earnings to provide funding for a variety of 

programs and services. The chart below outlines the 2020 proposed drawdown of those 

investment earnings: 

 

 
 

 

The funds indicated for drawdowns will be utilized in the City’s budgets to fund programs 

and services. For example, $2,610,000 of earnings from Capital Expenditure Fund Equity 

and Land Development Funds is utilized in the General Capital budget to fund 

Transportation and Parks & Recreation capital projects. Likewise, $130,000 in earnings on 

Perpetual Care funds is utilized in the General Operating Budget to fund cemetery 

maintenance. 

 

Any shortfalls arising from the 2020 drawdowns will be adjusted for in the 2021 drawdown 

request. So, if investment portfolio performance does not meet the targeted amounts, 

then the adjustment will be made in the next budget drawdown. These proposed 

drawdowns have been discussed with the City’s Investment Committee. 

 

OPTIONS TO RECOMMENDATION 

 

 City Council provide alternative direction.  

 

 

Estimated Estimated

2019 Balance      Drawdowns Drawdown
 

Long Term Funds 

Capital Expenditure Fund Equity 37,661,167$ Investment Earnings in excess of inflation - 4% 1,506,447$            

Equipment Reserve Fund LT Portion 20,000,000$ Reinvest -$                         

Portion of Land Development Funds 10,974,417$ All Investment Earnings - 6% 658,465$                

Snowbird’s Scholarship Fund 9,643$            75% of Investment Earnings - 75% of 6% 434$                        

Columbarium Perpetual Care 92,677$          Periodic - reinvest -$                         

Perpetual Care Fund 2,164,435$    Investment Earnings - 6% 130,000$                

Total Funds 70,902,339$ 

Medium Term Funds 

Cemetery Deferred Revenue Fund 1,270,092$    Periodic - 4.25% 53,979$                  

Housing Reserve 1,006,590$    Annual Investment earnings after inflation - 2.25%  $                   22,648 

Police Accumulated Surplus 1,268,507$    Periodic - reinvest -$                         

City Accumulated Surplus 1,626,465$    Currently overdrawn - Target 5% Op Budget - reinvest -$                         

Landfill Closure 9,767,239$    Utilized when landfill closes 2021 to 2061 - reinvest -$                         

Mosaic Place & Yara Centre 557,127$       Utilized for major expense - reinvest -$                         

Supp Pension Reserve 2,431$            Paid out when employees leave City - reinvest  $                            -   

Outdoor Columbarium Reserve 49,512$          Periodically to fund new niches - $20,000 drawdown  $                   20,000 

Crematorium Bld reserve 126,493$       Periodic - reinvest -$                         

Emp Disability and Death fund 1,113,925$    reinvest -$                         

Contaminated Site Reserve 235,293$       reinvest  $                            -   

Portion of Land Dev funds 10,974,147$ Drawdown $161,300 SE Industrial Subdivision;

4.25% remaining balance
620,846$                

Other Funds held in Trust 407,220$       drawdown investment earnings of 4.25% 17,307$                  

Parking Reserve 1,654,035$    Annual Investment earnings after inflation - 2.25% 37,215$                  

30,059,076$ 3,067,341$            
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STRATEGIC PLAN 

 

A sound Investment Policy supports the City’s Strategic Plan by providing an ongoing 

renewable source of funding for the objectives and actions of that plan.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

The drawdown of investment earnings will allow the City to provide funding for a 

number of Operating and Capital programs contained in the 2020 budget.  

 
PRESENTATION 

 

VERBAL:  Mr. Brian Acker, Director of Financial Services, will provide a verbal overview of 

the report. 

 

 

REPORT APPROVAL 

 

Written by:  Brian Acker, B.Comm., CPA, CMA, Director of Financial Services 

Reviewed by: Tracy Wittke, Assistant City Clerk  

Approved by:    Jim Puffalt, City Manager 

Approved by:     Fraser Tolmie, Mayor  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be completed by the Clerk’s Department only. 

 

Presented to Regular Council or Executive Committee on _____________________________________________________. 

 

No. _________________________         Resolution No. _________________________________________________ 
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Report Approval Details 

Document Title: 2020 Investment Portfolio Drawdown - CC-2019-0245.docx 

Attachments:  

Final Approval Date: Nov 22, 2019 

 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

No Signature - Task assigned to Tracy Wittke was completed by assistant 

Maureen Latta 

Tracy Wittke 

 
Jim Puffalt 

 
Fraser Tolmie 
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COMMUNICATION # CC-2019-0234 
 

TITLE:  Moose Jaw Board of Police Commissioners & Moose Jaw Police Service  

  2020 Budget Submission 

 

TO:  City Council 

 

FROM:  Board of Police Commissioners 

 

DATE:  November 6, 2019 

 

PUBLIC:  PUBLIC DOCUMENT    

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. THAT representatives of the Moose Jaw Police Service be allowed to present to City 

Council the Moose Jaw Police Service 2020 Operating and Capital Budget estimates in 

accordance with section 33 of The Police Act, 1990. 

 

2. THAT this communication be referred to Budget deliberations. 

 

TOPIC AND PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of Communication #2019-0234 is to transmit the 2020 Operating Budget 

estimates and funding request of the Moose Jaw Police Service. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Pursuant to The Police Act, 1990, the Moose Jaw Board of Police Commissioners is 

responsible for overseeing the operations of the Moose Jaw Police Service, including the 

preparation of its annual budget.  On the other hand, City Council is responsible, in its 

discretion, for providing the monies with which to fund the City’s police force.  Thus, while 

City Council decides how much funding will be allocated for policing, the Board decides 

how those monies will be spent. 

 

In accordance with The Police Act, 1990, the Provincial Government delegated has 

made compulsory the establishment of a Board of Police Commissioners where the 

municipality has a population in excess of 5,000.  The Moose Jaw Board of Police 

Commissioners is the governing body of the Moose Jaw Police Service.  Pursuant to 

provincial legislation, the Board is invested with special statutory powers and is 

independent of the municipal Council, with one exception; the Board of Police 

Commissioners is dependent upon City Council for funding. 
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Section 33, of The Police Act, 1990, provides in part, as follows: 

 

33 (1) On or before a day set by bylaw, a board shall submit to the council, for  

the council’s approval, the board’s estimates of all moneys the board 

requires for the next fiscal year for the board and police service. 

 

 (2) Where the council does not approve the estimate submitted by the board,  

the council shall immediately cause the estimates to be returned to the  

board, together with the council’s reasons for not approving the estimates. 

 

 (3) Where the estimates are returned pursuant to subsection (2), the board  

shall submit revised estimates to the council for the council’s approval. 

 

 (4) If the council does not approve the revised estimates submitted pursuant  

to subsection (3), the council shall determine the gross amount of the 

estimates, and the council’s determination is final. 

 

Finally, members of City Council will be reminded that although City Council, as the body 

responsible for raising revenues, has the ultimate authority to determine the level of 

funding and, thus, the level of policing which will be provided to the citizens of Moose 

Jaw, City Council does not have an entirely free hand.  All municipalities are required to 

ensure that a certain standard of policing is maintained.  Specifically, section 25 of The 

Police Act, 1990 provides as follows: 

 

25 A municipality: 

 

 (a) is responsible for maintenance of law and order within its boundaries; 

 

(b) shall provide policing services to maintain a reasonable standard of law 

enforcement; and 

 

(c) shall provide adequate and reasonable facilities required for the policing 

services mentioned in clause (b). 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

The Moose Jaw Board of Police Commissioners considered the attached report dated 

October 16, 2019 respecting the 2020 Operating Budget of the Moose Jaw Police 

Service/Board of Police Commissioners at the Board’s public meeting held October 16, 

2019.  The following resolution was adopted: 

 

“THAT the Board of Police Commissioners approve the 2020 Operating Budget with 

estimated expenditures of $11,507,162 less anticipated revenues of $1,377,599 resulting 

in a net 2020 Operating Budget of $10,129,563, which reflects an increase of $319,916 or 

3.26% and submit same to City Council for consideration.” 

 

In addition, the Board of Police Commissioners is requesting $110,000 be directed to the 

Police Service from the Traffic Safety Reserve which is funded from net proceeds from 

the Automated Speed Enforcement program. 

The Board of Police Commissioners is also requesting $67,500 in capital funding in 2020. 
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OPTIONS TO RECOMMENDATION 

 

City Council has the following options in accordance with The Police Act, 1990 (in no 

particular order of priority). 

 

1. Approve the Moose Jaw Police Service 2020 Operating and Capital Budget 

estimates and funding request as submitted by the Moose Jaw Board of Police 

Commissioners in the net amount of $10,129,563; $110,000 in Traffic Safety 

Reserve funding and $67,500 in Capital funding 

 

2. Decline to approve the estimates for the 2020 Operating Budget as submitted by 

the Moose Jaw Board of Police Commissioners and return same to the Board, 

together with City Council’s reasons for not approving the estimates. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

The Moose Jaw Police Service 2020 Operating Budget (net budget totals) is $10,129,563, 

which reflects an increase of $319,916 or 3.26%. 

 

A contribution of $110,000 from the Traffic Safety Reserve. 

 

Capital Funding of $67,500. 

 

PRESENTATION 

 

VERBAL:  Members of the Board of Police Commissioners and Moose Jaw Police Service 

will be in attendance at the meeting to provide a brief overview of the 2020 Operating 

Budget submission. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

i. Moose Jaw Board of Police Commissioners/Moose Jaw Police Service 

2020 Operating Budget Presentation.  

ii. Moose Jaw Board of Police Commissioners/Moose Jaw Police Service 

2020-2024 Capital Budget. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL 

 

Written by:  Tracy Wittke, Assistant City Clerk 

Approved by:    Myron Gulka-Tiechko, City Clerk/Solicitor 

Approved by:    Jim Puffalt, City Manager 

Approved by:    Fraser Tolmie, Mayor 
 

 

 

To be completed by the Clerk’s Department only. 

 

Presented to Regular Council or Executive Committee on _____________________________________________________. 

 

No. _________________________         Resolution No. _________________________________________________ 
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Report Approval Details 

Document Title: Board of Police Commissioners Moose Jaw Police Service 

2020 Budget Submission - -2019-0234.docx 

Attachments: - MJPS 2020 Operating Budget.pdf 

- MJPS 2020-2024 Capital Budget.pdf 

Final Approval Date: Nov 12, 2019 

 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

 
Myron Gulka-Tiechko 

 
Jim Puffalt 

 
Fraser Tolmie 
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REPORT TO BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

TITLE: Moose Jaw Board of Police Commissioners / Moose Jaw Police Service
2020 Operating Budget Presentation

DATE: 16 October 2019

PUBLIC: This is a Public Document

IN-CAMERA: N/A

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Police Commissioners:

Approve the 2020 Police Service operating budget with estimated expenditures of $11,507,162
less anticipated revenues of $1 ,377,599 resulting in a net 2020 operating budget of
$10,129,563, which reflects an increase of $319,916 or 3.26%.and submit same to the council.

BACKGROUND:

The Moose Jaw Police Service prepares an operating budget for the Board of Police
Commissioners annually.

The Police Act, 1990, legislates the budget approval process between the board and the
council.

33(1) On or before a day set by bylaw, a board shall submit to the council, for the council's
approval, the board's estimates of all moneys the board requires for the next fiscal year
for the board and police service.

(2) Where the council does not approve the estimates submitted by the board, the council
shall immediately cause the estimates to be returned to the board together with the
council's reasons for not approving the estimates.

(3) Where the estimates are returned pursuant to subsection (2), the board shall submit
revised estimates to the council for the council's approval.

(4) If the council does not approve the revised estimates submitted pursuant to subsection
(3), the council shall determine the gross amount of the estimates, and the council's
determination is final.

(5) When the council has:
(a) approved the estimates; or

(b) determined the gross amount of the estimates;

The board shall submit a copy of the estimates to the commission.
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2020 Operating Budget
Moose Jaw Board of Police Commissioners / Moose Jaw Police Service

The 2020 budget has been prepared in accordance with the Police Service's strategic direction
and based on its core values of 'Integrity, Vision, Community'. It proposes a 3.26% increase in
the net police service budget, which incorporates a previous addition in 2019 of two provincially-
funded police officers to assume additional responsibilities and increase effectiveness in
maintaining public safety in the Moose Jaw area.

This budget also supports an increase in the Service's authorized strength from 57 to 58 police
officers in 2020. The business case for an Immediate Priority Officer position is attached. .

The Strategic Priorities of the Moose Jaw Police Service:

The Moose Jaw Police Service is committed to meeting the priorities of our community through
a service delivery model that is effective and efficient. We work to keep Moose Jaw a safe,
harmonious and inclusive community.

With an authorized strength of 57 police officers, 19 full-time support staff, 5 full-time Corps of
Commissionaire positions, and 10 Victims Services volunteers, the Moose Jaw Police Service
continues to provide policing services to residents, businesses and visitors in the City of
Moose Jaw.

Our statutory responsibilities include:

• the preservation of peace;
• the prevention of crime and offences against the laws in force in the municipality;
• the apprehension of criminals, offenders and others who may lawfully be taken into

custody;
• traffic safety and enforcement;
• mental health intervention;
• addiction intervention;
• child protection;
• domestic violence intervention;
• alcohol intervention;
• victims of crime support;
• motor vehicle collision investigation.

In order to meet the requirements of prevention and community safety, our mandate includes

working collaboratively to reduce environmental, social and behavioural factors that are

conducive to crime and disorder. Consistent with the Community Safety and Wellbeing

framework, we have a leadership role in the Hub, which brings agencies together to address

complex problems that affect our community's safety, and in the Community Based Coalition,

which provides strategic direction to our region's community building. Our participation with

these groups provides the framework for our collaborative preventative work.

Operationally, we work closely with other police services to share intelligence and conduct joint

investigations into criminal activity that affects not only Moose Jaw residents, but also residents

of our region, province and country: criminal activity is not constrained by jurisdictional

boundaries; effective police responses must be cross-jurisdictional to enhance safety within our

community.
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DISCUSSION

OUR ENVIRONMENT

Much of the data used to evaluate policing relate to reported crime. The Canadian Centre for
Justice Statistics provides comparative data for police services in July of each year: the data for
2018 are the most recent figures available.

Moose Jaw's crime rate was below the provincial average in 2018, but higher than that of
Saskatoon, Regina, Weyburn and Estevan.

2018 Crime Rates
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Statistics Canada. Table 35-10-0182-01 Incident-based crime statistics, by detailed violations. police services in Saskatchewan

Moose Jaw's crime rate has increased from 2013 to 2018, reflecting similar provincial and
national patterns.
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The Crime Severity Index (CSI) provides weights to different types of crime. The more serious
the crime, the greater it is weighted. Moose Jaw's CSI is consistent with that of Regina and
Saskatoon.
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Statistics Canada. Table 35-10-0182-01 Incident-based crime statistics, bv detailed violations. police services in Saskatchewan

Since 2013, Moose Jaw's CSI has increased.
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This increase in the CSI reflects an increase in the Violent Crime Severity Index. The Violent
CSI has increased 122% since 2013, reflecting increases in robberies, assaults and other
crimes against the person.
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The number of reported crimes increased in 2018. Although crime response accounts for
roughly one-quarter of police calls for service, many of these crime-related calls require
significant subsequent investigation and court preparation, which are complex, time-consuming
and circumscribed by legislated and constitutional requirements. All investigations resulting in
charges require exhaustive reporting and disclosure. Investigative, records management and
court support personnel provide these mandatory services.

Criminal Code Incidents (Excluding Traffic)
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Calls for Service, which are incidents to which a police officer is dispatched, remain consistent
year to year.

Calls for Service 2014-2018
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Although response to crime is a priority, other responses are essential elements of crime
prevention and are documented in police reports. The majority of calls for service relate to
situations of social disorder that, if not properly addressed, can lead to criminal activities. These
calls often include responses to mental health, alcohol, drug, addictions, domestic dispute,
traffic, child protection, and other disruptive situations. Reflecting this, the number of submitted
reports submitted continues to be higher than the number of criminal incidents.
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With the introduction of automated speed enforcement in 2015, the number of traffic tickets
issued increased. The number of issued tickets declined in 2016 and 2017 due to a decrease in
the number of violations recorded and a decrease in the number of recorded violations that
were suitable for processing as a result of technical difficulties with the system. Those technical
issues were corrected and the number of tickets issued increased in 2018.
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In this environment, the Moose Jaw Police Service engages the community with the lowest
number of officers as a percentage of the population among Saskatchewan police services.

2019 Police Officer Rate
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COMMUNITY BUILDING

Leadership and participation in efforts to enhance community wellbeing are essential in
reducing crime and social disorder. The research confirms that harmonious and inclusive
communities are safe communities. Moose Jaw Police Service members continue to be integral
participants in community activities:

• School resource officers
• First Nations events
• Pride celebrations
• Sidewalk Days
• Law Enforcement Torch Run for Special Olympics
• Graffiti removal
• Voltage
• Remembrance Day
• Toy Run
• Riverside Mission
• Police Service Awards
• Special Olympics events
• Violent Threat Risk Assessments
• Saskatchewan Air Show

Members are involved in committee work at the local, provincial and national level to improve
policing and quality of life in our community:

• Community Based Coalition
- Hub
• Powwow Committee
• Newcomers Committee
• Drug Strategy
• Crime Prevention Committee
• Saskatchewan Association of Chiefs of Police
• Canadian Association of Chiefs of Police
• Criminal Intelligence Service Canada
- Criminal Intelligence Service Saskatchewan
• Organized Crime Committee
• Traffic Safety Committee
• Selective Traffic Enforcement Program
• Saskatchewan Police College Training Advisory Committee
• Wakamow Aboriginal Community Association
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SERVICE ENHANCEMENTS

The Service has introduced a number of enhancements that continue to operate:

• Automated Speed Enforcement implementation
- Community Round Dance
• Community Sweat Lodges
• Introduction of the Intervention K-9
• Graffiti removal and prevention
• Traffic Safety and driver training program for newcomers
• Mental health program for first responders
• After hours calls for city services
• New video recording system to meet public complaint and court disclosure requirements
• Violent Threat Risk Assessments
• Enhanced employee wellness program
• Citizens Police Academy
• Moose Jaw Warriors Police Academy
• Updated parking enforcement infrastructure and processes

These activities will continue in 2020, and will be augmented by additional initiatives:

• Increased focus on traffic safety
• Regional traffic safety expansion
• Preparation for computer assisted dispatch capability
• Replacement of radio and telephone systems
• Information technology upgrades
• Incorporation of Local Authority Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy

processes
- Enhanced responses to child abuse, sexual assault, mental health intervention, serious

crime, illicit drugs, and habitual offenders

This work is instrumental in maintaining public confidence in policing. Eighty-four percent of
respondents in the most recent survey (2012) reported being satisfied with policing, with 'very
satisfied' being the most frequent response. Prairie Research Associates and the University of
Regina are currently conducting a community survey of policing in Moose Jaw; the results
should be available in November.
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INITIATIVES

Police and Crisis Team

In October of 2018, the Moose Jaw Police Service and Saskatchewan Health Authority created
the Police and Crisis Team (PACT). This team joins police officers and mental health
professionals on a full-time basis to provide active supports in the city and region. Two mental
health professionals funded by the province work out of the police service building; one
provincially-funded police officer works full-time with the PACT and is supported by other
officers as needed. The Service is working with the Ministry to add another provincially-funded
officer to this team.

South Central Child Abuse Investigation Team

In the autumn of 2018, the Moose Jaw Police Service and Ministry of Social Services created
the South Central Child Abuse Investigation Team. A social worker is stationed at the police
service, working directly with police officers investigating child abuse incidents. The partnership
increases the effectiveness and efficiency of investigations, enhancing positive outcomes for
victims, their families, and the community.

Combined Traffic Services Saskatchewan

The 2020 budget includes the continuation of the enhanced focus on traffic safety, illicit drug
interdiction, and emergency responses in the city and surrounding area.

Combined Traffic Services Saskatchewan (CTSS) is a program implemented by the Ministry of
Justice and Saskatchewan Government Insurance designed to increase road and community
safety. It forms an operational partnership between municipal police and RCMP tasked with
policing defined regions, which include the municipalities and their surrounding areas.
Municipal police positions are funded by the province.

The duties of this program include four objectives:

• Improve police response to emergency calls for service, including property crimes that are
in progress;

Enhance uniform visibility and presence in rural Saskatchewan;

• Increase the enforcement of drug trafficking on Saskatchewan's roadways; and

• Enhance the safety of Saskatchewan roads by reducing the number of serious collisions
and fatalities.

The Moose Jaw Police Service is an active participant in the CTSS program. Four of the five
MJPS positions funded provincially are now deployed to CTSS.
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Missing and Murdered Indigenous Women and Girls Inquiry

The Service participated in the Missing and Murdered Indigenous Women and Girls inquiry,
reviewed its files to ensure all relevant incidents were identified, and provided all relevant
information to the inquiry as it moved forward. The MJPS will respond to any additional
requests.

Local Authority Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Inclusion

Municipal police services were included in the LAFOIP legislation in 2018. The Moose Jaw
Police Service continues to deploy significant time and effort to ensure that business systems
and processes are compliant with the legislation, appropriate infrastructure is in place, and
requests are responded to as required by the legislation.

Cannabis Decriminalization and Regulation

The Police Service worked at the national and provincial level to inform the regulatory
framework for cannabis production, distribution and consumption. This work continues as the
legislation and regulatory framework are evaluated.

Tactical Capacity

The Moose Jaw Police Service has seen a significant increase in the number of incidents it
responds to that require tactical intervention. The MJPS has relied on its policing partners to
provide those tactical responses. However, with the increase in incidents, the Service is
beginning the creation of a trained and equipped tactical team, using existing personnel, that
can respond quickly and effectively to provide safe resolutions to dangerous situations.

Immediate Priority Officer

The business case for an Immediate Priority Officer is attached to this report. This additional

position represents a 0.31 percent increase in the 2020 operating budget.
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FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Within this environmental and operational framework, the 2020 operating budget provides for
the effective and efficient delivery of policing services and incorporates new initiatives that
maintain a focus on strategic priorities.

The 2020 operating budget expenditures total $11,507,162 which reflects a 3.51% increase
over 2019. With the inclusion of increased revenues, the net 2020 operating budget for the
Police Service is $10,129,563, which reflects a 3.26% increase from 2019.

Moose Jaw Police Service
2020 Operating Budget

2019 Budget 2020 Budget $ Increase % Increase

Operating
Expenditures

Revenues

Net Operating
Budget

$11,116,746

$1,307,099

$9,809,647

$11,507,162

$1,377,599

$10,129,563

$390,416

$70,500

$319,916

3.51%

5.39%

3.26%

The attached 2020 Budget Summary of Expenditures in Detail (Police) provides details.

The chart below identifies the Moose Jaw Police Service operating budget as a percentage of the
city's operating budget in recent years.
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ATTACHMENTS:

1. 2020 Budget Summary of Expenditures in Detail (Police).
2. Business Case for One Additional Police Officer Position Immediate Priority Officer.

Respectfully Submitted by,

f•A-^S^<

Rick Bourassa, Chief of Police

RB/la
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Business Obj
Unit Acct

Description

Moose Jaw Police Service
2020 Operating Budget

2018 2019 2019
Actual Projection Budget

2020 INC %
Budget (DCR) Change

Labour Costs
121
121
121
121
121
121
121
121
121
121

6002
6005
6006
6007
6008
6009
6010
6072
6120
6135

Communications
121
121
121
121

6015
6061
6016
6016

121 6125

EXPENDITURES:

SALARIES
WORKER'S COMPENSATION
CANADA PENSION PLAN
EMPLOYMENT INSURANCE
GROUP INSURANCE
LONG TERM DISABILITY INS
PENSION
RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION
VICTIM SERVICES
COMMISSIONAIRES

OFFICE EXPENSE
COMPUTER SOFTWARE
TELEPHONE
RADIO SYSTEM LEASED LINES
TELEPHONE
RADIO COMMUNICATIONS

7,647,352
69,791

201,149
89,420
18,187

115,785
550,278
60,000
97,003

346,755

73,491
72,176

107,046
31,339

8,052,884
73,334

225,094
88,270
23,097

140,820
609,142

20,000
83,599

315,000

65,000
95,000
85,000
30,000

8,002,884
73,334

225,094
88,270
23,097

140,820
609,142
20,000
83,599

315,000

76,451
110,000
85,000
19,000

8,276,828 $
80,737

245,705
90,017
26,618

147,590
662,226

20,000
83,599

315,000

76,451
110,000
100,000
40,000

273,944
7,403

20,611
1,747
3,521
6,770

53,084

21,000

3.42
10.09
9.16
1.98

15.24
4.81
8.71

110.53
138,385 104,000 104,000 140,000 36,000
25,790 10,000 4,000 4,000

Building/Vehicles

34.62

121
121
121
121
121
121
121
121
121

6021
6031
6032
6033
6040
6090
6138
6139
6121

Equipment Reserve
121 6020

BUILDING RESERVE CONT
ELECTRICITY
NATURAL GAS
WATER
GENERAL REPAIRS & SUPP
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
MAINTENANCE
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

k

EQUIPMENT RESERVE CNT

Training/Uniforms/Other
121
121
121
121
121
121
121
121
121
121
121

50
50
50
50
50
50
50
50
50

6101
6025
6026
6027
6028
6132
6133
6136
6137
6190
6199

5303
5304
5305
5307
5309
5310
5312
5313
5313

CLOTHING
TRAVEL & CONVENTIONS
EDUCATION & TRAINING
DUES & MEMBERSHIPS
SUBSCRIPTIONS & PUBS
WITNESS FEES & SP EXP
LEGAL FEES
PRISONER MEALS
IMPOUNDING OF VEHICLES
CANINE UNIT
PROVISION FOR SURPLUS(DEFICIT)

Total Expenditures

REVENUES:
POLICING SERVICES
CONTRIBUTION SPEED ENF.
UNCLAIM/SEIZED PROP SALE
PRISONER COST RECOVERY
VICTIM SERVICES REVENUE
PROVINCIALLY FUNDED POSITIONS
ALARM RESPONSE - ANNUAL FEE
ALARM RESPONSE - FALSE ALARMS
CONTRACTUAL REVENUES

Total Revenues

Total Net Police Service Budget

15,000
58,115
15,083

8,906
88,021

106,737
56,717

2,969
208,866

292,723

86,072
8,754

73,296
5,257
3,419

174,396
42,713

3,982
2,279

31,389
141,543

$ 10,931,799

(227,997)
(70,000)
(16,138)

(105,480)
(83,600)

(687,655)
(30,301)
(4,355)

(215,000)
$ (1,440,526)

$ 9,491,273

15,000
71,803
13,700

2,261
50,000

100,000
63,000
7,500

199,000

345,991

74,000
7,500

60,000
5,000
2,500

150,000
32,000
4,000
2,000

32,000

$ 11,153,495

(200,000)
(90,000)

(500)
(90,000)
(83,599)

(630,000)
(30,000)
(8,000)

(215,000)
$ (1,347,099)

$ 9,806,396

15,000
71,803
13,700

2,261
50,000

162,500
40,000

4,000
199,000

345,991

74,000
12,000
60,000
4,000
2,500

130,000
32,000
4,000
2,000

16,300

$ 11,116,746 $

(160,000)
(90,000)

(500)
(90,000)
(83,599)

(630,000)
(30,000)
(8,000)

(215,000)
$ (1,307,099) $

$ 9,809,647 $

15,000
74,000
15,000

2,400
50,000

112,500
40,000

5,000
199,000

345,991

74,000
12,000
60,000

5,000
2,500

130,000
60,000
4,000
2,000

20,000

11,507,162 $

(200,000) -$
(110,000) -$

(1,000) -$
(100,000) -$
(83,599) $

(630,000) $
(30,000) $
(8,000) $

(215,000) $
(1,377,599)

10,129,563 $

2,197
1,300

139

(50,000)

1,000

1,000

28,000

3,700

390,416

40,000
20,000

500
10,000

(70,500)

319,916

3.06
9.49
6.15

(30.77)

25.00

25.00

87.50

22.70

3.51%

25.00

100.00
11.11

5.39%

3.26%

58
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Business Case for One Additional Police Officer Position

Immediate Priority Officer

SUMMARY

In recent years. Moose Jaw has seen an increase in demands on its police service. Violent crimes,

firearms incidents, tactical situations, and the increasing prevalence of contributing factors such as

methamphetamines have taxed police resources. At the same time, provincial funding of police

resources previously deployed to address these issues through prevention and serious crime

investigation have been redeployed to traffic safety and other provincial priorities. This has left a gap in

the police service's capacity to bring resources to bear on pressing matters; it has also contributed to an

increased need to bring officers in at overtime rates to provide initial call response and provide tactical

and investigative support. Although the police service has redeployed its existing resources and

introduced innovations to reduce the impact of these gaps and maximize its capacity, the resource

challenges and overtime requirements continue.

This business case presents a plan to add an additional officer to reduce overtime and enhance the

police service's capacity to address serious issues facing our community.
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SECTION I

CHALLENGES

A. The Environment

The Canadian Centre for Justice Statistics released 2018 crime data in July. Those data identify the

current situation and trends across the province. Of the six major municipal police services in

Saskatchewan, the Moose Jaw Police Service polices in a community with the second-highest crime rate,

consistent with, but exceeding, the crime rates in both Saskatoon and Regina.

2018 Crime Rates
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The Crime Severity Index (CSI) shows the severity of crime in Moose Jaw is consistent with that of

Saskatoon and Regina.

2018 Crime Severity Index
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Moose Jaw's Violent CSI has more than doubled in the past six years, reflecting an increase in serious

violent crime.
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Since 2017, the Moose Jaw Police Service has seen an increase in violent crimes involving weapons. 32

violent offences were committed using a firearm and 69 violent offences with the use of a knife. In

comparison, 2014-2016 incidents resulted in 11 violent offences with a firearm and 43 with a knife.
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During the same time periods, the Moose Jaw Police Service has laid 55 charges relating to

methamphetamine and 18 related to cocaine. In comparison, 2015 to 2018 there were only 10 charges

relating to meth and 8 relating to cocaine:

Meth and Cocaine Increase
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Frontline officers are reporting an increase in contact with armed suspects reflective of the numbers

indicated above. As well, officers are seeing an increase in the number of people they are encountering

on the streets or detaining in cells over the past few years who are under the influence of meth and

cocaine and are involved in violence.

B. Tactical Calls:

As a result of this changing environment, the Moose Jaw Police Service is faced with providing careful

tactical responses in order to decrease risk and increase the safety of officers and the public. Since

2017, the Moose Jaw Police Service has increased tactical considerations to numerous incidents. There

are also a number of incidents such as search warrant executions for drugs and guns where tactical

assistance would have and should have been considered if those resources were readily available to the

Moose Jaw Police Service. The following represent recent examples of high risk incidents in Moose Jaw

requiring a tactical response.

• Moose Jaw Police received a call from a male near the hospital stating that he was suicidal, had

taken pills and had a gun. Gunshots and muzzle flash could be seen and heard by the officers as

they arrived in the area. This prompted further tactical considerations. A perimeter was

established around the open area where the suspect was believed to be. Police also initiated a

hold and secure on the hospital to ensure the safety of the people in the hospital. Police further

took steps to evacuate nearby businesses. Police were able to locate the suspect lying in a field.

He was taken into custody without incident and transported to hospital to ensure mental health

needs were met and later charged with several firearms offences. Police located a loaded

shotgun and spent casings a short distance from where the suspect was found.

• Police entered into an investigation involving a sexual assault where a suspect broke into a

residence armed with a shotgun, unlawfully confined a woman and attempted to sexually

assault her. The suspect fled the home prior to police arrival and was tracked to a second
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location. As officers began setting up a perimeter the suspect fled out the front door and

encountered an officer, pointed the shotgun directly at the officer's chest and threatened to

shoot if the officer drew his gun. Fortunately, the suspect did not shoot the officer, instead

turned and ran. Officers set up surveillance at another residence where the suspect was known

to have access to and believed to be present inside. Moose Jaw Police began preparing for

additional resources including tactical support. However, the suspect exited the home prior to

supports arriving. Officers challenged the suspect who was taken safely into custody without

further incident.

• Members of the Moose Jaw Police Service received search warrant authorization at a Moose

Jaw home in relation to a homicide involving a gun. Prior to execution of the search warrant a

male was noted leaving the residence and was detained. The subject was found to have a

loaded handgun in his possession. The RCMP Emergency Response Team was called to assist

with entry. A tactical entry was done and three additional people were taken into custody. In

addition crystal meth was found in the residence.

• Police received information that a suspect known for drug activity and violence was in

possession of a stolen handgun and shotgun. Due to the risk of a warrant execution on the

suspect's residence, the RCMP Emergency Response Team was contacted. However, the

occupants of the home exited prior to the arrival of the tactical team and had to be taken down

by under-equipped members. They were taken into custody outside the residence without

incident. A subsequent search resulted in the seizure of both firearms which had since had their

serial numbers filed off and it is suspected that they would have been used for nefarious

purposes.

• Moose Jaw Police Service executed a search warrant at a motel with the assistance of the RCMP

Emergency Response Team. Suspects in the motel room had a history of violence and were on

court orders prohibiting the possession of firearms. A tactical entry was performed and suspects

were taken into custody without incident. Upon search of the room a stolen loaded shotgun was

located. Both suspects have strong ties to the drug world.

• Police received a call that occupants of a Moose Jaw home were being held against their will and

extorted. Further information was that suspects may belong to an Outlaw Motorcycle Gang.

Information was also received that the suspects had firearms. The Moose Jaw Police Service

initiated Incident Command protocols and the RCMP Emergency Response Team was put on

standby. After a lengthy standoff, MJPS officers were able to negotiate the occupants out of the

home. A subsequent search of the residence, resulted in the seizure of a firearm and in one

charge related to that. Police were unsuccessful in laying further charges as occupants were

uncooperative possibly out of fear of retaliation had they cooperated with police.

• Police received information that two men wanted on Canada wide warrants were hiding in

Moose Jaw. The warrants were out of Edmonton and were related to firearms offences

including a drive by shooting at an Edmonton business. These men were also considered armed

and dangerous. The RCMP Emergency Response Team was contacted to provide assistance. A
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tactical entry was subsequently made at a Moose Jaw apartment building. Two men were taken

into custody without incident. A 9mm handgun loaded with hollow point ammunition was

located under the bed where one of the suspects had been sleeping.

• Officers attempted to arrest a male wanted on a Canada wide warrant. The accused had a

history of violence and suicidal ideologies. Upon contact, the accused fled into an apartment

pursued by officers. The accused pulled a large knife and brandished it towards police then

barricaded himself inside with three other people present in the suite. Police began negotiating

with the accused for his surrender for approximately 9 hours before the RCMP Emergency

Response Team was able to mobilize and execute an entry. Upon entry the accused attempted

to slash one of the officers with the knife. The accused was taken into custody and transported

to hospital with self-inflicted injuries.

• The Moose Jaw Police Service and Regina Police Service worked together over several days in

attempting to locate two Moose Jaw residents with gang affiliation and with violent and

weapons related histories who were wanted in connection with a violent crime spree through

southern Saskatchewan including a murder that occurred in Regina. Information was received

that the suspects had returned home to Moose Jaw to hide. As a result, the Regina Police

investigators, SWAT team and incident command partnered with Moose Jaw Police

investigators, negotiators and incident command to search and subsequently rule out a number

of possible locations where the suspects were hiding. The suspects were later apprehended east

of Regina following a high speed pursuit.

C. Staffing

To carry out its duties and responsibilities, and meet these demands, the Moose Jaw Police Service has a

current authorized strength of 57 members. This has increased from an authorized strength of 52

members in 2012.

Number of Authorized Police Officers
2012-2018

60 52 53 54 54 54 57 57

40

20

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Of the 57 authorized positions, 5 are provincially funded. This increased by two positions (from 3 to 5) in

2017 to provide for 2 provincially-funded members to be deployed to Combined Traffic Services

Saskatchewan (CTSS). CTSS members police in the city for 30% of the time and in the surrounding

region for 70% of the time. Additionally, 2 provincially-funded positions that had been assigned to
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serious crime analysis and investigation were re-deployed to CTSS in 2018, leaving a gap in operational

capacity. Currently 4 of the 5 provincially-funded positions are deployed to CTSS; the 5th position is

deployed the Police and Crisis Team (PACT).

The Board of Police Commissioners funds the other 52 police officer positions, which has increased from

49 in 2012.

Board of Police Commissioners

Funded Positions 2012-2018

60 49 50 51 51 51 52 52
50

40

30

20

10

0
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

With these additional positions, the City of Moose Jaw continues to have the lowest number of police

officers on a per capita basis.

2019 Police Officer Rate

300 264

250

20° • • ^ 185 184 168

150

100

50

0
Prince Estevan Saskatoon Regina Weyburn Moose

Albert Jaw

Although the approved strength is 57, the actual number of officers is often below that for a number of

reasons:

Parental Leave -The current collective agreement provides 20 weeks of wage top up (to 85%) as a

benefit. Many members take this 20 weeks, and many continue on parental leave for longer periods.
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Sick Leave/lnjuries - Over the past few years, the Moose Jaw Police Service has had members off on

sick leave or injury. While members are provided with workplace accommodations at their earliest

opportunity to return, these members often require non-operational accommodations due to the

nature of their abilities. An increase in mental health and PTSD related injuries has also occurred with

one member having applied for long term disability with little optimism of ever returning to regular

duties.

Temporary Vacancies - MJPS has to manage temporary vacancies on a regular basis as a result of

retirement, resignation, and termination. These vacancies can be up to a year as the MJPS needs to

recruit new members which can take several months. Upon hiring a new member they are sent to the

Saskatchewan Police College for approximately 20 weeks. Upon graduation they then continue their

training in the field for a minimum of 16 additional weeks until they are fully operational. This could

result in a vacancy up to 1 year before a departing member is replaced with a new fully operational

member.

Training - due to the complexities of policing and the high level of accountability and high consequence

of error, the MJPS provides mandatory legislated training to all of its members annually and has

members attending required courses at the Saskatchewan Police College and Canadian Police College as

well as external training opportunities to ensure highly trained and capable police officers. Some courses

and training such as IDENT (16 weeks) K-9 (12-16 weeks) can be lengthy and take officers away from

their normal operational duties for significant periods of time.

D. IMPACTS

Because of these factors, the police service must often fill vacancies. Section 17.6(g) of the collective

agreement between the Moose Jaw Police Association and the Board of Police Commissioners states the

assigned strength of each patrol team shall consist of 1 Sergeant, 1 Corporal and 6 uniformed

constables. Due to this section of the agreement, the MJPS is continually faced with reallocating

resources from other areas to frontline patrol shifts when vacancies occur that drop shift strength below

8 members. As a result, personnel are often re-assigned from other important areas including the

Criminal Investigations Section and Community and Strategic Services to patrol teams that have

vacancies. This interferes with MJPS ability to be strategic and proactive due to the resource drain on

these other important areas that are tasked with driving forward community involvement, special

project, drug and major crime projects and investigations.

Due to the above causes of reductions in operation strength, the MJPS also suffers a financial impact in

order to balance the staffing shortages with effective and safe policing resources. In 2018 members

were called out 52 times to cover shift shortages totalling $55,709.23. From January 1 to August 30,

2019, members were called out 44 times at an overtime cost of $46,300.
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SECTION II

ORGANIZATIONAL RESPONSES

To address these operational challenges, the police service has introduced a number of initiatives to

maximize the utilization of its resources in order to be operationally effective and financially efficient:

A. SCENE OF CRIME OFFICERS

The police service reduced the number of members deployed to the Forensic Identification Unit from

two to one by developing Scene of Crime Officers on each shift to take on forensic identification duties

in addition to their regular duties.

B. POLICE AND CRISIS TEAM

To reduce operational demands and increase effectiveness, the MJPS and Saskatchewan Health

Authority (SHA) developed and deployed its Police and Crisis Team (PACT). The SHA currently has two

full-time mental health professionals assigned to the PACT. The MJPS currently has one full-time

provincially-funded officer assigned to the team and has trained members on each of its shifts to fill in

when the permanent member is not on duty. This complement has done exceptional work both inside

the city and in the surrounding region: the Moose Jaw PACT supports rural policing services by providing

services within a 100 kilometre radius of the City of Moose Jaw, thereby reducing demand on the

hospital located in the City and policed by the MJPS. PACT has been successful in reducing police calls

for service relating to mental health challenges, reducing hospital emergency room attendance and wait

times for police, and reducing the number of individuals requiring incarceration and care in the police

detention centre.

From January to July of 2019, PACT data show its effectiveness in reducing police calls for service,

reducing hospital attendance, and reducing incarceration:

Month

January

February
March

April

May
June

July

TOTAL

Calls Diverted from
Police to PACT

24
36
38
32
41
43
38

252

Situations Diverted

from Emergency Room

10
34
38
37
25
35
19

198

Individuals Diverted
from Police Cells

3
8
5
2
4
7
2

31
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C. SOUTH CENTRAL CHILD ABUSE INVESTIGATION TEAM

Working with the Ministry of Social Services, a joint police and social services team was developed and

deployed in 2018 to increase effectiveness and efficiency in child abuse investigations, which are

complex and resource-intensive. A social services professional is now stationed in the police

headquarters building, providing support to police and receiving support from police, to provide more

timely responses, reduce the number of redundant investigative steps and free up police resources, and

increase the number of positive outcomes. This partnership has been successful in maximizing

effectiveness and efficiency in resource deployment.

Since its inception, this team has responded to 58 situations.

D. INCREASED CANINE CAPACITY AND REDEPLOYMENT

The police service increased the number of Canine Unit members from two to four with external funding

provided for the purchase of the additional dogs. Previously, the two Canine Unit members were not

assigned to a patrol shift and could not provide 24-hour coverage, requiring call out on overtime when

they were not working. The four Canine Unit members are now assigned to each of the four patrol

shifts, providing responses to non-canine calls for service when not engaged in Canine Unit duties. By

now having 24-hour Canine Unit availability, calling out on overtime has been nearly eliminated.

E. INCREASING TACTICAL CAPACITY

Working with its policing partners, the police service is in the initial stages of developing a tactical team

to increase effectiveness and efficiency in its responses to high risk incidents. Other police agencies are

providing training and operational policy development assistance to the Moose Jaw Police Service in this

process. This enhanced capability will be developed and implemented using existing resources that will

remain assigned to regular duties when not required for tactical response.

F. REQUEST TO THE PROVINCE FOR ADDITIONAL FUNDED POSITIONS

The police service has begun discussions and is preparing a business case to present to the Ministry of

Corrections and Policing this autumn for an additional three funded police positions. One position

would be assigned to the PACT to increase its effectiveness; two positions would be deployed to serious

crime, firearms, and gang suppression initiatives.
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SECTION III

PROPOSED RESOLUTION

A. IMMEDIATE PRIORITY OFFICER

All of these initiatives have been implemented to maximize the financially-responsible use of existing

resources in addressing increasing demands. However, even with the introduction of these efficiencies,

resourcing challenges continue to require overtime expenditures to maintain minimum levels of service.

The addition of one officer specifically tasked with filling gaps as they arise will reduce the overtime

demands.

The proposed increase in approved strength by one officer will allow the Moose Jaw Police Service to

implement a newly created position called an Immediate Priority Officer (IPO). The purpose of the IPO

will be to move around the various areas of the Moose Jaw Police Service to provide support and

decrease overtime costs for calling out members. The IPO position can further be used as a

developmental tool for newer officers as it will provide opportunities and exposure to a number of

different sections within the Moose Jaw Police Service including but not limited to patrol teams A-D,the

Criminal Investigations Section (CIS), Forensic Identification Section (Ident) and Community and Strategic

Services (CSS).

The IPO will be assigned to different areas of the Moose Jaw Police for a duration of time. As an

example, the IPO may be seconded to CIS to assist with a special project for a few months, then moved

to a patrol team to fill a vacancy caused by a parental leave.
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This new position will create a number of benefits including:

Providing support to the Criminal Investigation Section for special projects

Assisting Strategic Services in community initiatives

Providing support to Ident

Fill temporary vacancies on a patrol team allowing to better manage resource problems

resulting from vacancies

Reduce the potential likelihood of grievances occurring from perceived violations of the

collective agreement in relation to patrol shift strength

Provide a developmental opportunity for newer members to experience various areas of the

Moose Jaw Police Service

Reduce overtime costs.

The Moose Jaw Police Association has been consulted and supports this initiative.

Implementation of this position will include operational and financial measurements to determine

success of the position. It will allow for a needs analysis for future needs of an additional IPO and

potentially the creation of an Immediate Priority Team (IPT) to further enhance capabilities and further

offset overtime and operational costs.

B. FINANCIAL IMPACTS

In 2018, members were called out on overtime because of shortages on the shifts 52 times at a cost of

$55,700. From January 1 to August 30, 2019, members were called out due to shift shortages 44 times at

a cost of $46,300. Should this figure increase consistently, the total at year end would exceed $60,000.

These overtime expenditures can be mitigated by the Immediate Priority Officer position. Although the

exact amount of reduced overtime is uncertain, based on operational experience, it is reasonable to

predict a reduction of 50 percent of overtime costs, or a projected $30,000.

Should an additional officer be approved for 2020, that position would be filled in August at a cost of

$30,314 in 2020. This has been included in the 2020 operating budget, representing a 0.31 percent

increase. In subsequent years, this position would be included in the annual operating budget at the

applicable salary level.

SECTION IV

CONCLUSION

Taking these factors into account, increasing the authorized strength of the police service by one officer

will increase operational and investigative effectiveness, provide resources to areas of strategic focus

and community priorities, and reduce overtime demands.
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MOOSE JAW BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

2020-2024 Capital Budget

16 October 2019

This is a Public Document

IN-CAMERA: N/A

RECOMMENDATION

1. THAT the Board of Police Commissioners approve the 2020-2024 Capital Budget request and
submit the budget to council as legislated in The Police Act, 1990.

BACKGROUND

The Moose Jaw Police Service prepares a Capital Budget for the Board of Police Commissioners annually.

In 2018 and 2019, funding from the Capital Budget was applied to two major projects:

roof repair and replacement;
main floor renovations.

These significant expenditures effectively depleted money available for capital projects.

In its 2019 Capital Budget discussions, the Board of Police Commissioners determined the Capital Budget
requests should be $65,000 for 2019, increasing by $2,500 each year in subsequent years to ensure
sufficient funding is available to meet demands.

DISCUSSION

The 2020-2024 Capital Budget continues with the format adopted by the Board of Police Commissioners. It
includes funding of $67,500 in 2020 increasing by $2,500 each year through to 2024. That funding
supports several upcoming projects:

elevator replacement;
relocation of meeting room to public area;
converting dark room to file storage;
upgrading conference room;
upgrading flag and memorial area;
firearms range safety upgrades; and
contingency funding for unanticipated occurrences.
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FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Capital Budget submission for 2020-2024 reflects $67,500 in 2020 increasing by $2,500 annually in
subsequent years.

2020

Capital Funding | $67,500

2021

$70,000

2022

$72,500

2023

$75,000

2024

$77,500

Total

$355,000

ATTACHMENTS

1. Nil.

Respectfully Submitted by,

^-.

Rick Bourassa, Chief of Police

RB/la
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MOOSE JAW BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

Request from Council for Information on Methamphetamine

20 November 2019

PUBLIC: This is a Public Document

IN-CAMERA: N/A

RECOMMENDATION

1. THAT the Board of Police Commissioners forward this report to Council for their information as
requested.

BACKGROUND

At the Board's Budget presentation to Council on November 18, 2019, the Service was asked to provide
information about the number of charges laid relating to methamphetamine.

DISCUSSION

As a result of this request, Moose Jaw Police Service records were checked and additional information is
attached to this report in relation to methamphetamine and cocaine related offences by year. Also included
is a list of seized items related to weapons and drug investigations from 2018 to September 2019.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

1. None with regard to this Report.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Summary of Drug Offences and Drug and Weapon related seized.

APPROVAL OF REPORT RECEIVED

Rick Bourassa
Chief of Police

RB/la
To be completed by the Clerk's Department only.

Presented to the Regular meeting of the Moose Jaw Board of Police Commissioners or the In-Camera meeting of the
Moose Jaw Board of Police Commissioners on _....._.
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Summary of Drug Offences and Drug and Weapon related seized

2017

9
3

2018

28
11

2019
29

5

2014 2015 2016
Meth 118

Coke 10 6 12

Guns and Drugs 2018 to September 2019

File 18-6438 (Possession for the Purpose of Trafficking (PPT), firearm charges, proceeds of crime

-12 gauge shotgun

-ammunition for shotguns, rifle and handgun

-92.60 grams of Methamphetamine (street value $9300)

- 8 grams of Cocaine (street value $800)

-10 cell phones

-magazine full of .22 caliber bullets

-shotgun ammunition

-.22 Mossberg715T Rifle

18-1222KPPT)

-14.7 grams of Methamphetamine (street value $1500)

"3.9 grams of cocaine (street value $400)

-shotgun ammunition

-4 cell phones

18-12619 (numerous firearm charges!

-sawed off shotgun

-restricted handgun (Ruger Blackhawk Revolver) (stolen)

-ammunition for shotgun and handgun

18-14009 (numerous firearm charges)

-20 gauge Beretta shotgun (stolen)

-24 rounds of ammunition for shotgun

19-110 (numerous firearm charges)

-loaded sawed off HVA-CarGustaf Rifle and a box of ammunition

19-1023 (Numerous firearm charges)
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- loaded restricted 9mm Diamond Back Handgun with a laser sight

-both HIRSI and OSMAN were arrested on their Canada Wide Warrants from Edmonton for several

firearm related offences

19-2224 (PPTl

-35.6 grams of cocaine (street value $3600)

19-776 (PPT»

-3.9 grams of Methamphetamine (street value $400)

-several prescription pills

19-2833 (Firearm related offences, PPT, Proceeds of Crime!

-loaded .22 caliber Rifle

-13.4 grams of methamphetamine (street value $1400)

-21.9 grams of cocaine (street value $2200)

-$1025.00 in cash

-large amount of ammunition for various firearms

19-3453 (Proceeds of Crime)

-$2,365.00 cash

19-4895 (PPT, Proceeds of Crime)

-137.7 grams of cocaine (street value $14/000)

-$8,885.00 cash

Joint Project with Regina Police Service

- 247.5 grams of fentanyl (street value $24,750)

- 342.9 grams of methamphetamine (street value $34,290)

-$17,865.00 cash

- 4.2 grams of Cocaine (street value $420)

- small amount of methamphetamine and fentanyl

19-6279 (PPT)

-4.5 grams of Cocaine (street value $450)

-1 gram of methamphetamine (street value $100)
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19-7430 (PPT, Proceeds of Crime, Firearm charges)

-91.1 grams of cocaine (street value $9200)

-$1900 cash

-prohibited loaded .40 caliber Taurus handgun

-117.1 grams of cocaine (street value $12,000)

-$2100 cash

-prohibited loaded 9mm Taurus Handgun

19-8041(PPT, Proceeds of Crime)

-11.6 grams of cocaine (street value $1200}

-$290 cash

19-10158 (Firearm charges^erpceeds of crime)

-loaded prohibited 38 caliber Ruger LCP Handgun

-28.5 grams of cocaine (street value $3000)

19-10396 fproceeds of crime, PPT)

-$868.25 cash

-84.2 grams of cocaine (street value $8400)

Total Seized since June 2018 by Criminal Investigations Section

Firearms -11 firearms (most loaded)

Cocaine - 548.3 grams ($55/000 street value)

Methamphetamine - 469.5 grams ($47,000 street value)

Fentanyl - 249 grams ($24,900 street value)

Cash - $35/295.25
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COMMUNICATION # CC-2019-0221 
 

TITLE:  Moose Jaw Public Library 2020 Operating Budget Estimates 

 

TO:  City Council 

 

FROM:  City Clerk/Solicitor’s Department 

 

DATE:  October 28, 2019 

 

PUBLIC:  PUBLIC DOCUMENT    

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1.THAT representatives of the Moose Jaw Public Library be allowed to present to City 

Council the Moose Jaw Public Library 2020 Operating Budget estimates in accordance 

with section 17(3) of The Public Libraries Regulations, 1996. 

 

2. THAT this communication be referred to Budget deliberations. 

 

TOPIC AND PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this report is to allow representatives of the Moose Jaw Public Library to 

present City Council with the Moose Jaw Public Library 2020 Operating Budget estimates. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

Ms. Gwen Fisher, Head Librarian of the Moose Jaw Public Library, forwarded a letter 

dated September 13, 2019 requesting permission to address and present to City Council 

the 2020 Operating Budget Estimates for the Public Library. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Pursuant to The Public Libraries Regulations, 1996, section 17(3) states that “a local library 

board shall prepare an annual budget of necessary local expenditures and present it to 

the council or councils concerned by March 1 in each year.” 

 

In accordance to section 21 of The Public Libraries Act, 1996, “on or before March 1 in 

each year, a municipal library board shall make, or cause to be made, an estimate of 

the sums required during that year for: 

 

a) The amount of principal and interest required for the annual payment of 

any outstanding debenture; and 

City of  

Moose Jaw 
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b) The expense of maintaining and managing the municipal library under its 

control and for making the purchases required for the municipal library. 

c) The municipal library board shall transmit the estimate immediately after it 

is made to the clerk or administrator of the municipality for the 

consideration of the council.” 

The Moose Jaw Public Library Budget Estimates for the Year 2020 is attached. 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

Public Notice pursuant to the Public Notice Policy is not required. 

 

PRESENTATION 

 

VERBAL:  Ms. Gwen Fisher, Head Librarian, will present the budget estimates. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

i. Letter dated September 13, 2019 from Ms. Fisher, Head Librarian of the 

Moose Jaw Public Library. 

ii. 2020 Operating Budget estimates and Business Plan Executive Summary for 

the Moose Jaw Public Library. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL 

 

Written by:  Maureen Latta, City Council Support 

Reviewed by:  Tracy Wittke, Assistant City Clerk 

Approved by:    Myron Gulka-Tiechko, City Clerk/Solicitor 

Approved by:    Jim Puffalt, City Manager  

Approved by:     Fraser Tolmie, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be completed by the Clerk’s Department only. 

 

Presented to Regular Council or Executive Committee on _____________________________________________________. 

 

No. _________________________         Resolution No. _________________________________________________ 
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Report Approval Details 

Document Title: Moose Jaw Public Library 2020 Operating Budget Estimates 

- -2019-0221.docx 

Attachments: - Attachment i Letter from MJ Public Library.pdf 

- Attachment ii 2020 Budget Estimates.pdf 

Final Approval Date: Nov 12, 2019 

 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

 
Tracy Wittke 

 
Myron Gulka-Tiechko 

 
Jim Puffalt 

 
Fraser Tolmie 
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461 Langdon Crescent - Moose Jaw, Sk. S6H 0X6Moose Jaw Public
Telephone: 306-692-2787 • Facsimile: 306-692-3368

www. m oosejawlibrary. ca

September 13, 2019

Jim Puffalt, City Manager
City of Moose Jaw
228 Main Street North
Moose Jaw SK S6H 3J8

Dear Mr. Puffalt:

RE: 2020 Operating Budget Estimates for the Public Library

The Moose Jaw Public Library 2020 Operating Budget Estimates are enclosed. These
estimates were approved by the Moose Jaw Public Library Board at their meeting on August
27, 2019. The budget estimates have been entered into the Hubble Budgeting software and
the supporting documents have been uploaded.

The Public Libraries Act 1996, Regulation 17(3) requires representatives of the Moose Jaw
Public Library Board to attend a City Council meeting to present these estimates. Please let
us know when it would be appropriate for the presentation to take place.

Sincerely

^^^L^
/ Gwen Fisher

Head Librarian

End.

CC. Brian Acker, Director of Finance
Myron Gulka-Tiechko, City Clerk/Solicitor
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City of Moose Jaw
MOOSE JAW PUBLIC LIBRARY BUDGET ESTIMATES

FOR THE YEAR 2020

166 6015

1666016

1666025

166 6027

1666020

1666796

5699
5693
5697
5697
5697

2019
PASSED BUDGET

OFFICE EXPENSES
Delivery and Postage
Commissionaire for Rentals
Copiers - lease

- CanCopy license

Copier paper
Advertising
Repairs & servicing rental equipmer
Replacement of small equipment
Miscellaneous
Computer Technical Assistance
Repairs of office equipment

COMMUNICATIONS
Telephones, fax, internet

CONFERENCES AND PROGRAMS
Conferences/training
Programming

MEMBERSHIPS

EQUIPMENT RESERVE
Subtotal

PALUSER REGIONAL LIBRARY L
SILS special levy

TOTAL

REVENUES
Fines revenue

Library revenues (copiers)
Meeting room/theatre rental
Equipment rental
Commissionaire for Rentals
TOTAL

Net requisition from Cit

$1

$1

$1

$1,

$2,330.00
$2,000.00
$4,500.00

$375.00
$2,180.00
$5,500.00

$500.00
$1,000.00

$200.00
$4,800.00
$1.500.00

$24,885.00

$5,000.00
$5,000.00

$5,000.00
$7,900.00

$12,900.00

$200.00

$44.134.00

$87,119.00

,116,884.00

$14.403.00

,131,287.00

,218,406.00

$20,000.00
$4,500.00
$1,200.00

$300.00
$2.000.00

$28.000.00

,190,406.00

2019
Projected Actuals

$2,139.00
$2,800.00
$2,800.00

$375.00
$1,899.00
$5,326.00

$789.00
$1,375.29

$946.00
$4,689.00
$1.476.00

$24,614.29

$4.711.72
$4,711.72

$4,710.00
$7,636.70

$12,346.70

$185.00

S44.134.00

$85,991.71

$1,116,884.00
$14.403.00

$1,131,287.00

$1,217,278.71

$16,623.00
$5,436.00
$3,210.00

$300.00
$2,800.00
$28,369.00

$1,188,276.44

$1

$1

$1

$1

2020
Estimates

$2,330.00
$3,000.00
$3,000.00

$375.00
$2,000.00
$5,500.00

$700.00
$1,300.00

$200.00
$4,800.00
$1.500.00

$24,705.00

$5,000.00
$5,000.00

$5,000.00
$7,900.00

$12,900.00

$200.00

£45.017.00

$87,822.00

,132,719.00

£14.403.00

,147,122.00

,234,944.00

$17,000.00
$4,500.00
$3,200.00

$300.00
$3,000.00

$28.000.00

,206,944.00
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The Moose Jaw Public Library

Business Plan Executive Summary

Overview

The Moose Jaw Public Library serves the citizens of Moose Jaw and surrounding area. With

service guided by the Saskatchewan Library's Act, the Moose Jaw Public Library's mandate is to
provide Moose Jaw and area residents of all ages equitable access to informational, cultural,

recreational and educational materials and programs. In so doing, the library serves as an

addition to and extension of other educational systems to ensure opportunities for individual
lifelong learning. The Library strives to partner with community organizations, groups and

schools to offer community outreach programs and services.

Organizational Structure:

Head Librarian

Assistant Head
Librarian

Library Technicians

3.2 FTE

Children's Librarian

Library Technicians

2FTE

Clerk 1 - Circulation

2.2 FTE

Pages

2.2 FTE

Clerk I!-Technical
Services (2)

Clerk 111-Public
Services (1)

Work Plan HighUghts
In 2020 the Library will focus on 3 priority areas:
The Library as a Space: In 2019 work was complete on ensuring the safety of the space by
creating an Emergency Response Plan, Reviewing Emergency Procedures and creating Rules of

Conduct. In 2020 the focus will be on making the space more welcoming by reviewing and
planning budgeted and cost effective improvements to the Children's Library. The Library will
also begin assessment of the rental spaces in the Library and investigate improvements that will
enhance the experience of the space.
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Lifelong Learning: The Library will prioritize the development of technology related learning
opportunities, including greater access to Maker equipment. Opportunities for digital
acquisitions to be added to the Collection will also be explored.

Organizational Effectiveness: The Library Board will complete a strategic planning cycle begun
in 2019 taking into consideration the results from the Library's Community Needs Assessment
and the City's Strategic Plan. Actions to improve organizational effectiveness will be

implemented under the direction of the Library Board

Financial Summary:

The majority of the Library's initiatives will be carried out with existing resources. In order to
achieve a Status Quo budget with no changes in programming an increase would be required in
the following areas.

1. An increase to the levy is requested to accommodate staffing costs related to a projected

Wage increase.

2. The Final area will be an increase of 2% to the Equipment Reserve Budget as requested
by the City's Financial Services Department.

The Operating Estimates would require a 1.4% over 2019 funding levels.

Future Goals:
Under the guidance of the Moose Jaw Public Library Board and with the results from the 2019-
2020 strategic plan the Library will find new ways to contribute to the education and wellbeing
of this community.
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COMMUNICATION # -2019-0227 
 

TITLE:  Third-Party Funding Group Presentations 

 

TO:  City Council  

 

FROM:  Department of Financial Services 

 

DATE:  November 4, 2019 

 

PUBLIC:  PUBLIC DOCUMENT   

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. THAT each of the groups present this evening be allowed to make a presentation to 

City Council. 

2. THAT this report be referred to Budget deliberations. 

TOPIC AND PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this report is to present the schedule for third-party group presentations 

and to transmit information provided by the groups for Council’s consideration. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The City of Moose Jaw provides third-party funding to a number of groups. The funding 

for the majority of these groups have been established through agreements with the 

various parties. The City’s long-standing practice has been to bring new agreements or 

revised agreements to City Council for approval. On an ongoing basis, unless specified 

in the agreement, the City has generally allowed third-party funding groups a cost of 

living increase annually. If the third-party groups fell within the cost of living increase, their 

funding request was included in the budget. If the third-party group requested funding 

beyond this level, they would be required to come before Council to provide support for 

their request and ultimately the level of funding would be a Council decision. 

 

For 2020, City Council has indicated a desire to have all third-party funding groups 

appear before City Council to provide an overview of their services and their 2020 Budget 

request. As such a special Council Meeting on November 18, 2019 commencing at 5:30 

p.m. in City Council Chambers has been scheduled for this to occur. 

 

 

 

City of  

Moose Jaw 
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DISCUSSION 

 

City Administration has identified the following third-party funding groups and invited 

them to attend the Special Council Meeting on November 18, 2019: 

 

 5:30 p.m. - Moose Jaw Board of Police Commissioners – 2019 net operating 

funding of $9,809,647 and capital funding of $65,000 (see Letter of Transmittal for 

details of request) 

 5:50 p.m. - Moose Jaw Public Library – 2019 net funding $1,190,406 (see Letter of 

Transmittal for details of request) 

 6:10 p.m. Tourism of Moose Jaw & Canada Day Committee – 2019 funding $91,152 

for Tourism of Moose Jaw and $2,484 for Canada Day Committee (see 

attachment for additional information) 

 6:30 p.m. Festival of Words – 2019 funding $7,713 (see attachment for additional 

information) 

 6:45 p.m. Murals of Moose Jaw – 2019 funding $13,158 (see attachment for 

additional information) 

 7:00 p.m. Cultural Centre Inc. – 2019 program funding $157,509 and maintenance 

and operations funding of $219,433 (see attachment for additional information) 

 7:20 p.m. Art Museum – 2019 program funding $134,800 and maintenance and 

operations funding of $258,310 (see attachment for additional information) 

 7:40 p.m. Sask Burrowing Owls – 2019 funding $6,302 (see attachment for 

additional information) 

 7:55 p.m. Moose Jaw Airport Authority – 2019 funding $146,646 (see attachment 

for additional information) 

 8:15 p.m. Moose Jaw Humane Society – 2019 funding $22,539 (see attachment for 

additional information) 

 8:35 p.m. Wakamow Valley Authority – 2019 Statutory levy $323,148 and 

landscape maintenance $4,726 (see attachment for additional information) 

 8:55 p.m. Moose Jaw and District Seniors – 2019 funding $25,000 (see attachment 

for additional information) 

 9:15 p.m. Multicultural Council - 2019 funding $2,000 (see attachment for 

additional information) 

 9:30 p.m. Moose Jaw River Watershed Stewards – 2019 funding $10,000 (see 

attachment for additional information) 
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 9:45 p.m. Cosmo Senior Citizens Association – 2019 funding $0 (see attachment 

for additional information) 

The third-party groups have been advised they have 10 minutes to present, which will be 

followed by questions from City Council. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

Decisions on funding levels for third-party groups will be made as part of budget 

deliberations and the budget adjusted accordingly. 

 

PRESENTATION 

 

VERBAL:  x  Each third-party organization will present their 2020 Budget request. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

1. Tourism of Moose Jaw & Canada Day Committee. 

2. Festival of Words. 

3. Murals of Moose Jaw. 

4. Cultural Centre Inc. 

5. Art Museum. 

6. Sask. Burrowing Owls. 

7. Moose Jaw Airport Authority. 

8. Moose Jaw Humane Society. 

9. Wakamow Valley Authority. 

10. Moose Jaw and District Seniors. 

11. Multicultural Council. 

12. Moose Jaw River Watershed Stewards. 

13. Cosmo Senior Citizens Association. 

 

 

 

REPORT APPROVAL 

 

Written by:  Brian Acker, B.Comm., CPA, CMA, Director of Financial Services  

Reviewed by:  Tracy Wittke, Assistant City Clerk 

Approved by:    Jim Puffalt, City Manager  

Approved by:    Fraser Tolmie, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 

 

To be completed by the Clerk’s Department only. 

 

Presented to Regular Council or Executive Committee on _____________________________________________________. 

 

No. _________________________         Resolution No. _________________________________________________ 
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Report Approval Details 

Document Title: Third Party Funding Groups - -2019-0227.docx 

Attachments: - Tourism of Moose Jaw and Canada Day Committee.pdf 

- Festival of Words.pdf 

- Murals of Moose Jaw.pdf 

- MJ Cultural Centre Inc.pdf 

- Art Museum.pdf 

- Sask Burrowing Owls.pdf 

- Moose Jaw Airport Authority.pdf 

- Moose Jaw Humane Society.pdf 

- Wakamow Valley Authority.pdf 

- MJ and District Seniors.pdf 

- MJ Multicultural Council.pdf 

- Moose Jaw River Watershed Stewards.pdf 

- Cosmo Senior Citizens Assoc.pdf 

Final Approval Date: Nov 12, 2019 

 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

 
Tracy Wittke 

 
Jim Puffalt 

 
Fraser Tolmie 
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2020 Budget JanuaryFebruaryMarchApril May June JulyAugustSeptemberOctoberNovemberDecemberYTD 2019 Actuals 2019 Budget 2020 YTD

Revenue Descriptions Revenues Revenues

Municipal Fee For Service $92,976.00 $0.00 $91,152.00 $91,153.32

Federal Grants $13,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00

Provincial Grants - Summer Students $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Canada Day Grants $7,500.00 ## $7,500.00

Other Grants $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total Grant Revenues: $113,476.00 ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## $3,600.00 $91,152.00 $110,653.32

Mini-City Display Revenues $14,000.00 $0.00 $7,825.00 $13,500.00

Membership Revenues $26,000.00 $0.00 $25,525.00 $26,000.00

Merchandise Revenues $60,000.00 $0.00 $57,201.80 $55,000.00

Lease Revenue $1,000.00 $0.00 $275.00 $2,000.00

Donation Revenue $1,000.00 $0.00 $44,871.38 $500.00

Canada Day Donations $11,000.00 $6,000.00

Fundraising Revenue $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00

Tourism Miscellaneous Revenues $4,000.00 $0.00 $5,388.98 $1,750.00

Social Media Marketing Revenues $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,800.00

Sidewalk Days Stipend $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,500.00

Total Non-Grant Revenues: $127,000.00 ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## $0.00 $45,272.84 $117,550.00

$0.00 $0.00

Trolley Ticket Sales $42,000.00 $0.00 $34,944.05 $38,000.00

Trolley Group Sales $12,000.00 $0.00 $10,189.78 $8,000.00

Trolley Ghost Tours $30,000.00 $0.00 $29,057.10 $22,680.68

Trolley Ad Revenues $4,500.00 $0.00 $4,250.00 $4,500.00

Trolley Interest Income $100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00

Trolley Fundraising $6,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $2,500.00

Total Trolley Revenues: $94,600.00 $0.00 $81,440.93 $75,780.68

$0.00 $0.00

Sidewalk Days Sponsorships $14,000.00 $0.00 $10,773.81 $14,000.00

Sidewalk Days Vendor Fees $30,000.00 $0.00 $35,149.43 $30,000.00

Total Sidewalk Days Revenues $44,000.00 $0.00 $45,923.24 $44,000.00

$0.00 $0.00

TOTAL REVENUES: $379,076.00 ### ### ### ### ### ### ### ### ### ### ### ### $3,600.00 $175,838.47 $347,984.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

2020 Budget $0.00 $0.00 2019 Budget

TOURISM MOOSE JAW 2019 BUDGET
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Expense Descriptions $0.00 $0.00

Executive Director Salary $55,560.00 $0.00 $36,000.00 $54,000.00

Bookkeeper Contract $8,500.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $3,000.00

Trolley Driver Wages $14,000.00 $0.00 $13,225.17 $10,000.00

Conductor Wages $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,659.03 $7,000.00

Summer Student Wages $16,000.00 $0.00 $17,113.79 $15,000.00

Ambassador Wages $8,000.00 $0.00 $9,342.56 $7,000.00

Visitor Centre Wages $37,000.00 $0.00 $34,553.43 $35,000.00

Maintenance Contracts $2,500.00 $0.00 $1,145.75 $3,000.00

MERC $10,000.00 $0.00 $7,982.74 $9,000.00

Benefits $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00

Professional Development $1,500.00 $0.00 $895.00 $1,500.00

Total Wages Expense: $162,060.00 ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## $0.00 $130,917.47 $145,500.00

$0.00 $0.00

Marketing:  Print $5,000.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $5,000.00

Marketing:  General $8,000.00 $0.00 $3,599.31 $5,000.00

Membership Expense TMJ $400.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00

Mini-City Display Expense $340.00 $0.00 $0.00 $340.00

Christmas in October Expense $1,131.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00

Board Development $750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $750.00

Total Marketing Expense: $15,621.00 ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## $0.00 $0.00 $13,090.00

$0.00 $0.00

Accounting/Legal $9,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,500.00

AGM Expense $100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00

Bank Fees/Interest Charges/Credit Card $1,600.00 $0.00 $630.09 $1,600.00

Cash Over / Short $25.00 $0.00 $18.51 $25.00

Courier & Postage $1,700.00 $0.00 $35.95 $1,700.00

Loss/Theft * $100.00 $0.00 $23.18 $100.00

Equipment Lease & Repairs $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Insurance - Operations $7,000.00 $0.00 $6,854.00 $6,500.00

Janitorial Supplies $2,500.00 $0.00 $147.85 $2,500.00

Janitorial Removal $750.00 $0.00 $66.85 $750.00

Merchandise for Sale $40,000.00 $0.00 $19,730.42 $35,019.00

Freight $1,500.00 $0.00 $259.64 $1,500.00

Trade Show Expense $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00

Fundraising Expense $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00

Miscellaneous $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00

Strategic Plan $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00

Office Expenses $2,000.00 $0.00 $1,120.32 $2,500.00

Office Supplies $900.00 $0.00 $650.63 $900.00

Professional Memberships $300.00 $0.00 $165.00 $300.00

Staff Recognition $500.00 $0.00 $38.95 $500.00

Repair & Maintenance - Building $8,500.00 $0.00 $6,408.23 $15,000.00
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Repair & Maintenance - Grounds $6,500.00 $0.00 $4,988.51 $6,500.00

Travel & Meals $1,250.00 $0.00 $121.55 $1,250.00

Website Expense $500.00 $0.00 $293.12 $500.00

Utilities - Sask. Tel $4,500.00 $0.00 $1,830.87 $4,500.00

Utilities - Sask. Power $9,000.00 $0.00 $3,863.41 $9,000.00

Utilities - Sask. Energy $1,900.00 $0.00 $525.00 $1,900.00

Utilities - Water $1,500.00 $0.00 $653.01 $1,500.00

Total Operations Expense: $107,125.00 ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## $0.00 $48,425.09 $106,644.00

$0.00 $0.00

Trolley - Fuel $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00

Trolley - Insurance $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00

Trolley - Marketing $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,412.90 $3,000.00

Trolley - Operating * $4,000.00 $0.00 $528.57 $1,500.00

Trolley - Repairs & Maintenance * $15,000.00 $0.00 $16,008.50 $8,000.00

Trolley - Telephone $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Trolley - Reserve $8,800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,500.00

Total Trolley Expenses: $37,800.00 ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## ## $0.00 $18,949.97 $27,000.00

$0.00 $0.00

Sidewalk Days Entertainment $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,000.00

Sidewalk Days Children's Village $11,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,000.00

Sidewalk Days Security & Clean Up $3,370.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,370.00

Sidewalk Days Volunteer Costs $1,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,600.00

Sidewalk Days Marketing $3,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,500.00

Sidewalk Days Miscellaneous $3,500.00 $0.00 $300.00 $3,500.00

Sidewalk Days Fee to TMJ $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00

Deposits for following year $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,030.00

Total Sidewalk Days Expenses $43,970.00 ### ### ### ### ### ### ### $0.00 $300.00 $44,000.00

Canada Day Programming $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00

Fireworks $10,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,500.00

Total Sidewalk Days Expenses $12,500.00 ### ### ### ### ### ### ### $0.00 $600.00 $13,500.00

TOTAL EXPENSES: $379,076.00 ### ### ### ### ### ### $0.00 $117,473.75 $349,734.00

NET INCOME / LOSS: -$                   ### ### ### ### ### ### ### 3,600.00$     58,364.72$       (1,750.00)$        

Page  309 of 792



2019 Budget January February March April May June July August SeptemberOctoberNovemberDecember YTD 2018 Budget 2018 YTD

Revenue Descriptions Revenues Revenues

Municipal Fee For Service $91,153.32 44,683.00$      46,469.00$      $91,152.00 $89,366.00 $89,366.00

Federal Grants $12,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $2,403.43

Provincial Grants - Summer Students $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Canada Day Grants $7,500.00 3,500.00$        2,450.00$        $5,950.00 $0.00 $15,685.00

Other Grants $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total Grant Revenues: $110,653.32 44,683.00$      -$                  -$                  3,500.00$        46,469.00$      -$                  2,450.00$        -$                  ## ## ## ## $97,102.00 $99,366.00 $91,769.43

Mini-City Display Revenues $13,500.00 3,425.00$        4,400.00$        2,925.00$        $10,750.00 $13,500.00 $11,116.67

Membership Revenues $26,000.00 24,000.00$      275.00$            400.00$            200.00$            350.00$            $25,225.00 $26,000.00 $22,395.35

Merchandise Revenues $55,000.00 845.66$            533.12$            1,137.95$        3,049.09$        6,270.60$        9,560.95$        21,318.63$      17,046.66$      $59,762.66 $52,000.00 $44,982.68

Lease Revenue $2,000.00 100.00$            175.00$            $275.00 $2,000.00 $865.00

Donation Revenue $500.00 30.00$              64.49$              457.80$            149.12$            260.00$            $961.41 $500.00 $440.00

Canada Day Donations $6,000.00 11,500.00$      $11,500.00 $0.00

Fundraising Revenue $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00

Tourism Miscellaneous Revenues $1,750.00 176.75$            7.38$                7.39$                19.39$              7.65$                $218.56 $2,000.00 $219.07

Social Media Marketing Revenues $6,800.00 1,350.00$        $1,350.00 $6,800.00 $1,947.00

Christmas In October $1,750.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00

Sidewalk Days Stipend $3,500.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 $0.00

Total Non-Grant Revenues: $119,300.00 24,845.66$      4,233.12$        1,744.70$        3,320.96$        11,128.40$      24,592.46$      22,948.02$      17,229.31$      ## ## ## ## $110,042.63 $123,800.00 $81,965.77

$0.00 $0.00

Trolley Ticket Sales $38,000.00 79.00$              4,153.50$        7,132.75$        11,995.50$      16,876.05$      ## $42,470.05 $38,000.00 $14,824.12

Trolley Group Sales $8,000.00 150.00$            1,244.25$        2,919.00$        5,332.75$        1,817.00$        1,217.53$        ## $13,704.28 $7,000.00 $7,981.23

Trolley Ghost Tours $22,680.68 136.00$            1,921.00$        4,573.00$        9,588.00$        12,397.10$      ## $30,247.10 $22,000.00 $9,941.57

Trolley Ad Revenues $4,500.00 4,250.00$        $4,250.00 $4,500.00 $4,350.00

Trolley Interest Income $100.00 $0.00 $100.00 $51.90

Trolley Fundraising $2,500.00 585.00$            4,368.75$        $4,953.75 $2,500.00 $0.00

Total Trolley Revenues: $75,780.68 -$                  150.00$           -$                  5,709.25$        9,578.50$        17,038.50$      23,400.50$      34,859.43$      ## ## ## ## $95,625.18 $74,100.00 $37,148.82

$0.00 $0.00

Sidewalk Days Sponsorships $14,000.00 1,500.00$        2,000.00$        5,773.81$        1,500.00$        $10,773.81 $18,000.00 $10,232.76

Sidewalk Days Vendor Fees $30,000.00 9,955.31$        6,642.53$        5,433.59$        7,187.50$        4,154.41$        1,725.00$        $35,098.34 $25,000.00 $33,584.32

Total Sidewalk Days Revenues $44,000.00 $9,955.31 $6,642.53 $6,933.59 $9,187.50 $9,928.22 $3,225.00 $0.00 ### ### ### ### $45,872.15 $43,000.00 $43,817.08

$0.00 $0.00

TOTAL REVENUES: $349,734.00 $69,528.66 $14,338.43 $8,387.23 $19,463.80 $76,363.40 $51,559.18 $52,023.52 $52,088.74 ### ### ### ### $348,641.96 $340,266.00 $254,701.10

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

2019 Budget $0.00 2018 Budget 2018 YTD

Expense Descriptions $0.00

Executive Director Salary $54,000.00 4,333.33$        4,333.33$        4,333.33$        4,333.33$        4,333.33$        4,333.33$        4,333.33$        4,333.33$        $34,666.64 $52,000.00 $34,025.83

Bookkeeper Contract $3,000.00 1,000.00$        1,000.00$        1,000.00$        $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,125.00

Trolley Driver Wages $10,000.00 3,060.95$        2,512.56$        3,038.40$        5,025.08$        $13,636.99 $10,000.00 $7,171.58

Conductor Wages $7,000.00 211.25$            546.00$            2,274.05$        3,153.04$        3,385.53$        $9,569.87 $7,000.00 $5,422.74

Summer Student Wages $15,000.00 78.00$              2,859.67$        3,500.00$        3,500.00$        5,132.87$        $15,070.54 $13,000.00 $15,668.10

Ambassador Wages $7,000.00 1,022.32$        2,863.53$        3,153.98$        $7,039.83 $5,500.00 $10,244.50

Visitor Centre Wages $35,000.00 1,707.75$        2,260.98$        3,192.97$        2,484.88$        5,132.42$        5,093.56$        5,219.09$        5,351.30$        $30,442.95 $35,000.00 $22,386.56

Maintenance Contracts $3,000.00 770.00$            147.00$            210.75$            793.00$            2,681.85$        $4,602.60 $2,500.00 $4,312.85

TOURISM MOOSE JAW 2019 BUDGET
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MERC $9,000.00 358.09$            395.55$            577.15$            397.32$            1,451.15$        2,093.09$        2,266.32$        2,684.85$        $10,223.52 $9,000.00 $6,260.41

Benefits $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00

Professional Development $1,500.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $302.57

Total Wages Expense: $145,500.00 8,169.17$        6,989.86$        8,103.45$        8,651.78$        17,383.52$      22,039.66$      25,166.71$      31,748.79$      ## ## ## ## $128,252.94 $140,000.00 $107,920.14

$0.00 $0.00

Marketing:  Print $5,000.00 1,500.00$        1,000.00$        79.51$              $2,579.51 $5,000.00 $4,403.25

Marketing:  General $5,000.00 264.67$            445.00$            1,097.64$        1,792.00$        221.01$            1,100.00$        $4,920.32 $5,000.00 $4,435.78

Membership Expense TMJ $500.00 $0.00 $600.00 $0.00

Mini-City Display Expense $340.00 1,272.00$        $1,272.00 $340.00 $90.10

Christmas in October Expense $1,500.00 $0.00 $13,000.00 $0.00

Board Development $750.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $187.95

Total Marketing Expense: $13,090.00 -$                  $0.00 $25,440.00 $9,117.08

$0.00 $0.00

Accounting/Legal $7,500.00 6,360.00$        $6,360.00 $7,000.00 $5,045.40

AGM Expense $100.00 24.34$              $24.34 $100.00 $0.00

Bank Fees/Interest Charges/Credit Card $1,600.00 105.33$            113.65$            128.41$            104.38$            178.32$            230.59$            401.01$            304.90$            $1,566.59 $1,500.00 $1,967.24

Cash Over / Short $25.00 (2.98)$               11.27$              10.22$              (114.77)$          77.02$              -$19.24 $25.00 $96.90

Courier & Postage $1,700.00 35.95$              127.34$            57.77$              45.15$              $266.21 $1,500.00 $1,058.74

Loss/Theft * $100.00 23.18$              $23.18 $100.00 $0.00

Equipment Lease & Repairs $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Insurance - Operations $6,500.00 6,854.00$        83.74$              $6,937.74 $6,000.00 $6,008.14

Janitorial Supplies $2,500.00 65.69$              82.16$              363.64$            306.93$            478.04$            $1,296.46 $2,500.00 $1,846.50

Janitorial Removal $750.00 66.85$              125.39$            178.99$            232.37$            $603.60 $1,000.00 $565.43

Merchandise for Sale $35,019.00 223.49$            379.13$            6,939.49$        4,728.31$        7,460.00$        3,454.83$        5,215.19$        6,534.97$        $34,935.41 $33,051.00 $36,959.20

Freight $1,500.00 229.14$            2.50$                28.00$              6.36$                41.00$              28.00$              $335.00 $1,800.00 $672.84

Trade Show Expense $3,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $601.88

Fundraising Expense $1,000.00 421.25$            $421.25 $2,000.00 $40.00

Miscellaneous $500.00 134.74$            93.41$              23.21$              $251.36 $500.00 $279.53

Strategic Plan $500.00 $0.00 $750.00 $0.00

Office Expenses $2,500.00 1,061.05$        59.27$              297.34$            717.40$            $2,135.06 $500.00 $515.59

Office Supplies $900.00 148.39$            225.98$            276.26$            132.52$            $783.15 $800.00 $674.53

Professional Memberships $300.00 165.00$            $165.00 $350.00 $193.57

Staff Recognition $500.00 38.95$              20.00$              16.18$              $75.13 $500.00 $0.00

Repair & Maintenance - Building $15,000.00 6,185.10$        223.13$            4,773.68$        564.08$            $11,745.99 $4,000.00 $2,760.15

Repair & Maintenance - Grounds $6,500.00 4,876.00$        112.51$            140.00$            53.00$              884.41$            $6,065.92 $6,500.00 $2,244.80

Travel & Meals $1,250.00 42.85$              38.70$              40.00$              231.68$            272.17$            $625.40 $1,500.00 $76.99

Website Expense $500.00 293.12$            16.96$              $310.08 $500.00 $319.11

Utilities - Sask. Tel $4,500.00 370.21$            371.48$            343.75$            364.22$            381.21$            479.24$            506.84$            526.39$            $3,343.34 $4,500.00 $3,076.49

Utilities - Sask. Power $9,000.00 764.32$            764.32$            764.32$            765.17$            805.28$            773.94$            753.57$            1,529.19$        $6,920.11 $9,000.00 $5,872.89

Utilities - Sask. Energy $1,900.00 105.00$            105.00$            105.00$            105.00$            105.00$            105.00$            266.87$            105.00$            $1,001.87 $1,900.00 $868.77

Utilities - Water $1,500.00 324.88$            328.13$            40.44$              $693.45 $1,700.00 $179.22

Total Operations Expense: $106,644.00 12,672.30$      3,084.77$        9,185.99$        13,720.81$      9,761.22$        11,132.70$      15,189.20$      12,119.41$      ## ## ## ## $86,866.40 $94,576.00 $67,927.91

$0.00 $0.00

Trolley - Fuel $6,000.00 604.23$            1,299.53$        1,666.17$        $3,569.93 $7,000.00 $1,023.23

Trolley - Insurance $2,000.00 800.00$            $800.00 $3,100.00 $1,482.94

Trolley - Marketing $3,000.00 65.78$              2,347.12$        45.00$              146.38$            $2,604.28 $2,000.00 $1,300.00

Trolley - Operating $1,500.00 500.00$            28.57$              312.33$            576.74$            776.18$            $2,193.82 $1,000.00 $2,150.00

Trolley - Repairs & Maintenance $8,000.00 16,008.50$      2,071.05$        597.26$            393.42$            $19,070.23 $17,000.00 $12,000.00

Trolley - Telephone $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Trolley - Reserve $6,500.00 2,500.00$        $2,500.00 $7,150.00 $0.00

Total Trolley Expenses: $27,000.00 -$                  -$                  65.78$              2,847.12$        16,037.07$      3,032.61$        3,419.91$        5,335.77$        ## ## ## ## $30,738.26 $37,250.00 $17,956.17

$0.00 $0.00

Sidewalk Days Entertainment $11,000.00 8,586.76$        225.00$            $8,811.76 $10,750.00 $11,403.00
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Sidewalk Days Children's Village $11,000.00 3,244.84$        6,077.18$        $9,322.02 $10,750.00 $10,783.21

Sidewalk Days Security & Clean Up $3,370.00 2,631.80$        307.19$            $2,938.99 $3,370.00 $3,254.67

Sidewalk Days Volunteer Costs $1,600.00 285.61$            477.48$            $763.09 $1,600.00 $726.48

Sidewalk Days Marketing $3,500.00 3,034.80$        714.00$            $3,748.80 $3,500.00 $4,466.02

Sidewalk Days Miscellaneous $3,500.00 300.00$            2,661.09$        828.50$            $3,789.59 $3,500.00 $3,438.45

Sidewalk Days Fee to TMJ $4,000.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 $0.00

Deposits for following year $6,030.00 $0.00 $6,030.00 $0.00

Total Sidewalk Days Expenses $44,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $20,444.90 $8,629.35 $29,374.25 $43,000.00 $34,071.83

Canada Day Programming $3,000.00 2,945.83$        556.50$            353.68$            $3,856.01 $0.00 $3,170.00

Fireworks $10,500.00 10,000.00$      $10,000.00 $0.00 $8,715.00

Total Canada Day Expenses $13,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,945.83 $556.50 $353.68 $0.00 ### ### ### ### $13,856.01 $61,130.00 $11,885.00

TOTAL EXPENSES: $349,734.00 $20,841.47 $10,074.63 $17,355.22 $25,219.71 $43,481.81 $56,649.87 $52,405.17 $49,203.97 $275,231.85 $340,266.00 $248,878.13

NET INCOME / LOSS: -$                       $48,687.19 $4,263.80 -$8,967.99 -$5,755.91 $32,881.59 -$5,090.69 -$381.65 $2,884.77 ### ### ### ### 73,410.11$      -$                       
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1

c. W-1.1WAKAMOW VALLEY AUTHORITY

The

Wakamow Valley

Authority Act

being

Chapter W-1.1 of The Statutes of Saskatchewan, 1980-81

(consult Tables of Statutes of Saskatchewan for effective date)

as amended by the Statutes of Saskatchewan, 1980-81, c.83;
1983, c.11, 29 and 33; 1983-84, c.6 and 63; 1984-85-86, c.16

and 20; 1988-89, c.23 and 42; 1989-90, c.64; 1990-91, c.P-15.01

and 8; 1991, c.13; 1992, c.A-24.1 and 12; 1993, c.20 and 42; 1997,

c.53; 2000, c.L-5.1; 2002, c.C-11.1 and S-35.02; 2004, c.10; 2005,

c.L-11.2, M-36.1 and S-35.03; and 2007, c.6.

NOTE:
This consolidation is not official and is subject to House amendments and Law
Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel changes to Separate Chapters that may be
incorporated up until the publication of the annual bound volume. Amendments
have been incorporated for convenience of reference and the official Statutes and
Regulations should be consulted for all purposes of interpretation and application
of the law. In order to preserve the integrity of the official Statutes and Regulations,
errors that may have appeared are reproduced in this consolidation.
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c. W-1.1WAKAMOW VALLEY AUTHORITY

CHAPTER W-1.1

An Act respecting the Establishment of the

Wakamow Valley Authority

SHORT TITLE

Short title

1 This Act may be cited as The Wakamow Valley Authority Act.

INTERPRETATION

Interpretation

2 In this Act:

(a) “advisory area” means the lands described in Schedule B;

(b) “appeal board” means the Wakamow Valley Appeal Board established

by section 28;

(c) “authority” means the Wakamow Valley Authority constituted by

section 4;

(d) “authority land” means land within Wakamow Valley owned by the

authority;

(e) “boat” includes any vessel used or designed to be used in navigation;

(f) “bylaw” means a bylaw of the authority;

(g) “city” means the City of Moose Jaw;

(h) “city land” means land within Wakamow Valley:

(i) that is owned by the city; or

(ii) that the city occupies or has the right to occupy pursuant to a lease

with the owner of the land for a term in excess of 100 years;

(i) “development plan” means the conceptual plan respecting Wakamow

Valley on file in the office of the authority and designated by the authority as

the development plan;

(j) “farmer” means a person whose principal occupation is farming;

(k) “farming” includes livestock raising, poultry raising, bee keeping, fur

farming, tillage of the soil, nursery gardening or any other activity undertaken

to produce agricultural products;

(l) “fiscal year” means the period commencing on April 1 in one year and

ending on March 31 in the following year;
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4

c. W-1.1 WAKAMOW VALLEY AUTHORITY

(m) “government” or “Government of Saskatchewan” means the

Crown in right of Saskatchewan, every corporation and agency thereof and

the Lieutenant Governor in Council;

(n) “Government of Canada” means the Crown in right of Canada, every

corporation and agency thereof and the Governor General in Council;

(o) “government land” means land within Wakamow Valley owned by the

government but does not include the Wild Animal Park;

(p) “improvement” means a building, structure or service facility

constructed, or landscape construction, within Wakamow Valley, or any

alteration thereof or addition thereto, but does not include the ordinary care,

maintenance or repair of a building, structure or service facility or of

landscape construction;

(q) Repealed. 2000, c.L-5.1, s.550.

(r) “landscape construction” means:

(i) the clearing, breaking, grading, fertilizing or cultivating of any

area;

(ii) the construction of an outdoor ground surface for games or

athletics;

(iii) the establishment on any outdoor ground surface of trees, shrubs,

flowers, grass or other forms of vegetative growth;

(iv) the placement on any outdoor ground surface of outdoor furniture,

including seating of a type suitable for a garden or park but not for an

audience or assembly of spectators; or

(v) the placement of any functional or aesthetic features contributing

to the general landscape design of the area;

and includes:

(vi) the provision of any machines, equipment and tools that, in the

opinion of the authority, are necessary; and

(vii) for the purposes of sections 16 to 27, the breaking and use of any

area for the operation of a gravel pit;

(s) “landscape maintenance” means the sustaining of landscape

construction and includes the provision of any machines, equipment and tools

that, in the opinion of the authority, are necessary;

(t) “management area” means the lands described in Schedule A;

(u) “member” means a member of the authority appointed pursuant to

section 5;

(v) “participating party” means the government, the city or a rural

municipality;

(w) “person” does not include a participating party or the authority;
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c. W-1.1WAKAMOW VALLEY AUTHORITY

(x) “private land” means land within Wakamow Valley owned by a person;

(y) “property” means real or personal property or any interest therein;

(z) “public land” means land within Wakamow Valley owned by one or

more participating parties and includes the verge;

(aa) “rural municipal land” means land within Wakamow Valley owned

by a rural municipality;

(bb) “rural municipality” means the Rural Municipality of Baildon

No. 131 or the Rural Municipality of Moose Jaw No. 161, as the case may be;

(cc) “service facility” means anything by means of which water, light,

power or gas is supplied, any sewer or sewage system or any other facility

that, in the opinion of the authority, is necessary for the purpose of Wakamow

Valley, and includes a road, curb, bridge, sidewalk or parking lot, outdoor

seating of a type suitable for an audience or assembly of spectators and a

building that is:

(i) a headquarters building for the authority;

(ii) a public bathroom, toilet, shower, changing room, restroom, shelter,

tool or equipment locker, pumphouse or machine-house;

(iii) in the opinion of the authority, incidental to a park or used in

connection with the operation of a park; or

(iv) used for any combination of the purposes mentioned in sub-

clauses (i) to (iii);

(dd) “service maintenance” means the maintenance of any service

facility and includes snow removal, garbage disposal and the provision of any

machines, equipment and tools that, in the opinion of the authority, are

necessary;

(ee) “special resolution” means a resolution of the authority passed with

the approval of at least five members, other than members designated under

subsection 5(11), and of whom at least:

(i) one member is appointed under clause 5(1)(a); and

(ii) two members are appointed under clause 5(1)(b);

(ff) “verge” includes all lands lying between the boundary of Wakamow

Valley where it abuts upon a street, road or lane and the nearest part of the

street, road or lane that is intended for the use of vehicles;

(gg) “Wakamow Valley” means the area described in Schedules A and B,

subject to any alterations made pursuant to section 14, and, for the purposes

of section 13, includes the verge.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.2; 1980-81, c.83, s.59; 1984-
85-86, c.20, s.3.
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c. W-1.1 WAKAMOW VALLEY AUTHORITY

APPLICATION OF ACT

Application of Act

3(1) Subject to subsection (2), this Act does not apply:

(a) to any public land that, at the time of the coming into force of this

section, is occupied or used by the Government of Canada or of Saskatchewan

or by any other person pursuant to any lease, licence or permit to do so

granted by any person or participating party having the right to grant such

occupation or use;

(b) to any public land mentioned in clause (a) that is occupied or used as

described in that clause pursuant to a renewal of a lease, licence or permit to

do so approved by the authority.

(2) Without limiting the generality of section 64, where the Government of

Canada or of Saskatchewan or any other person who is occupying or using public

land mentioned in subsection (1) enters into an agreement with the participating

party that owns the land and the authority to provide for the application of this Act

or any provision of this Act to that land, this Act applies in respect of that land in

accordance with the agreement.

(3) Subject to subsection (2), nothing in this Act or the bylaws is to be construed so

as to infringe, restrict or enlarge upon the rights and obligations of a participating

party or person under any lease, licence or permit mentioned in subsection (1).

(4) Subject to subsection (1), for the purposes of this Act every public reserve in

Wakamow Valley is deemed to be authority land.

(5) Any Act, regulation, bylaw or other law applicable in respect of Wakamow

Valley, whether enacted, made or passed before or after the coming into force of

this section, continues to apply in respect of Wakamow Valley, except to the extent

that it is superseded by or is in conflict with this Act or any bylaw made under this

Act.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.3; 1980-81, c.83, s.59.

WAKAMOW VALLEY AUTHORITY

Authority constituted

4(1) There is hereby constituted a body corporate to be known as the Wakamow

Valley Authority.

(2) The authority has perpetual succession and a common seal of any design that

the authority may determine.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.4.

Membership of authority

5(1) The authority shall consist of:

(a) three members appointed by the Lieutenant Governor in Council;

(b) four members appointed pursuant to a resolution of the city; and
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(c) two other members, one each of which is appointed pursuant to a

resolution of each rural municipality.

(2) A member may be appointed or reappointed for any term expressed in his

appointment or reappointment but, in the absence of an expressed term, the

appointment or reappointment, unless sooner terminated by the death or written

resignation of the member or by any other cause, as determined by a judge or a

court of competent jurisdiction, continues until terminated by the participating

party that made the appointment or reappointment.

(3) Notwithstanding subsection (2), an appointment may be terminated at any

time by the participating party that made the appointment or by the written and

signed resignation of the member appointed, and, where a member resigns, his

resignation takes effect on the day it is received by the chairman or secretary of the

authority, unless a later time is specified for the purpose in the written

resignation, in which case the resignation takes effect at the time so specified.

(4) Where a vacancy occurs in a participating party’s representation on the

authority, the participating party may appoint another person to fill the vacancy.

(5) A vacancy in the membership of the authority does not impair the power of the

authority to act.

(6) The members shall name a chairman and a vice-chairman from among their

number, and shall appoint a secretary and a treasurer who may, but need not, be

members.

(7) Where the chairman is absent or unable to act or where the office of chairman

is vacant, the vice-chairman has and may exercise all the powers and functions of

the chairman.

(8) The authority shall pay to the members, other than the members designated

under subsection (11), any remuneration that may be determined by the authority.

(9) Notwithstanding The Legislative Assembly and Executive Council Act, 2007,

where a member of the Legislative Assembly is appointed as a member of the

authority, he is not, by reason only of the appointment or of any payment made to

him under subsection (8), required to vacate his seat and is not disqualified from

sitting or voting in the Legislative Assembly.

(10) Notwithstanding The Cities Act or The Municipalities Act, if a member of the

council of any municipality is appointed as a member of the authority, that person

is not, by reason of the appointment or of any payment made to him or her

pursuant to subsection (8), disqualified from being a member of or voting in the

council of the municipality.

(11) When appointing members to the authority, the government and the city

shall each designate one member appointed by it pursuant to subsection (1) as a

member who is not entitled to vote on any question or matter before the authority.

(12) No officer or employee of the city is eligible to be appointed as a member of

the authority, unless he is also designated under subsection (11).

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.5; 1984-85-86, c.20, s.4;
2002, c.C-11.1, s.419; 2005, c.L-11.2, s.97; 2005,
c.M-36.1, s.480; 2007, c.6, s.2.
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Disclosure of land holdings

6(1) In this section:

(a) “controlling interest”, with respect to a corporation, means:

(i) beneficial ownership, whether direct or indirect, of; or

(ii) the exercise of control or direction over;

shares of the corporation that carry more than 25% of the voting rights

attached to all of the issued shares of the corporation;

(b) “director or other officer”, with respect to a corporation, is deemed

not to include a director or other officer of a co-operative association;

(c) “land” includes:

(i) lands, tenements and hereditaments and any estate or interest

therein, or right or easement affecting the same;

(ii) buildings, or parts of buildings, structures or fixtures, erected or

placed upon, in, over or under or affixed to land, but does not include

machinery permanently affixed to buildings or imbedded in foundations,

or such foundations; and

(iii) structures and fixtures erected or placed upon, in, over or under or

affixed to any highway, lane or public place or water, but does not

include the rolling stock of a railway;

(d) “own”, in relation to land, includes:

(i) owning in a representative capacity, such as executor, administrator

or trustee;

(ii) holding an option to purchase; and

(iii) purchasing by way of agreement for sale.

(2) Every member or officer of the authority and every member of a committee

appointed under section 15 shall, before entering upon the duties of his office or

within 30 days after the coming into force of this section, whichever is later,

furnish the authority with a declaration in the form prescribed in Schedule C

setting out the lands within Wakamow Valley owned by him, his spouse or any

corporation of which he or his spouse is a director or other officer or in which he or

his spouse has a controlling interest.

(3) Every person required to make a declaration pursuant to subsection (2) shall,

within 30 days after any disposition or acquisition of lands described in that

subsection, notify the authority of the disposition or acquisition.

(4) The authority shall maintain a register containing:

(a) the information furnished to it pursuant to subsections (2) and (3); and

(b) the name of the person to whom the information relates.

(5) Every person who contravenes subsection (2) or (3) is guilty of an offence and

liable on summary conviction to a fine of not more than $50 and to a further fine of

not more than $25 for each day or part of a day during which the offence continues.
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(6) Where a member is convicted of an offence against subsection (2) or (3), his

appointment as a member is terminated, notwithstanding subsection 5(3), and he

is not eligible to be appointed as a member for a period of three years after the date

of his conviction.

(7) The register maintained by the authority in accordance with this section may

be inspected by any person during the regular business hours of the authority.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.6.

Quorum

7(1) Subject to any provision of this Act that requires a special resolution, the

authority may determine the number of its members that constitutes a quorum.

(2) Until the authority makes a determination pursuant to subsection (1), five

members constitute a quorum.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.7.

Head office

8 The head office of the authority shall be at the city or at any other place within

Wakamow Valley that the authority may determine.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.8.

Meetings

9 The members shall meet at least four times in each year and at any other times

that they may consider necessary.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.9.

Employees of authority

10(1) The authority may employ any officers or other employees or any consultants

or advisors that it considers necessary for the purposes of this Act, and may fix

their remuneration and the terms and conditions of their employment.

(2) Subject to subsection (3), the city may arrange for the participation by officers

and employees employed pursuant to subsection (1) in the City of Moose Jaw

Superannuation Plan.

(3) Any person employed under subsection (1) who, immediately prior to being so

employed, is participating in a superannuation plan or scheme as a result of

employment with a participating party may, within one month from the day on

which he is employed under subsection (1), by notice in writing to the authority and

to the governing authority of that superannuation plan or scheme, elect to continue

to participate in that superannuation plan or scheme, if arrangements for his

continued participation are made by the participating party and the governing

authority of the superannuation plan or scheme.

(4) Where a person makes an election under subsection (3):

(a) the election is irrevocable; and

(b) he shall continue to participate in the superannuation plan or scheme

that he was participating in as a result of his former employment.
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(5) The authority may, by agreement, make any arrangements with the governing

authority of any superannuation plan or scheme that may be necessary to provide

for a superannuation plan or scheme for any officers and employees of the

authority.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s. 10.

Powers of authority

11 In addition to any other power conferred upon it by this Act, the authority

may:

(a) subject to subsection 12(4), amend or elaborate the development plan

after consultation with the architect planner appointed pursuant to

section 70;

(b) co-ordinate or control the use, development, conservation, maintenance

and improvement of public land in accordance with the development plan;

(c) acquire property by gift or purchase or in any other manner;

(d) hold or administer property or acquire, by lease, licence or otherwise, the

right to occupy and use property;

(e) subject to section 48, sell, grant, convey, lease or otherwise dispose of its

property;

(f) construct, maintain or operate any park, improvement or service facility;

(g) subject to any other provision of this Act relating to landscape

maintenance, service maintenance, landscape construction and service

facilities:

(i) maintain, develop, improve or build on any authority land;

(ii) with the consent of a participating party, or of its agent or

representative, maintain, develop, improve or build on any public land

owned by that participating party;

(iii) upon the request and at the expense of the owner or occupant of

any private land, maintain, develop, improve or build on any private

land of the owner or occupant making the request;

(h) upon the request and at the expense of a participating party, maintain,

develop or improve property owned by the participating party and situated

outside Wakamow Valley;

(i) on authority land, establish, maintain and operate, or grant concessions

or permission for the operation of, places of entertainment, amusement,

recreation or refreshment or other places of public interest or accommodation,

and may operate, or grant permission for the operation of, a public information

service respecting the activities and services of the authority;

(j) invest for its benefit all or any sums of money belonging to it and not

presently required for expenditure in any security or class of securities

authorized for the investment of moneys in the general revenue fund

pursuant to The Financial Administration Act, 1993;

Page  523 of 792



11

c. W-1.1WAKAMOW VALLEY AUTHORITY

(k) dispose of any securities in which moneys have been invested under

clause (j) in any manner and on any terms that it may consider expedient;

(l) acquire, take and hold, according to law, any property that is bona fide

mortgaged, hypothecated or pledged to it by way of security or conveyed to it

in satisfaction of debts previously contracted;

(m) enter into any contract or agreement that it considers expedient or

desirable in the exercise of any of its powers or the discharge of any of its

duties under this Act;

(n) generally do and authorize the doing of any things that are incidental or

conducive to the attainment of its objects and purposes and the exercise of its

powers under this Act.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.11; 1983, c.29, s.55; 1988-
89, c.42, s.109; 2004, c.10, s.17 and 18.

Exercise of powers by resolution

12(1) The authority shall exercise its powers by resolution.

(2) A resolution of the authority may be passed at a meeting of the members or in

any other manner prescribed in the bylaws.

(3) Subject to subsection (4), a resolution requires the approval of at least four

members.

(4) The development plan may only be amended or elaborated by a special

resolution.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.12.

Bylaws

13(1) Without limiting the generality of any of the powers conferred upon it by

section 11, the authority may, for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of this

Act according to their intent, make bylaws in respect of Wakamow Valley:

(a) subject to subsection (2), regulating the use of public land and prohibiting,

regulating or controlling the construction or alteration of any improvement

on any public land in the management area;

(b) notwithstanding The Cities Act or The Municipalities Act, controlling

traffic in the management area, including the regulation of speed and parking

of vehicles;

(c) without limiting the generality of clause (j), prohibiting or regulating the

use, for recreational purposes, of the waters of the Moose Jaw River flowing

within Wakamow Valley or of any lake, stream, pond or other body of water in

Wakamow Valley;

(d) authorizing police, special constables or peace officers, or any designated

officer:

(i) to remove or cause the removal of any vehicle or boat that is placed,

left or kept in Wakamow Valley in contravention of this Act or a bylaw;

(ii) to impound or store any vehicle or boat described in subclause (i);

and
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(iii) to release any vehicle or boat that has been impounded to the

owner upon payment of the cost of removal and impounding or storage

within a period of 30 days after the day of the removal of the vehicle or

boat or within any extended period of time that may be specified in the

bylaw;

and providing for the recovery of the cost of removal and impounding or

storage cost, if not paid within the period of time allowed, from the owner of

the vehicle or boat by action in a court of competent jurisdiction or by sale of

the vehicle or boat at public auction or by private sale;

(e) applicable to public land, for the protection of animal, bird, aquatic and

plant life;

(f) subject to The Fire Prevention Act, 1980, for fire prevention and

extinguishment of fires;

(g) respecting the provision of any service facility;

(h) subject to subsections (2) and (3), applicable to the management area:

(i)  regulating, restricting or prohibiting a trade, commercial or

industrial enterprise, amusement, occupation or other activity or

undertaking;

(ii) determining the place where any activity or undertaking mentioned

in subclause (i) may or may not be carried on;

(iii) providing for the licensing of a person carrying on any activity or

undertaking mentioned in subclause (i) and prescribing licence fees;

(i) prescribing fees for the entrance to or use of authority land or of facilities

operated or owned by the authority;

(j) regulating, restricting or prohibiting sports, games, picnicking, camping

or other recreational activities on public land;

(k) for the preservation of the public health and the prevention of the spread

of disease;

(l) prohibiting the making of excessive noise on public land;

(m) subject to subsection (4), prohibiting the keeping, or controlling the use

or manner of the keeping, of horses, dogs and other animals;

(n) subject to any Act of the Parliament of Canada or of the Legislature, for

dealing with, controlling the use of, or preventing the pollution or

contamination of or other injury to the waters and banks of any well, lake,

stream, river, pond or other body of water;

(o) for the protection, care and preservation of property of the authority;

(p) for the prevention of nuisances and compelling the abatement of

nuisances;

(q) for the internal government of the affairs of the authority, including its

proceedings and the calling and conduct of its meetings.
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(2) No bylaw made under clause (1)(a) or subclause (1)(h)(i) or (ii) applies with

respect to any matter or thing done solely within the interior of a building.

(3) No bylaw made under clause (1)(h) prohibits any person or participating party

from carrying on any activity or undertaking that was carried on prior to the

coming into force of this section and that has been carried on continuously from

that time.

(4) No bylaw made under clause (1)(m) applies in respect of rural municipal land,

private land or land used for any agricultural exhibition or zoo.

(5) Every bylaw made under subsection (1), other than a bylaw made under

clause (1)(g) or (q), is to be published in the Gazette and in a newspaper having

circulation in the city and has force and effect on and after the date specified for the

purpose in the bylaw or, if no date is so specified, on and after the day on which the

bylaw is published in the Gazette.

(6) Every bylaw made under clause (1)(g) or (q) has force and effect on and after

the date specified for the purpose in the bylaw or, if no date is so specified, on and

after the day on which the bylaw is made.

(7) Notwithstanding that parts of the management area are government land:

(a) every bylaw passed by the council of the city respecting traffic applies

throughout the portion of the management area situated within the city;

(b) every bylaw passed by the council of the rural municipality respecting

traffic applies throughout the portion of the management area situated

within the rural municipality.

(8) All bylaws made by the authority may be enforced in the same manner that

bylaws of the city may be enforced pursuant to The Cities Act, and for that purpose

subsection 8(2) and sections 82, 335 and 345 of The Cities Act apply, with any

necessary modification.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.13; 1980-81, c.83, s.59;
1984-85-86, c.16, s.42; 2002, c.C-11.1, s.419;
2005, c.M-36.1, s.480.

Alteration of area of Wakamow Valley

14(1) Subject to subsections (2) and (3), the authority may, by special resolution,

alter the area of Wakamow Valley by adding to or excluding from the area any

parcel of land.

(2) The authority may, by special resolution, alter the area of Wakamow Valley

by adding to the area any parcel of private land within the geographical area of a

participating party, other than the government, with the approval of the

participating party.
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(3) The authority may, by special resolution, alter the area of Wakamow Valley by

adding to or excluding from the area any parcel of land outside the geographical

area of the participating parties, other than the government, with the approval of

each of the participating parties and the municipality in which the land is situated.

(4) The authority may, by special resolution:

(a) alter the area of the management area by adding to the area any parcel

of land in the advisory area;

(b) alter the area of the advisory area by adding to the area any parcel of

land in the management area;

with the approval of the participating party in whose geographical area the parcel

of land is situated.

(5) Where any parcel of private land is added to or excluded from Wakamow

Valley or the management area, the authority shall, within 10 days after the date

of the special resolution effecting the addition or exclusion, advise the owner of the

parcel of private land in writing of the addition or exclusion.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.14; 1980-81, c.83, s.59.

Withdrawal

14.1(1) A rural municipality may, in accordance with subsection (2), withdraw as

a participating party of the authority effective December 31 in any year.

(2) A rural municipality that wishes to withdraw as a participating party of the

authority shall give written notice of its withdrawal to the chairman of the

authority and every other participating party at least two years prior to December

31 of the year in which it will withdraw.

(3) On and from the date that a rural municipality withdraws as a participating

party:

(a) that rural municipality has no power to appoint a member of the

authority; and

(b) the member of the authority appointed by that rural municipality who

was serving at the time of the withdrawal ceases to be a member; and

(c) any area of land within that rural municipality which is included in

Wakamow Valley ceases to be part of Wakamow Valley unless that rural

municipality agrees that the land should remain as part of Wakamow Valley.

1984-85-86, c.20, s.5.

COMMITTEES

Advisory committees

15 The authority may appoint, upon any terms and conditions that it considers

advisable, any committees that it considers advisable consisting of persons who

may, but need not, be members.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.15.

16 to 24 To be proclaimed.
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Improvements made by authority

25 The authority shall not make an improvement on public land unless it

considers the proposed improvement to be consistent or in accordance with the

development plan.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.25.

26 to 34 To be proclaimed.

Landscape construction to accord with development plan

35 The authority shall not perform any landscape construction that is not

consistent or in accordance with the development plan.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.35.

36 To be proclaimed.

SERVICE FACILITIES AND SERVICE MAINTENANCE

Service facility of participating party

37 A participating party shall, at its own expense, construct any service facility

that it requires, but that construction or its expense, or both, may, in the discretion

of the authority, be assumed wholly or partly by the authority in any case where

the authority considers that it will derive all or a substantial part of the benefit to

be derived from the service facility.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.37.

Service facility of authority

38 The authority shall, at its own expense, construct any service facility that it

requires.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.38.

Authority determines service maintenance

39 The authority shall determine the service maintenance to be performed on

land other than private land within Wakamow Valley and shall perform or cause to

be performed all service maintenance so determined.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.39.

Service maintenance

40(1) Each participating party shall pay for service maintenance of a service

facility which it requires.

(2) The authority shall pay for service maintenance of a service facility which it

requires.

(3) Service maintenance of a service facility which is required by a participating

party may be performed by the authority at the expense of the participating party,

but that expense may, in the discretion of the authority, be assumed wholly or

partly by the authority in any case where the authority considers that it will derive

all or a substantial part of the benefit to be derived from the service facility.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.40.
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Existing service facility

41 Each participating party shall maintain, at its own expense, any service

facility existing at the time of the coming into force of this section and for which it

was responsible on the day before the day on which this section comes into force.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.41; 1980-81, s.83, s.59.

COST OF SERVICE MAINTENANCE

Determination of cost

42 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Act:

(a) the amount of the expense of service maintenance is deemed to be, in

every case in which the authority passes a special resolution for the purposes

of this clause, the sum fixed by the resolution, notwithstanding that the

amount of the expense might be determined in another manner;

(b) where no special resolution applicable to a fiscal year has been passed

pursuant to clause (a), the rates for the various types of service maintenance

may be established by agreement between the authority and each participating

party;

(c) where, in any case, the amount of the expense of service maintenance to

be charged to a participating party has not been established by a special

resolution pursuant to clause (a) or by agreement with the participating party

pursuant to clause (b), the authority may by resolution provide that the

amount of the expense be determined by a single arbitrator and, where such a

resolution is passed, it is deemed, with respect to the matter to be

determined, to be an arbitration agreement within the meaning of The

Arbitration Act, 1992 and the authority and the participating party are bound

by the award of the arbitrator unless, prior to the handing down of the award,

there has been a special resolution passed pursuant to clause (a) or an

agreement made pursuant to clause (b) with respect to the matter of the

arbitration agreement.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.42; 1992, c.A-24.1, s.61.

VERGE

Construction, etc., on verge

43(1) No person or participating party shall, except with the prior approval of the

authority, build, erect, place, alter or renovate a structure, hoarding, poster, sign,

seating, fencing or construction of any kind whatsoever within the verge, other

than a traffic or bus-stop sign, or a structure erected or placed for the shelter of

persons intending to use any public transportation system, that is of a style and

size acceptable to the authority.

(2) No person or participating party shall, without the prior approval of the

authority, carry out any landscape construction or alter or interfere with

landscaping or vegetative growth within the verge.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.43.
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CLOSING OF PUBLIC HIGHWAY

Closure by authority

44(1) Subject to subsections (2) and (4), the authority may close the whole or any

part of a public highway in the management area.

(2) The authority may delegate to an officer of the authority its power to close the

whole or any part of a public highway in the management area for a period of not

more than seven days.

(3) The authority shall not permanently close the whole or any part of a public

highway within the area of jurisdiction of a participating party without its

approval.

(4) Where the authority intends to close a public highway or part of a public

highway within the management area and there is land abutting on the public

highway or part that is to be closed that is not owned by a participating party or by

the authority, it shall not close the public highway or part unless:

(a) it gives at least 30 days’ notice of its intention by registered mail to each

registered owner of land abutting on the public highway or part that is

proposed to be closed;

(b) the notice mentioned in clause (a) is published at least once each week

for two successive weeks in a newspaper published in the city; and

(c) every person who, before the public highway or part is closed, claims that

his land will be injuriously affected by the closing and who petitions the

authority for a hearing has been given an opportunity to be heard by himself

or his agent with respect to the proposed closing.

(5) A person described in clause (4)(c) is entitled to be compensated by the

authority for all damage caused to his land by reason of the closing, and, where the

amount of compensation is not agreed upon between the claimant and the

authority, the authority shall, within one month after the public highway or part

has been closed, cause to be served upon the claimant, by ordinary mail, a notice

setting out a description of the public highway or part, the day on which it was

closed and the amount of compensation that the authority is prepared to pay.

(6) Where a person entitled to compensation pursuant to subsection (5) is

dissatisfied with the amount offered, sections 50 to 55, subsection 56(3) and

sections 57 and 58 of The Highways and Transportation Act apply, mutatis

mutandis, for the purpose of determining the amount of compensation.

(7) Nothing in this Act restricts the power of the Minister of Highways and

Transportation under The Highways and Transportation Act to close the whole or

any portion of a public highway within Wakamow Valley, but the minister, before

exercising that power, shall obtain the prior consent of the authority for the

purpose.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.44; 1983-84, c.6, s.21.
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Closure by participating party

45(1) Subject to subsection (2), a participating party may close the whole or any

part of a public highway in any area within its jurisdiction situated within

Wakamow Valley for any period not exceeding 28 days.

(2) Subject to subsection (3), a participating party proposing to close a public

highway under subsection (1) shall, at least two days before closing the public

highway, advise the authority of its intention to do so.

(3) Subsection (2) does not apply where a participating party closes a public

highway under subsection (1) because of an emergency.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.45.

INSTRUMENTS AFFECTING PUBLIC LAND

Instruments affecting public land

46(1) Subject to subsections (3) and (4) but otherwise notwithstanding any other

provision of this Act, a transfer of title with respect to public land in the

management area must be accompanied by the written consent of the authority.

(2) Subject to subsections (3) and (4) but otherwise notwithstanding any other

provision of this Act or any other Act, an interest registered in the Land Titles

Registry with respect to public land in the management area is invalid unless it is

accompanied by the written consent of the authority.

(3) Subsections (1) and (2) do not apply with respect to:

(a) any transfer or interest evidencing the occupation or use of public land to

which, by reason of section 3, this Act does not apply;

(b) leases of property for a term not exceeding 10 years;

(c) any transfer or interest affecting land intended for residential purposes

and concerning which a plan of subdivision has been approved by the

Controller of Surveys;

(d) any transfer of land to the government where the land transferred is

dedicated to public use; or

(e) any transfer or interest that is exempted by bylaw from the application

of subsections (1) and (2).

(4) The authority shall not withhold its consent under subsections (1) and (2) to

any transaction involving public land unless it considers that the use to be made of

the land as a result of the transaction will not be consistent or in accordance with

the development plan.

2000, c.L-5.1, s.551.
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ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF LAND

Approval to expropriate

47 No person or participating party shall exercise any power given by an Act to

expropriate any land or interest in land within Wakamow Valley without the

approval of the authority.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.47.

Disposal of authority land

48(1) The authority shall not dispose of authority land or any interest in

authority land without the consent in writing of each participating party.

(2) Any land that is acquired by the authority may, at the discretion of the

authority, be sold at any time to any participating party desiring to purchase the

land at a price that is, as nearly as it is possible to determine, equivalent to the

total cost incurred by the authority in respect of the land.

(3) In subsection (2), “total cost” includes all expenditures that the authority

determines it has incurred in respect of the land, including:

(a) the actual cost of acquiring the land, of fixing and paying the price

thereof or the compensation therefor and of all valuations and other matters

incidental or related thereto; and

(b) the cost of improvements constructed by the authority on the land and

the cost of construction of service facilities and service maintenance in respect

of the land, but such cost may be wholly or partly excluded at the discretion of

the authority in any case where the authority considers that it will derive all

or a substantial part of the benefit to be derived from the improvements,

service facilities or service maintenance.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.48.

Acquisition of land by authority or participating party

49(1) The authority may by agreement acquire any private land or land owned by

a participating party.

(2) A participating party may by agreement, with the approval of the authority,

acquire any land within Wakamow Valley owned by another participating party.

(3) Where a participating party acquires any private land within Wakamow

Valley, it shall give notice of the acquisition to the authority.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.49.

50 To be proclaimed.

Disposal of public land

51(1) Subject to subsection (2), where a participating party proposes to dispose of

land owned by it within Wakamow Valley, it shall provide the other participating

parties and the authority with an opportunity to acquire the land before

attempting to dispose of it.
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(2) Subsection (1) does not apply to any lands to be sold for residential purposes

and in respect of which a plan of subdivision has been approved by the authority

and the Controller of Surveys.

(3) Subsection 50(2) applies, mutatis mutandis, in respect of public land that is to

be disposed of.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.51; 2000, c.L-5.1, s.552.

Transfer of land by city or rural municipality

52 Subject to section 51:

(a) the city may, without complying with The Cities Act and notwithstanding

that Act and notwithstanding those Acts, lease to any other participating

party or the authority, or transfer to any other participating party or the

authority by way of sale, gift or otherwise, any city land;

(b) the rural municipality may, without complying with The Municipalities

Act and notwithstanding that Act, lease to any participating party or the

authority, or transfer to any other participating party or the authority by way

of sale, gift or otherwise, any rural municipal land.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.52; 1984-85-86, c.16, s.42;
2002, c.C-11.1, s.419; 2005, c.M-36.1, s.480.

53 to 55 To be proclaimed.

FINANCE

Amounts payable by participating parties

56(1) In every fiscal year, participating parties shall pay the following amounts

to the authority:

(a) in the case of the city, $190,500;

(b) in the case of the government, $127,000;

(c) in the case of a rural municipality that is a participating party of the

authority, $1,500.

(2) The participating parties shall review the amounts mentioned in sub-

section (1) a minimum of every five years after April 1, 1997.

1997, c.53, s.3.

Payment from consolidated fund

57 Any sums payable by the government pursuant to section 56 are to be paid out

of the general revenue fund.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.57; 2004, c.10, s.17.

58 Repealed. 1997, c.53, s.4.

59 Repealed. 1997, c.53, s.4.

60 Repealed. 1993, c.20, s.3.
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Time at which payments to authority are required

61 One-fourth of each of the sums to be paid by a participating party during a

fiscal year pursuant to sections 42 and 56 becomes due on each of April 1, July 1,

October 1 and January 1 in that fiscal year, or at any other time or times that may

be arranged in the case of all or any of the participating parties, and, for the

purpose of substituting such a time or times either for one occasion or for a

specified or indefinite period, by agreement between the authority and the

participating party or parties for whom the arrangement is to be made.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.61.

61.1 Repealed. 1997, c.53, s.4.

Interest payable by participating party

62 Where a participating party fails to pay a sum when due, it shall pay to the

authority, upon demand, interest at a rate equal to the prime rate of interest

payable under the latest debentures issued by the city prior to the day the sum

became due on the amount in arrears from the day on which it became due.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.62.

Temporary loans

63(1) Subject to subsections (2) and (3), the authority may borrow, by way of

temporary loans from any bank or from any person or corporation, any sums, upon

any terms, for any purposes and upon any conditions that the authority may

determine, by way of bank overdraft or line of credit, or by the pledging as security

for such temporary loans of notes, bonds or other securities of the authority

pending the sale thereof or in lieu of selling them, or in any other manner that the

authority may determine, and any cheques, promissory notes or other instruments

that may be necessary or desirable in connection with the borrowing of money and

the obtaining of advances by way of temporary loans, may be executed in any

manner that the authority may determine.

(2) Subject to subsection (4), any sum borrowed under subsection (1) is to be

borrowed on the condition that the sum is to be repaid or the loan otherwise retired

within the fiscal year in which the loan is made.

(3) The aggregate of the sums borrowed under subsection (1) which are outstanding

at any one time in any fiscal year shall not exceed one-half of the total of the

amounts payable by the participating parties under subsection 56(1) in respect of

that fiscal year.

(4) The authority may, during the fiscal year in which any sum is borrowed and

the two succeeding fiscal years, extend the loan and renew or extend the

promissory notes or other obligations securing the loan.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.63; 1997, c.53, s.5.
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Agreements

64(1) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Act or any provision of any

other Act, the authority or a participating party may, for the whole or part of any

purpose relating or incidental to Wakamow Valley or the land forming part of any

road or street abutting upon Wakamow Valley:

(a) enter into an agreement with the Government of Canada or the council of

any municipality in Saskatchewan, or with each other or with any other

participating party;

(b) expend moneys, provide services and carry out obligations.

(2) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Act or any provision of any other

Act, a participating party may pay moneys to the authority on account of any

future obligation of the participating party to the authority, whether or not the

amount of the obligation is then known and whether or not the obligation is likely

to be incurred in the same fiscal year as the fiscal year in which the payment is

made.

(3) All moneys to be paid under subsection (1) or (2) by the government shall,

subject to the approval of the Lieutenant Governor in Council, be paid out of the

general revenue fund.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.64; 2002, c.C-11.1, s.419;
2004, c.10, s.17; 2005, c.M-36.1, s.480.

MISCELLANEOUS

Non-liability of participating parties, etc.

65 No action lies against a participating party, any member, officer or employee

of the authority acting on the instructions of the authority or pursuant to the

authority of this Act, the architect planner of the authority or any committee

appointed by the authority for any loss or damage suffered by any person or

participating party by reason of anything in good faith done or omitted to be done

in the exercise or supposed exercise of any authority granted pursuant to this Act

or a bylaw.

1988-89, c.23, s.4.

Proposal re development plan

66 A participating party may propose to the authority that the development plan

be implemented, elaborated or amended.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.66.

Fire protection

67(1) Subject to subsection (2), the city shall provide fire protection in respect of

property of the authority in Wakamow Valley.

(2) The authority may take measures necessary for the prevention and

extinguishment of fires within Wakamow Valley and, without limiting the

generality of the foregoing, may purchase or otherwise acquire engines and other

fire fighting equipment and engage the necessary staff for carrying out such

measures.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.67.
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Law enforcement

68(1) The city shall provide law enforcement in Wakamow Valley.

(2) Without limiting the powers of the city to provide law enforcement in

Wakamow Valley, the authority may appoint special constables, to be engaged at

the expense of the authority, who have the authority to perform and exercise,

within Wakamow Valley, all the duties and powers that constables and peace

officers are by law authorized to perform or exercise.

(3) Special constables appointed under subsection (2) are, in the performance of

their duties and the exercise of their powers, subject to the lawful directions and

orders of the chief of police of the city.

(4) The authority shall supply every special constable with an identification card

and every special constable shall, before entering upon his duties, take and

subscribe to an oath or affirmation in the same form, with any necessary

modification, as the form prescribed in the regulations made pursuant to The

Police Act, 1990.

(5) No special constable shall be a member of the police force of the city, and

neither the city nor the board of police commissioners of the city is responsible for

any act of a special constable or for his failure to act in any circumstances.

(6) The authority may make any charges against any participating party that it

considers reasonable, in respect of services performed by special constables, and a

participating party against whom any such charge has been made shall pay the

amount of the charge to the authority.

(7) Nothing in this section affects the power of the government or the Minister of

Justice to provide for the performance of police duties within Wakamow Valley by

members of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police or special constables appointed

under The Police Act, 1990.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.68; 1983, c.11, s.94; 1990-
91, c.P-15.01, s.103.

Exemption from taxation

69 No authority land or improvement on authority land is subject to taxation for

provincial, municipal or school purposes.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.69.

Architect planner

70(1) The authority shall, upon any terms and conditions that it considers

desirable, appoint an architect, a landscape architect or a community planner, or a

firm consisting of or including any number of those persons, to be an architect

planner for the authority.

(2) The architect planner appointed pursuant to subsection (1) shall review the

development plan at least once every seven years.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.70; 1993, c.20, s.4.
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Attestation of deeds

71 Except in cases otherwise provided for in this Act, all deeds executed under

the common seal of the authority shall be attested by the signature of the chairman

or vice-chairman and the secretary or any member designated by the authority for

the purpose.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.71.

Evidence of bylaw, etc.

72(1) A copy of a resolution, bylaw or other document in the custody of the

secretary of the authority which purports to be:

(a) certified by the secretary to be a true copy; and

(b) sealed with the seal of the authority;

is admissible in evidence as prima facie proof:

(c) of the resolution, bylaw or document; and

(d) of its contents;

without proof of the signature or official character of the person purporting to have

signed the certificate.

(2) A printed copy of a bylaw passed by the authority and purporting to be printed

by the Queen’s Printer or under the authorization of the authority is admissible in

evidence as prima facie proof of its contents and of the fact that it has been duly

passed without any further proof.

1980-81, c. W-1.1, s.72.

Majority view

73 Unless a member of a committee or subcommittee of the authority requests

that a meeting be held for the purpose of rendering the decision, view or advice of

the committee or subcommittee respecting a matter, the decision, view or advice of

the committee or subcommittee, when supported individually by a majority of its

members, may be accepted as the decision, view or advice of the committee or

subcommittee, as the case may be, without the necessity of holding a committee or

subcommittee meeting for the purpose.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.73.

Audit

74(1) The authority shall appoint an auditor and cause an annual audit of the

books, accounts and financial affairs of the authority to be made by the auditor.

(2) The auditor shall, immediately after completing an audit, prepare a report

with respect to his findings and furnish each participating party with a copy of the

report.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.74.
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Approval of authority required

75(1) Where a member of the Executive Council or any other person is authorized

to grant any licence, permit, approval, right, authority, grant, permission, lease or

concession under The Agricultural Operations Act, The Water Power Act, The

Environmental Protection and Management Act or The Saskatchewan Watershed

Authority Act, 2005 or under any regulations made under any of those Acts, for the

doing of any act or thing in Wakamow Valley or in or upon any land owned by the

authority outside Wakamow Valley, the approval of the authority to the granting

thereof shall first be obtained by the applicant.

(2) Nothing in subsection (1) affects the application of any Act or regulation

mentioned in that subsection which requires an approval, or which requires the

doing or omitting of any act or thing, in respect of a licence, permit, approval, right,

authority, grant, permission, lease or concession granted or to be granted under

such Act or regulation.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.75; 1983-84, c.63, s.15;
2002, c.S-35.02, s.154; 2005, c.35.03, s.118.

Roads, etc., within management area

76(1) Notwithstanding anything in The Cities Act, The Municipalities Act or any

other Act, no road, street, bridge, highway, lane, alley, square or public place

within the management area constructed by the authority shall be under the

direction, management or control of the city or the rural municipality, but this

section does not affect the application, pursuant to subsection 3(5), of bylaws of the

city or the rural municipality.

(2) Repealed. 2005, c.M-36.1, s.480.

1980-81, c.W-1.1, s.76. 1984-85-86, c.16, s.42;
2002, c.C-11.1, s.419;  2005, c.M-36.1, s.480.

Crown bound

77 The Crown is bound by this Act.

1980-81, c.W-1.1 s.77.

SCHEDULE A

1 All those lands, as shown in Plan Old 96, described as follows:

(a) Lots 1 and 20 in Block 90;

(b) Lots 19 to 22, inclusive, in Block 91;

(c) Lots 19 to 22, inclusive, in Block 112;

(d) Lots 1 and 20 in Block 113;

(e) Lots 1 and 20 in Block 121;

(f) Lots 19 to 22, inclusive, in Block 122;

(g) Lots 1 to 7, inclusive, and Lots 22 to 30, inclusive, in Block 134;
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(h) all that portion of:

(i) the lane in Block 134, lying west of the production southerly of a line drawn parallel to and

6.096 metres perpendicularly distant westerly from the east boundary of Lot 2 in Block 134;

(ii) Selwyn Street, lying between the production southerly of the west boundary of the east half

of Lot 25 in Block 134 and the south-east limit of Pasqua Street;

(iii) North Bridge Street, lying between the production southerly of the east boundary of Lot 11

in Block 142 and the right bank of Moose Jaw Creek; and

(iv) Pasqua Street, lying between the south limit of Manitoba Street and the north limit of North

Bridge Street;

except all that portion lying to the east of a line drawn parallel to and 6.096 metres perpendicularly

distant westerly from the east boundary of Lot 2 in Block 134;

(i) Block 142 and all that portion of North Bridge Street, lying between the production southerly of the

east boundary of Lot 12;

(j) Blocks 144 and 149;

(k) Lots 1 to 10, inclusive, in Block 157;

(l) Lots 1 to 10, inclusive, in Block 158;

(m) Lots 4 to 17, inclusive, in Block 162; and

(n) Blocks 171A, 196A and 197A, as amended by M.T.O. 61 MJ 12884.

2 Lots 4 to 6, inclusive, in Block A, as shown in Plan D 850.

3 Block 1 and Blocks A and B, as shown in Plan E 1505.

4 All those lands, as shown in Plan F 1789, described as follows:

(a) Block 1, except that portion as shown in Plan CX 345; and

(b) Block 2, except Parcel A as shown in Plan BA 3400.

5 Block D, as shown in Plan G 1209.

6 All those lands, as shown in Plan N 3102, described as follows:

(a) Lot 1, except the north 60.96 metres;

(b) Lot 2, except the north 53.34 metres;

(c) Lot 3, except the north 45.72 metres;

(d) Lot 4, except the north 38.10 metres; and

(e) Lots 5 to 7, inclusive.

7 Lots 7 to 16, inclusive, in Block K, as shown in Plan N 4280.

8 All those lands as shown in Plan R 1941, described as follows:

(a) Blocks 1 to 9, inclusive, and Blocks 17 and 20;

(b) Parcel A, as amended by M.T.O. 72 MJ 01571;

(c) Blocks H and J, as amended by M.T.O. 62 MJ 06348; and

(d) Maryland Public Park.

9 All those lands, as shown in Plan S 2499, described as follows:

(a) Lots 21 to 23, inclusive, Lots 35 to 37, inclusive, and the east half of Lot 38 in Block 4;

(b) Lots 1, 2 and 7 in Block 2; and

(c) Blocks 5 and 6.
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10 Blocks 21 to 24, inclusive, Blocks 25 to 28, inclusive, and Blocks 37 to 40, inclusive, as shown in

Plan S 3865.

11 blocks 1 to 13, inclusive, Blocks 25 to 28, inclusive, and Blocks A and B, as shown in Plan V 1328.

12 All those lands, as shown in Plan AD 885, described as follows:

(a) Block G; and

(b) Block H, as amended by M.T.O. 62 MJ 06348.

13 Parcel A as shown in Plan BA 3400.

14 All those lands, as shown in Plan BF 1256, described as follows:

(a) Block B, except the north 182.88 metres;

(b) Block C, except the north 152.4 metres;

(c) Block D, except the north 121.92 metres; and

(d) Block E, except the north 91.44 metres.

15 Blocks 1 to 10, inclusive, Block 12, and Blocks R and R1, as shown in Plan CX 33.

16 Blocks 13 to 16, inclusive, and Blocks 18 and 19, as shown in Plan CX 126.

17 Blocks 17 and 20, as shown in Plan CX 251.

18 Parcel L as shown in Plan CX 296.

19 Parcels L and M, as shown in Plan CX 345.

20 All those lands, as shown in Plan EX 222, described as follows:

(a) Parcels A, C, D and E; and

(b) Block R1, as amended by M.T.O. 76 MJ 03766.

21 Blocks 17 and 21, as shown in Plan EX 1001.

22 Parcel N, as shown in Plan 59 MJ 10599.

23 Blocks B and C, as shown in Plan 61 MJ 10993.

24 Parcel A, as shown in Plan 61 MJ 12463.

25 Block 271, as shown in Plan 63 MJ 03288.

26 Lots 1 and 10 in Block 19, as shown in Plan 66 MJ 09836.

27 All those lands, as shown in Plan 67 MJ 05748, described as follows:

(a) Lot A in Block 4; and

(b) Lot A in Block E.

28 Parcel B, as shown in Plan 68 MJ 01459.

29 Block 20, as shown in Plan 73 MJ 01303.

30 Block C, as shown in Plan 74 MJ 11295.

31 Blocks D, E, F, G and H, as shown in Plan 75 MJ 01141.

32 Parcel A, as shown in Plan 75 MJ 08030.

33 All those lands, as shown in Plan 77 MJ 09336, described as follows:

(a) Lots B, C and D; and

(b) Block R.

Page  540 of 792



28

c. W-1.1 WAKAMOW VALLEY AUTHORITY

34 All those lands in Township 16, in Range 26, west of the Second Meridian, described as follows:

(a) all that portion of the north-east quarter of Section 28, lying east of a line drawn parallel to and

251.46 metres perpendicularly distant from the west boundary of the quarter section, except all that

portion as shown in Plan S 3865;

(b) the west 251.46 metres in perpendicular width throughout of the north-east quarter of Section 28,

lying north of the north limit of Princess Street, as that street is shown in Plan S 3865, except all that

portion as shown in Plan E 1505;

(c) all that portion of the north-west quarter of Section 28 contained within the boundaries of a line

drawn:

(i) commencing at the south-west corner of the quarter section;

(ii) thence northerly along the west boundary of the quarter section a distance of 239.99 metres;

(iii) thence easterly and parallel to the south boundary of the quarter section a distance of 84.49

metres;

(iv) thence southerly and parallel to the west boundary of the quarter section to the south

boundary of the quarter section; and

(v) thence westerly along the south boundary of the quarter section to the point of commencement;

(d) all that portion of the original road allowance known as Main Street, lying west of the north-west

quarter of Section 28, as shown in Plan CP 288, except the most north-westerly 6.096 metres in

perpendicular width throughout;

(e) all that portion of the north-east quarter of Section 29 contained within the boundaries of a line

drawn:

(i) commencing at the intersection of the production easterly of the north limit of Block 2, as

shown in Plan F 1789, with the east boundary of the quarter section;

(ii) thence westerly along the production and the north limit of Block 2, as shown in Plan F 1789,

to the right bank of Moose Jaw Creek;

(iii) thence northerly along the right bank of Moose Jaw Creek to its intersection with the east

boundary of the quarter section; and

(iv) thence southerly along the east boundary of the quarter section to the point of commencement;

(f) the north-west quarter of Section 29, except:

(i) all that portion taken for the Riverview Addition to the City of Moose Jaw, as shown in

Plan O 4753, as amended by M.T.O. AI 1616;

(ii) all that portion lying north of a line drawn parallel to and 409.65 metres distant southerly

from the north boundary of the quarter section and west of the west limit of Fourth Avenue and

its production southerly, as Fourth Avenue is shown in Plan O 4753;

(iii) all that portion, as shown in Plan EX 222;

(iv) all that portion, as shown in Plan EX 1010; and

(v) Parcel A, as shown in Plan 75 MJ 08030;

(g) the north half of the south-east quarter of Section 29;

(h) the south-west quarter of Section 29, except all that portion, as shown in Plan V 1328, as amended

by M.T.O. 59 MJ 09221;

(i) all that portion of the south-west quarter of section 29 described as follows:

(i) Parcel F, as shown in Plan 59 MJ 09223; and

(ii) Parcels X and Y, as shown in Plan 65 MJ 07348;

(j) all that portion of the south-east and south-west quarters of Section 32, the south-west quarter of

Section 33 and the original road allowance, lying between Sections 32 and 33, contained within the

boundaries of a line drawn:
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(i) commencing at the intersection of the south limit of Manitoba Street, as shown in Plan Old

96, with the west limit of a roadway, as shown in Plan G 2009;

(ii) thence westerly along the south limit of Manitoba Street to the east limit of Second Avenue;

(iii) thence southerly along the east limit of Second Avenue to the south limit of Langtry Street,

as shown in Plan Old 96;

(iv) thence westerly along the south limit of Langtry Street to the west boundary of Section 32;

(v) thence southerly along the west boundary of Section 32 to the north limit of Home Street, as

shown in Plan Old 96;

(vi) thence easterly along the north limit of Home Street to the west limit of Third Avenue;

(vii) thence northerly along the west limit of Third Avenue to the north limit of South Crescent

Street, as shown in Plan Old 96;

(viii) thence easterly along the north limit of South Crescent Street to the east limit of Fifth

Avenue;

(ix) thence southerly along the east limit of Fifth Avenue to the north limit of Maple Street, as

shown in Plan Old 96;

(x) thence easterly along the north limit of Maple Street to the east limit of Seventh Avenue;

(xi) thence southerly along the east limit of Seventh Avenue to the north limit of Home Street;

(xii) thence easterly along the north limit of Home Street to the west limit of Main Street, as

shown in Plan Old 96;

(xiii) thence northerly along the west limit of Main Street to the production of the north limit of

the unnamed street north of Block 159, as shown in Plan 0ld 96;

(xiv) thence easterly along the north limit of the unnamed street and its production to the west

limit of the roadway shown in Plan G 2009; and

(xv) thence northerly along the west limit of the roadway shown in Plan

G 2009 to the point of commencement;

except:

(xvi) Parcel A, as shown in Plan 61 MJ 12463;

(xvii) Parcel B, as shown in Plan 68 MJ 01459;

(xviii) all that portion, as shown in Plan 77 MJ 09336;

(xix) all that portion, as shown in Plan 74 MJ 11295;

(xx) all that portion, as shown in Plan 75 MJ 01141; and

(xxi) all that portion of the south-west quarter of Section 32, lying west of the east limit of Fifth

Avenue South West;

(k) all that portion of Bow Street and South Bridge Street in the south-west quarter of Section 33, lying

west of a line drawn due north and south 30.48 metres perpendicularly distant westerly from the most

westerly point of Lot 1 in Block 149, as those streets and lots are shown in Plan Old 96;

(l) all that portion of Section 33 contained within the boundaries of a line drawn:

(i) commencing at the intersection of the north limit of Coteau Street with a line drawn parallel

to and perpendicularly distant easterly 20.12 metres from the east limit of Block 197;

(ii) thence northerly, parallel to and perpendicularly distant easterly 20.12 metres from the east

limits of Blocks 197, 196, 171 and 162, a distance of 20.12 metres, more or less, to a point

perpendicularly distant northerly 20.12 metres from the north limit of Block 162;

(iii) thence westerly and parallel to the north limit of Block 162 to intersect a line drawn parallel

to and perpendicularly distant north-westerly 20.12 metres from the north limit of Block 161;

(iv) thence south-westerly and parallel to the north limit of Block 161 to intersect a line drawn

parallel to and perpendicularly distant northerly 20.12 metres from the north limit of Block 160;
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(v) thence westerly and parallel to the north limit of Block 160 to the east limit of the unnamed

street 20.12 metres in width connecting the unnamed street north of Block 159 with Manitoba

Street;

(vi) thence north-easterly and northerly along the east limit of the connecting street and its

different courses to the south limit of Manitoba Street;

(vii) thence easterly along the south limit of Manitoba Street to the west limit of Pasqua Street;

(viii) thence south-westerly along the west limit of Pasqua Street to the north limit of North

Bridge Street;

(ix) thence west along the north limit of North Bridge Street or its production to the water’s edge

of Moose Jaw Creek;

(x) thence southerly along the water’s edge or Moose Jaw Creek to the south limit of North

Bridge Street;

(xi) thence easterly along the south limit of North Bridge Street to the west limit of Eighteenth

Avenue;

(xii) thence southerly along the west limit or Eighteenth Avenue to the north limit of South

Bridge Street;

(xiii) thence westerly along the north limit of South Bridge Street to the water’s edge of Moose

Jaw Creek;

(xiv) thence southerly along the water’s edge of Moose Jaw Creek to the south limit of South

Bridge Street;

(xv) thence easterly along the south limit of South Bridge Street to the west limit of Bow Street;

(xvi) thence south-easterly, easterly and north-easterly along the west, south and east limits of

Bow Street to the old south limit of South Bridge Street;

(xvii) thence easterly along the old south limit of South Bridge Street to its intersection with the

south-west limit of Caron Crescent;

(xviii) thence south-easterly along the south-west limit of Caron Crescent to intersect a line

drawn parallel to and perpendicularly distant westerly 20.12 metres from the west limit of

Block 170;

(xix) thence southerly and parallel to the west limit of Block 170 to the north limit of Coteau

Street;

(xx) thence westerly along the north limit of Coteau Street to the point of commencement;

as the streets, blocks and crescent are shown in Plan Old 96, except:

(xxi) all that portion, as shown in Plan 61 MJ 10993; and

(xxii) all that portion, as shown in Plan 75 MJ 01141.

SCHEDULE B

1 All those lands, as shown in Plan Old 96, described as follows:

(a) Lots 1 to 6, inclusive, and Lots 11 and 12 in Block 87;

(b) Block 88;

(c) Lots 1 to 18, inclusive, and Lot 21 in Block 89;

(d) Lots 4 to 20, inclusive, in Block 114;

(e) Block 114A and Parcels P and Q, as amended by M.T.O. CX 557;

(f) Lots 1 to 10, inclusive, in Block 116;

(g) Lots 1 to 20, inclusive, in Block 119;
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(h) Block 120;

(i) Lots 11 to 19, inclusive, in Block 121;

(j) Lots 23 to 40, inclusive, in Block 122;

(k) Lots 11 to 25, inclusive, and Lot A in Block 123;

(l) Lots 8 to 21, inclusive, in Block 134;

(m) Blocks 143, 150 and 156;

(n) Lots 11 to 20 in Block 157;

(o) Lots 11 to 20 in Block 158;

(p) Blocks 159, 160 and 161;

(q) Lots 1 and 20 in Block 162;

(r) Lots 1 to 8, inclusive, in Block 175;

(s) Lots 1 to 10, inclusive, in Block 176;

(t) Lots 1 to 10, inclusive, in Block 177;

(u) Parcel T, as amended by M.T.O. EX 216; and

(v) Parcel M, as amended by M.T.O. CX 141.

2 Lots 1 to 3, inclusive, in Block A, as shown in Plan D 850.

3 Blocks 7 and 8, as shown in Plan D 3174.

4 All those lands, as shown in Plan D 3845.

5 Lots 38 to 66, inclusive, as shown in Plan D 4450.

6 All those lands, as shown in Plan G 1209, described as follows:

(a) Lots 10 to 17, inclusive, in Block C; and

(b) Block E.

7 All those lands, as shown in Plan N 1398 and Parcel B in Plan N 1398, as amended by M.T.O. 65 MJ

04067.

8 All those lands, as shown in Plan N 3102, described as follows:

(a) the north 60.96 metres of Lot 1;

(b) the north 53.34 metres of Lot 2;

(c) the north 45.72 metres of Lot 3; and

(d) the north 38.10 metres of Lot 4.

9 Lots 1 to 6, inclusive, in Block K, as shown in Plan N 4280.

10 All those lands, as shown in Plan N 4354, described as follows:

(a) Lots 71A and 63, as amended by M.T.O. 64 MJ 12209; and

(b) Lot B, as amended by M.T.O. 69 MJ 09621.

11 All those lands, as shown in Plan O 473, described as follows:

(a) Lots 11 and 12 in Block 21; and

(b) Lots 7 to 11, inclusive, in Block 22.

12 Lots 13 to 20, inclusive, in Block 231, as shown in Plan O 4753.

13 Lots 29, 31, 33, 35 and 37, as shown in Plan R 3437.

14 Block A, as shown in Plan R 4723.

Page  544 of 792



32

c. W-1.1 WAKAMOW VALLEY AUTHORITY

15 All those lands, as shown in Plan S 128, described as follows:

(a) Lots 21 to 40, inclusive, in Block 232;

(b) Lots A and B and Lots 1 to 15, inclusive, in Block 233; and

(c) Lots 8 to 20, inclusive, and Lots 22 to 24, inclusive, in Block 241.

16 All those lands, as shown in Plan S 2499, described as follows:

(a) Lots 3 to 6, inclusive, and Lot A in Block 2; and

(b) Lots 1 to 10, inclusive, the west half of Lot 38 and Lots 39 and 40 in Block 4.

17 Blocks 1 to 4, inclusive, Blocks 13 to 16, inclusive, Block 13A, Blocks 17 to 20, inclusive, and Blocks 29

to 36, inclusive, as shown in Plan S 3865.

18 All those lands, as shown in Plan BF 1256, described as follows:

(a) the north 182.88 metres of Block B;

(b) the north 152.40 metres of Block C;

(c) the north 121.92 metres of Block D; and

(d) the north 91.44 metres of Block E.

19 All that portion of Block A, lying south of the north limit of Manitoba Street West, as shown in Plan

BV 5530.

20 Block C, except the portion shown in Plan 71 MJ 01346, as shown in Plan CK 579.

21 All those lands, as shown in Plan EX 222, described as follows:

(a) Lots 11 to 27, inclusive, in Block 230;

(b) Lots 8 to 14, inclusive, in Block 244; and

(c) Parcel R.

22 All those lands, as shown in Plan EX 1010, described as follows:

(a) Lots 13 to 28, inclusive, in Block 265; and

(b) Block R4.

23 Blocks A, B and C, as shown in Plan 62 MJ 06543.

24 Parcel X, as shown in Plan 63 MJ 03696.

25 Parcel Y, as shown in Plan 63 MJ 03697.

26 Parcel Z, as shown in Plan 63 MJ 03698.

27 Parcels D, E, F, G and FF, as shown in Plan 67 MJ 04892.

28 Lot B in Block 4, as amended by M.T.O. 73 MJ 10474, as shown in Plan 67 MJ 0 5748.

29 Block 25, as shown in Plan 67 MJ 13991.

30 Parcel C, as shown in Plan 68 MJ 04058.

31 Parcel G, as shown in Plan 68 MJ 04421.

32 All that portion of Block H, lying south of the north limit of Manitoba Street West, as shown in Plan 71

MJ 01346.

33 Lots A, B, C and D, as shown in Plan 72 MJ 00318.

34 Lots D and C in Block 265, as shown in Plan 72 MJ 11622.

35 Lots A, B, C and D in Block 87, as shown in Plan 73 MJ 05140.

36 Block F, as shown in Plan 73 MJ 13196.

37 Parcel F, as shown in Plan 73 MJ 15131.
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38 Block B, as shown in Plan 77 MJ 06016.

39 All that portion of Parcel M, lying south of the north limit of Manitoba Street West, as shown in Plan 77

MJ 08834.

40 Parcel H, as shown in Plan 79 MJ 04363.

41 Lots 1 to 7, inclusive, in Block 27, as shown in Plan 79 MJ 15502.

42 Parcel C, as shown in Plan 80 MJ 03174.

43 All those lands shown in Plan 80 MJ 08559.

44 All those lands, in Township 16, in Range 26, west of the Second Meridian, described as follows:

(a) the north-east and north-west quarters of Section 20;

(b) the north-west quarter of Section 27, except all that portion as shown in Plan N 1015;

(c) all that portion of the north-east quarter of Section 29 contained within the boundaries of a line

drawn:

(i) commencing at a point on the east boundary of the quarter section 201.17 metres distant

southerly from the north-east corner of the quarter section;

(ii) thence westerly and parallel to the north boundary of the quarter section a distance of 42.37

metres to the point of commencement;

(iii) thence westerly and parallel to the north boundary of the quarter section a distance of 38.10

metres;

(iv) thence southerly and parallel to the east boundary of the quarter section a distance of 15.24

metres;

(v) thence easterly and parallel to the north boundary of the quarter section a distance of 38.10

metres; and

(vi) thence northerly and parallel to the east boundary of the quarter section a distance of 15.24

metres, more or less, to the point of commencement;

(d) those portions of Parcels A and B, lying within Legal Subdivisions 1 and 2 in the south-east quarter

of Section 29;

(e) all that portion of the south-west quarter of Section 32 bounded:

(i) on the north by the south limit of Manitoba Street West;

(ii) on the east by the east limit of Fifth Avenue South West;

(iii) on the south by the north limit of South Crescent Street; and

(iv) on the west by the east limit of Sixth Avenue South West;

except all those portions as shown in Plans BV 5530, CK 579, 71 MJ 01346 and 77 MJ 08834;

(f) all those portions of Section 33:

(i) contained within the boundaries of a line drawn:

(A) commencing at the intersection of the north limit of Pasqua Street with the east limit

of Sixteenth Avenue;

(B) thence easterly along the north limit of Pasqua Street to the water’s edge of Moose

Jaw Creek;

(C) thence southerly along the water’s edge of Moose Jaw Creek to the south limit of

Skeena Street;

(D) thence westerly along the south limit of Skeena Street to the east limit of Seventeenth

Avenue;

(E) thence southerly along the east limit of Seventeenth Avenue to the north limit of

Manitoba Street;
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(F) thence easterly along the north limit of Manitoba Street to the west limit of High

Street;

(G) thence north-westerly along the limit of High Street to the east limit of Sixteenth

Avenue; and

(H) thence southerly along the east limit of Sixteenth Avenue to the point of commencement;

as these streets and avenues are shown in Plan Old 96, except all that portion as shown in Plan 67

MJ 04892;

(ii) contained within the boundaries of a line drawn:

(A) commencing at the intersection of the east limit of Fourteenth Avenue with the north

limit of Pasqua Street, as shown in Plan Old 96;

(B) thence north-easterly along the north limit of Pasqua Street to the west limit of

Fifteenth Avenue;

(C) thence northerly along the west limit of Fifteenth Avenue to the south limit of High

Street;

(D) thence westerly along the south limit of High Street to the east limit of Fourteenth

Avenue; and

(E) thence southerly along the east limit of Fourth Avenue to the point of commencement;

and

(iii) contained within the boundaries of a line drawn:

(A) commencing at the intersection of the east limit of Fifteenth Avenue with the north

limit of Pasqua Street, as this street and avenue are shown in Plan Old 96;

(B) thence easterly along the north limit of Pasqua Street to the west limit of Sixteenth

Avenue;

(C) thence northerly along the west limit of Sixteenth Avenue to the north water’s edge of

Moose Jaw Creek;

(D) thence westerly along the north water’s edge of Moose Jaw Creek to the east limit of

Fifteenth Avenue; and

(E) thence southerly along the east limit of Fifteenth Avenue to the point of commencement;

and

(iv) contained within the boundaries of a line drawn:

(A) commencing at the intersection of the east limit of Thirteenth Avenue produced with

the north limit of Pasqua Street, as this street and avenue are shown in Plan Old 96;

(B) thence north-easterly along the north limit of Pasqua Street to the west limit of

Fourteenth Avenue;

(C) thence northerly along the west limit of Fourteenth Avenue to the south limit of High

Street;

(D) thence westerly along the south limit of High Street to the north-east corner of

Block 114A;

(E) thence south-westerly along the south-east limit of Block 114A to the east limit of

Thirteenth Avenue; and

(F) thence southerly along the production of the east limit of Thirteenth Avenue to the

point of commencement;

(g) the north-east quarter of Section 34;

Page  547 of 792



35

c. W-1.1WAKAMOW VALLEY AUTHORITY

(h) all that portion of the north-west quarter of Section 34:

(i) contained within the boundaries of a line drawn:

(A) commencing at a point on the south boundary of the quarter section a distance

of 246.07 metres west from the south-east corner of the quarter section;

(B) thence northerly a distance of 177.09 metres at an angle of 90o and 1';

(C) thence easterly a distance of 159.94 metres at an angle of 90o and 1';

(D) thence southerly at an angle of 89o and 59' to the south boundary of the quarter

section; and

(E) thence westerly along the south boundary of the quarter section to the point of

commencement;

except all that portion as shown in Plan 77 MJ 06016; and

(ii) contained within the boundaries of a line drawn:

(A) commencing at the south-east corner of the quarter section;

(B) thence westerly along the south boundary of the quarter section a distance of 246.07

metres;

(C) thence northerly a distance of 345.25 metres at an angle of 90o

and 1';

(D) thence easterly at an angle of 90o and 1' to the east boundary of the quarter section;

and

(E) thence southerly along the east boundary of the quarter section to the point of

commencement; and

(i) the north-west quarter of Section 35.

45 The south-west quarter of Section 2, in Township 17, in Range 26, west of the Second Meridian, except

all that portion lying north of the north limit of the right of way as shown in Plan AF 6582.

SCHEDULE C

[Section 6]

DECLARATION OF OWNERSHIP OF LANDS WITHIN WAKAMOW VALLEY

I, ____________________________________ of _________________________  in the Province of Saskatchewan,

___________________________ , SOLEMNLY DECLARE AS FOLLOWS:

1. THAT attached hereto and marked as an Exhibit to this my declaration is a complete list of lands owned

by me within the meaning of The Wakamow Valley Authority Act and situate in Wakamow Valley.

2. THAT I make this declaration pursuant to section 6 of The Wakamow Valley Authority Act.

3. THAT I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing it to be true and knowing that it is of the

same force and effect as if made under oath and by virtue of the Canada Evidence Act.

DECLARED before me at

in the Province of

Saskatchewan this ___________

day of ______________________ , __________________________________

A.D. 19 _____ .

____________________________________

A COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS

in and for the Province of Saskatchewan.

My commission expires Dec. 31, 19 _____ .
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COMMUNICATION #42 
 
TITLE: Request to Address – Moose Jaw & District Senior Citizens Association Inc. 

and Cosmo Senior Citizens’ Centre 

 

TO:  City Council 

 

FROM:  City Clerk/Solicitor  

 

DATE:  May 15, 2019 

 

PUBLIC:  This is a Public Document.   

 

IN-CAMERA:  Not applicable to this report. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. THAT representatives from the Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc. 

(“MJDSA”) and the Cosmo Senior Citizens Centre (Cosmo) be allowed to address 

members of City Council; and 

 

2. THAT a decision on financial support to the organizations be a decision of City 

Council.  

 

TOPIC AND PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this report is to introduce a request to address City Council on May 27, 

2019 regarding the future of the Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association’s 

activity centre and the Cosmo Senior Citizens’ Centre.  Both organizations are seeking 

financial support from the City.   

 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 

 

The City has long term arrangements to lease property to both the MJDSA and the 

Cosmo.  The MJDSA Lease Agreement expired in 2011 and the tenancy lease has 

remained on a year to year tenancy at will basis with the same terms.   The MJDSA lease 

majority of the main floor and the basement of the former Eaton’s building in their lease 

agreement with the City. The Cosmo has a current Lease Agreement dated May 30, 2011 

with the City for an initial term of 20 years commencing (and retroactive to) January 1, 

2005 and expiring on December 31, 2025 with successive 5 year terms thereafter.  The 

formal rent charged to both organizations is $1 per year. 

 

 

 

 

 

City of  

Moose Jaw 
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As occupants of the respective buildings, Cosmo and the MJDSA (main floor and 

basement) are required to cover the cost of all utilities (water, gas, electricity, telephone). 

The cost of utilities for each unit and the common areas for the MJDSA and in the 

absence of separate meters is calculated by engineering calculations of the pro rata 

share of consumption of each of the units, which includes heat loss calculations, 41% for 

Unit A and 59% for Unit B.  Two commercial tenants and The Moose Jaw Non-Profit Housing 

Corporation (“MJNPHC”), which own the top two floors, cover the remaining utilities. 

 

The Lease Agreement between the City and MJDSA was established at a $1.00 per year, 

however, the MJDSA agreed to assume full responsibility for the City’s obligations under 

the Bylaws of the Condominium Corporation and the Management Agreement with the 

Moose Jaw Housing Authority. 

 
Both organizations receive funding through the Saskatchewan Lotteries Community 

Grant Program.  That history is outlined below.  

 
MJDSA received the following funding over the past five years through the Community 

Grant Program: 

 

2018 - $20,065.30 

2017 - $20,065.30 

2016 - $20,065.30 

2015 - $20,065.30 

2014 - $19,965.49 

 

Cosmo received the following funding over the past five years through the Community 

Grant Program: 

 

2018 - $6,420.90 

2017 - $6.420.90 

2016 - $7,408.73 

2015 - $6,420.90 

2014 - $6,520.71 

 

Summary of the annual funding the City received from Sask Lotteries over the past five 

years: 

 

2018 - $ 132,431 

2017 - $ 132,431 

2016 - $ 132,431 

2015 - $ 132,431 

2014 – $132,431 

 

 

The process the City uses to adjudicate Sask Lotteries Community Grant Program funding 

to the Seniors groups is as follows: 

 

• Guidelines set up by Saskatchewan Lotteries state that at least 30% of the overall 

grant amount must be allocated to target populations such as seniors, indigenous 

people, persons with disabilities, women, single parent families, etc. 
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• City policy further directs that two-thirds of the 30% shall be distributed (based on a 

percentage of membership), between the Cosmo’s Senior Citizen Centre and the 

Moose Jaw and District Seniors Association and the remaining one-third is disbursed 

in support of other qualifying target group programs. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

The City currently does not have a source of funding from which to provide potential 

financial support.  Any decision to provide support would require a determination of that 

matter by City Council. 

 

PRESENTATION 

 

VERBAL:  X  AUDIO/VISUAL:   NONE:  

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 
I. Letter dated May 8, 2019 from Moose Jaw and District Seniors Association Inc. 

II. Moose Jaw and District Seniors Association Inc. Financial Statements - 2016, 2017, 

2018. 

III. Letter from William Smith, President, Cosmo Senior Citizens’ Centre. 

IV. Cosmo Senior Citizens’ Centre Financial Statements - 2016, 2018. 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted By, 

 

 

Myron Gulka-Tiechko 

__________________________________________  

Myron Gulka-Tiechko, City Clerk/Solicitor  
 

 

 

APPROVAL OF REPORT RECEIVED     COMMENTS RECEIVED 

 

 

 

 

Jim Puffalt 

_________________________________________ 

Jim Puffalt, City Manager 
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Fraser Tolmie 

_________________________________________ 

Fraser Tolmie, Mayor 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be completed by the Clerk’s Department only. 

 

Presented to Regular Council or Executive Committee on _____________________________________________________. 

 

No. _________________________         Resolution No. _________________________________________________ 
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#101-510 Main St. ^

Moose Ja-w, SX S6^3^3

/TeC: (306) 694-4223 Sports LeveC: (306) 694-0023
jFax* (306) 694-1991 XmcdC: mjsenior@sasfiteCnet

May 8, 2019

Dear Mayor Fraser Tolmie and Council Members;

The representatives of Moose Jaw & District Seniors Association Inc (MJDSA) would like to

address the Mayor and Council at the May 27, 2019 City Council Meeting.

Our Association is facing growing financial difficulties. This financial uncertainty is having an

impact on our ability to create revenue through rentals and programs as people are questioning

if the facility will be available in the future.

The MJDSA is facing more immediate financial crisis/ with only enough savings left for

approximately 6 months of expenses. Compounding this is the lack of designated parking for

the Centre. This has always been a concern and has only increased with the recent parking

meter increases. As parking costs go up/ more and more people are unable to afford to

participate in our programs. The MJDSA has been without a lease since 2011 and have been

unsuccessful in attempts to negotiate one with the City. As you are aware/ we have been trying

to resolve this for the past 5 years.

We would like to open dialogue to address these issues. We acknowledge that this may be

referred to administration but we ask that elected officials (preferably ALL of you) be involved

in those discussions.

We have attached the audited financial statements for the last 4 years for the Moose Jaw &

District Seniors Association.

Moose Jaw & District Seniors Association INC

510 Main Street N
Moose Jaw, SK

S6H 3K3
(306) 694-4223
misenior@sasktel.net
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

Moose Jaw, Saskatchewan

December 31,2016
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MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POStTtON

AS AT DECEMBER 31. 2016

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash
Bank
GST receivable
Conexus Credit Union membership
Equity" Conexus Credit Union
Inventory

CAPITAL ASSETS (note 2)
INVESTMENTS (note 3)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Wages payable
Deferred membership revenue

FUND BALANCES

INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS (note 2)
RESERVES (note 3)
FUND BALANCE

APPROVED PWEHALF OE/T,HE BOARD:

2016

605
12,317

316
15

134
2,069

15,456
65.969

131,454

212,879

2015
$

605
37.993

0
15

130
2,069

40,812
82,295
30,917

154.024

0
8.050

8.050

65,969
131,454

7,406

204,829

212,879_

98
7,473

7,571

82,295
30,917
33,241

146,453

154,024

^^^ ^^-Director ^ ^
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MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2016

2016 2015

REVENUE

Catering and cafeteria - net, page 7
Fundraising
Program activities
Memberships
Rental of facilities
Donations
Interest

Expense recovery and commissions

Recovery - sublet space
Grants

EXPENDITURE, per schedule, page 8

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR

FUND BALANCE - beginning of year

Investment account - line of credit interest

Proceeds from surrender of insurance policy
Loan proceeds from insurance policy
Purchase of capital assets

Transfer to reserves

FUND BALANCE - end of year

3,988
84,242
26,941
20,298
10,088
45,361

2,294

2,705
9,793

19,077

224,787
255,127

(30,340)

33.241

(248)
106,521

0
0

(101,768)^

7,406

(3,276)
82,369
26,312
22,142
9,763

32,254
1,921
2,338

17,519
20.065

211,407
236,027

(24,620)

11,210

0
0

50.000
(3,349)

0

33,241
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MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2016

2016 2015

SOURCES OF CASH

Operating income
Investment income
Grants
Donations
Non-cash working capital component

USES OF CASH

Operating expenses
Facility expenses
Administration expenses
Non-cash working capital component

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH - END OF YEAR

321
2

19
45

107

495

212
112
93

102

521

(25

38

12

,691
,294
,077
,361
,098

,521

,799

,594
,370

,434

,197

.676)

,598

,922

318,874
1,921

20,065
32,254
59,262

432,376

207,016
107.711

83,007
12,701

410.435

21,941

16,657

38,598
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.MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc. is a charitable corporation incorporated in
1989 under the Non-Profit Corporations Act of Saskatchewan. its purpose if to provide facilities,
recreation, social sen/ices and information to persons of age 55 and older and their spouses (if younger),
residing in the City of Moose Jaw and surrounding district. The corporation is also a registered charity
within the meaning of The Income Tax Act,

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are recorded at cost. When capital assets are sold, if the original cost is not known, the
assets are removed at selling price. Amortization of capital assets is recorded on a straight line basis over
the estimated useful life of the assets at the foilowing rates:

2.

Leasehold improvements
Furnishings, fixtures and equipment

20 years
10 years

INVENTORY

Inventory of kitchen and catering supplies is

INVESTMENTS

Investments are valued at fair maket value.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Furnishings, fixtures and equipment
Leasehold improvements

recorded at cost.

Cost
$

161,521
287,509

449,030

Accumulated
amortization

$

156,181
226,880

383,061

2016
$

5,340
60,629

65,969

2015
$

7.292
75,003

82,295

INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS
2016 2015

Balance" beginning of year
Add: purchase of capital assets
Deduct: amortization of capital assets

Balance - end of year

82,

(16

,295
0

,326)

95
3

-06

,272
,349
.326)

65,969 82,295
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Page 6

MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2016

3. RESERVES

Purpose of Reserve

Future premises maintenance

Future recreation equipment replacement
Office equipment replacement and computer acquisition
Unspecified

4. CASH

Cash on hand
Bank - general
Bank - bingo

Bank - lottery
Bank - capital
RBC Dominion Securites

2016

9,000
4,000
2,000

116,454

131>454

2016
$

605
11,087

1,187
34
22

(13).

12,922

2015
$

9,000
4,000
2,000

15.917

30,917

2015
$

605
42.469

12
8

22
(4.518)_

38,598
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Page 2

MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION !NC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash
Bank
GST receivable
Conexus Credit Union membership

Equity - Conexus Credit Union
Inventory

CAPITAL ASSETS (note 2)
INVESTMENTS (note 3)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Wages payable
Deferred membership revenue

FUND BALANCES

INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS (note 2)
RESERVES (note 3)
FUND BALANCE

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

^^/--/ \ /•' v. .. !a^^^f^)--/i }

./'

^^y/--/. \ // '*•- . /^^/^»^-rf-^(5-^

DiceCto/ ' /"

^4</<.,^</c- ^>^-_^
P+fector ' /7

2017
$

605
15,607

217
15

134
3,467

20.045
49.642
83,386

153,073

605
12,317

316
15

134
2,069

15,456
65,969

131,454

212,879

527
6,180

6,707

49,642
83,386
13,338

. 146,366

153.073

0
8,050

8,050

65,969
131,454

7,406

204,829

212,879
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MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017

2017 2016

REVENUE

Catering and cafeteria - net, page 7

Fundraising
Program activities
Memberships
Rental of facilities
Donations

interest

Expense recovery and commissions

Recovery - sublet space

Grants

EXPENDITURE, per schedule, page 8

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR

FUND BALANCE - beginning of year

Investment account - line of credit interest
Proceeds from surrender of insurance policy

Transfer from (to) reserves

FUND BALANCE - end of year

(707)
89,398
25,107
20,655

6,958
12,581

1,495

3,202
15,369
20,065

194,123
243,191

(49,068)

7,406

0
0

55,000

13,338

3,988
84,242
26,941
20,298
10,088
45,361

2,294

2,705
9,793

19,077

224.787
255,127

(30,340)

33,241

(248)
106,521

(101,768)

7,406
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MOOSE JAW AND DISTRiCT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC,

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016

SOURCES OF CASH

Operating income
Investment income
Grants
Donations
Non-cash working capital component

USES OF CASH

Operating expenses
Facility expenses

Administration expenses
Non-cash working capital component

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH-END OF YEAR

322,538
1,495

20,065
12,581
55,626

412,305

209.127
111,778
84,842

3,268

409,015

3.290

12,922

16,2-12

321,691
2,294

19,077
45,361

107,098

495,521

212.799
112,594
93,370

102,434

521,197

(25,676)

38,598

12,922
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MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITiZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc. is a charitable corporation incorporated in
1989 under the Non-Profit Corporations Act of Saskatchewan. Its purpose if to provide facilities,
recreation, social services and information to persons of age 55 and older and their spouses (if younger),
residing in the City of Moose Jaw and surrounding district. The corporation is also a registered charity
within the meaning of The Income Tax Act.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are recorded at cost. When capital assets are sold, if the original cost is not known, the
assets are removed at selling price. Amortization of capital assets is recorded on a straight line basis over
the estimated useful life of the assets at the following rates:

Leasehold improvements
Furnishings, fixtures and equipment

INVENTORY

Inventory of kitchen and catering supplies is recorded at cost

INVESTMENTS

Investments are valued at fair maket value.

CAPITAL ASSETS

20 years
10 years

Furnishings, fixtures and equipment
Leasehold improvements

INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Cost
$

161,521
287,509

449,030

Accumulated
amortization

$

158,134
241,254

399,388

2017
$

3,387
46,255

49,642

2016
$

5,340

60,629

65,969

2017 2016

Balance - beginning of year
Deduct; amortization of capital assets

Balance-end of year

65,969
(16,327)

49,642

82,295
(16,326)

65,969
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Page 6

MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017

3. RESERVES

2017 2016
$ $

Purpose of Reserve

Future premises maintenance

Future recreation equipment replacement
Office equipment replacement and computer acquisition
Unspecified

9,

4,

2,

68

,000
,000

,000
,386

9
4
2

116

,000
,000

.000
,454

83.386 131.454

4. CASH

2017 2016

Cash on hand
Bank-general
Bank - bingo

BanK - lottery

Bank - capital

RBC Dominion Securites

605
15,532

26
27
22

0

16,212

11
1

12

605
,087

,187
34
22

(13)

,922

Page  566 of 792



Page/

MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

SCHEDULE OF CATERING AND CAFETERIA OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016

Revenue from catering and cafeteria sales 161,849 167,624

Expenditure

Food products

Wages and benefits
Non-food supplies

Equipment rental

Net income (loss) for the year

76
81

3
1

162

,049
,568
,815

.124

,556

(707)

77,460
81,526

3,526

1,124

163.636

3,988
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MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017

PageS

2016

FACILITIES

Administration fees
Contracted caretaking
Utilities
Insurance

Lease
Maintenance and supplies
Wages and benefits

ADMINISTRATION

Advertising
Professional fees
Memberships, subscriptions and fees
Office expense
Bank charges
Telephone
Liability insurance

Wages and benefits
Workers' compensation

FUNDRAISING

PROGRAM ACTIVITIES

2,242
24,848
50,101
8,563

1
24,465

1,558

111,778

964
3,135
3,829
5,489

131
2.975

1.500
65,525

1,294

84,842

40,463

6,108

243,191

2,208
24,866
52,141
10,956

1
20,393

2,029

112,594

1,011
3,135
3,231
8,361

224
2,842

1.500
71,766

1,300

93,370

41,944

7,219

255,127
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2018

Note 2018 2017

Assets

Current Assets
Cash on hand

Bank Accounts

GST Receivable

Conexus credit union membership

Equity - Conexus credit union

Inventory

?.c.(3),

?.c.(3».

2.d.

605

6,408

15
134

3,214

605

15,607

217
15

134

3.467

Total Current Assets

Investments

Capital Assets

Total Assets

(2).

(4).

A.

10.376

41,605

39,668

91,649 $

20,045__

83,386

49.642

153,073

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2018

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Current Liabilities

Wages payable

GST payable

Deferred membership revenue 2.f.

15
487

9,120

527

6,180

Total Current Liabilities 9,622 6,707

Fund Balances

Reserve Fund

Capital Fund

General Fund

41,604

39,668

755

83.386

49,642

13,338

Total Equity 82,027_ 146,366

Total Liabilities and Equity $ 91,649 $ 153,p73_

Approve^/cCn B

^7
ej^/^ .K) ^.\^^'^^<-)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Statement of General Fund Operations and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended Decembers'!, 2018

2018 2017

REVENUE
Net kitchen revenue(schedule,p.g. 9) $

Fundraising

Program activities

Memberships

Rental of facilities

Donations

Interest income

Expense recovery/commissions

Recovery -sublet

Grants

Other

Total Revenue 211.422 194.124

EXPENDITURES (schedule p.g.10)
Administration 92,529 85,049

Facilities 121,386 111,572

Fundraising 34,482 40,463

Program activities 5'306_._ 6^c)8

8,542 $

81,360

26,559

18,890

7,575

17,139

1,482

2,966

17,360

29,065

484

(706)
89,398

25.107

20,655

6,958

12,581

1,495

3,202

15,369

20,065

Total Expenditures 253,703 243,192

Excess (Deficiency)of revenue over expenditure (42,281) (49,068)

Fund Balance - beginning 13,338 7,406

Interfund transfers 35>000 55.000

Asset changes (5,302)

Excess(Deficiency) of revenue over expenditure (42,281) (49,068)

Fund Balance-end of year $ 755 $===iyH

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Statement of Capital Fund Operations and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

2018 2017

Fund Balance-beginning $ 49,642 $ 65,969

Amortization of Capital Assets (15,276) (16.327)

Asset changes 5,302

Fund Balance - end of year $-. ,39'668 $„ 49.642

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Statement of Reserve Fund Operations and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

2018 2017

Fund Balance - beginning $ 83,386 $ 131,454

interfund transfer - general fund (35,000) (55,000)

Investment return (6,782) 6,932

Fund Balance - end of year $-.„. 41-604 $—83^86

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Note 2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Revenue excess (deficiency) for the period

Amortization of capital assets

Increase (decrease) in GST

Increase (decrease) in inventories

Increase (decrease) in wages payable

increase (decrease) in unearned memberships

(42,281)

15,276

(1,083)
253

514

2,875

(49
16

(1

(1

,075)

,327

99

,398)

527

,870)

TOTAL CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (24,446) (35,390)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
increase (decrease) in investments

Payments to acquire capital assets

Interest earned on investments

(6,782)

(5,302)

326

5,932

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (11,758) 5,932

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Interfund transfers

OTHER ACTIVITIES:

Net cash increase (decreases) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

27,005

(9,199)
16,361

32,748

3.290

13.071

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 7,162 $ 16,361_

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

Cash

Conexus membership and equity

7,013

149

16,212

149

7,162 $ 16,361

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
For the Year Ended December 31> 2018

Schedule of Kitchen Revenue and Expenditures

2018 2017

REVENUE-KITCHEN
Kitchen 123,001 138,152

Catering 27,263 23,697

Total Revenue from Kitchen 150,264 161,849

EXPENDITURES - KITCHEN.
Food 65,826 76,049

Wages and benefits 72,851 81 ,568

Equipment rental 355 1,124

Non-food supplies 2,690 3,814

Expenditures from Kitchen _141,722 -(62,555
Net Kitchen (loss) revenue _$ 8.542 $ (706)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
For the Year Ended Decembers'!, 2018

Schedule of General Fund Expenditures

2018 2017

ADMINISTRATION
Advertising ' $

Professional fees

Membership, subscriptions and fees

Office expense

Bank charges

Telephone

Liabiiity insurance

Wages and benefits

Workers' compensation

FACILITIES
Administration fees

Contracted caretaking

Utilities

Insurance

TV and Internet

Maintenance

Wages and Benefits

Security

FUNDRAISING

Fund raising

PROGRAM ACTIVITIES
Program activities

2,045 $

3,219

5,922

7,681

2,910

2,055

67,715

981

2,242

24,848

55,476

11,368

771

23,369

2,707

605

34,482

5,306

964

3,135

3.964

5,561

131

2,975

1,500

65,525

1,294

2,242

24,848

49,244

8,563

637

23,437

1,558

1,043

40,463

6,108

Total expenditures __.__$ 253,702 $ 243,192

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
10
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

(1). Status and purpose of organization

Moose Jaw and District Association Inc. is a not-for-profit charitable organization incorporated on February 16,
1989 in the Province of Saskatchewan. Its purpose is to provide facilities, recreations, social services and
information to persons of age 50 and older and their spouses (if younger), residing in the City of Mooose Jaw
and surrounding district. The corporaton is also a registered charity within the meaning of the Income Tax Act.

(2). Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations in Part III of the CPA Canada Handbook and iclude the following signficant accounting policies.

11
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

(2). Significant Accounting Policies

2.a. Fund accounting and revenue recognition

The Association follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. The Association maintains
its accounts in accordance with the restrictions on the use of resources as designated by donors or the
board of directors.

Contributions are recorded as revenue when received or receivable except when the donor has
specified that they are intended for a specific use or for use in a future period, in which case they are
deferred and recognized in the period the related expenses are incurred. Contributions are recognized
when receivable if the amounts can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.
Donations are recognized when received, pledges receivable are not recorded.

Contributions restricted for the purchase of captia! assets at the fair value of contributed capital assets
are deferred and amortized to revenue on a basis consistent with the amortization of the capital assets
acquired.

When the Association is the named beneficiary under various wills, life insurance policies and trust
agreements, proceeds are recorded as revenue when the amounts are received.

For fund accounting purposes, the accounts have been classified into the following funds:

(i) General Fund

The General Fund comprises revenues and expenses relating to the kitchen, fundraising, program
activities, memberships, rental of facilities, donations and grants.

(ii) Capital Fund

The Capital Fund recognizes resources that the Association has invested in capital assets. The
amortization of captial assets and deferred captial contributions are recorded in this fund.

(ill) Reserve Fune}

The Rese^/e Fund comprises income designated by donors and the board of directors, investment
income earned by the funds is recorded on an accrual basis. Investments are recorded at fair value at
each financial statement date with unrealized gains and losses recorded in investment income.

2,b. Contributed services

The Association receives assistance from volunteers to assist in the Association carrying out its
administration and program activities. Due to the difficulty in determining their fair yalue at the date of
contribution, these contributed services are not recognized in these financial statements,

12
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

(2). Significant Accounting Policies

2.c. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes restricted and unrestricted cash on hand and short-term deposits
which are highly liquid with original maturities of less than three months at the date of acquisition.

2.d. Inventories

inventory consists of kitchen and catering supplies is stated at the iower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined on a specific identification basis.

Z.e. Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is calculated using the
straight-line method over estimated useful lives ranging from 10 to 20 years.

Leasehold improvements 20 years

Furnishings, fixtures and equipment 1 0 years

When capital assets are sold, if the original cost is unknown, the assets are removed at the selling price.

Amortization at December 31, 2018 was $ 15,276 (2017-$ 16,327).

2,f. Deferred membership revenue

Membership fee revenue represents annual membership fees paid by the Association's members. The
Association recognizes membership fees for the period in which they are applied to any unearned portion is
represents amounts paid in advance. As at the end of 2018, this was the equivalent of 152 memberships.

2.g. Financial instruments

The Association's financial instruments consist of cash, investments and accounts payable and accrued
liabilities.

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. Instruments that are quoted in an active
market are subsequently measured at fair value. All other financial instruments are subsequently recorded at
cost or amortized cost, unless managment has elected to carry the instruments at fair value, The Association
has elected to carry all investments at fair value.

Financial assets recorded at amortized cost are assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the
fiscal year if there are indicators of impairment. .

13
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

(2). Significant Accounting Policies

2.h. Allocation of expenses

Expenses are recorded and reported by programs and services. Other administrative costs are not allocated.
Certain employees perform administrative, fundraising, program functions' as a result wages and benefits are
allocated to the different areas for reporting purposes. The management wages and benefits are allocated to
Administration, maintenance wages and benefits to Facilities and kitchen personnel to Net Kitchen revenue.

2,!. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the determination of fair value of non-
cash donations and the determination of useful lives of property and equipment for calculating amortization.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(3). Cash and cash equivalents

2018 2017

Cash on hand

Bank -general

Bank-bingo

Bank - lottery

Bank - capital

Conexus share capital

Conexus redeemable equity

Total $ 7,162_$ 16,361

605

5,959

117

3

329

15

134

605

15,532

26

27
22

15

134

14
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

(4). Capital assets

Cost less accumulated amortization- net book value by period

Capital assets consist of the following:

2018 2017

Furnishings, fixtures and equipment

Leasehold improvements

Total

Cost

166,823

287,509

$ 454,332

Accumulated
Depreciation

(159,036)

(255,628)

$ (4-14,664)$

Net Book
Value

7,787

31,881

39,668 S

Net Book
Value

3,387

46,255

; 49.642

(5). Comparative figures

The current year financial statements contain comparative financia! statements minor differences are contained in
there have been minor adjustments in Administration and Facilities expenditures to reflect more accurate
classiication of expenditures.

(6). Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the realization of
assets and the payment of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. Should the Association be unable to
continue as a going concern, it may be unable to realize the carrying value of its assets and to meet its liabilities as
they become due.

The Association's ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon its ability to obtain grants and funding
to satisfy its operating costs.

15
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

(7). Membership Structure

The organization has 4 classes of membership;

Regular - persons 50 years of age or over, or a member's spouse who has not attained the age of 50 years of
age, shall be eligible for regular membership.

Life - persons who have donated $1,000 or more to the association

Honorary - honorary membership may be granted by a vote of the general memberhip to persons who have
performed distinguised service to the association

Associate - associate membership maybe granted by the Board of Directors to persons of special
circumstances such as but not excluded to widows, widowers and other.

2018 2017 201 6 2015 2014 201 3

Regular members 362 370 365 398 451 630

Lifetime members 24

16
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Al IAl;HMfcNI III

Dear Mayor and Council (to address the Mayor and Council at the May 27, 2019 council meeting)

We at the Cosmo Senior Citizens' Centre are sympathic to and can relate to the extreme financial

difficulties of Timothy Baton's, and our own financial difficulties facing us and our fight to keep our senior

centres open,

We are also delighted that we have contributed back to the economy of our fair city by increasing its

revenue as we continue to rent out our facility for weddings, anniversaries, special events, birthday

celebrations, which bring in people from all over Canada and just recently from the British Isles.

As with the Timothy Eaton Centre we are using due diligence to maintain our facilities, unfortunately, very

large unexpected expenses, rising costs for utilities, groceries, and the like, are depleting our reserves

more quickly than anticipated.

We realize that the city has a huge responsibility in subsidizing other complexes such as Mosaic Place,

Yara, Mae Wilson Theatre, the Library etc., and all we ask is to be given the same consideration

financially, and help give us the opportunity to stay viable and relevant for our seniors, and to do our part

in continuing to help the city's economy.

Respectfully,

William Smith, President
Cosmo Senior Citizens' Centre
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Ml lA^NMtlM I IV

COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE INCORPORATED

Statement of Financial Position

December 31,2016

(Unaudited)

2016 2015

ASSETS
CURRENT

Cash
Term deposits (Note 4)

NET ASSETS

S 14,965
68,350

$ 83,315

$ 83,315

s

s

s

10,801
67,079

77,880

77,880

ON BEHALF OF,THE^BOARD

//^^>

See notes to financial statements
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COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE INCORPORATED

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2016

(Unau^iled)

2016 2015

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR S 77,881 S 101,389
Excess of revenues over expenses _5,434 _ (23,509)

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 83,315 $ 77,880

See notes to financial statements
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COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE INCORPORATED

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Year Ended December 31,2016

(Vnwdhed)

2016 2015

REVENUES
Activities
Cosmo dances/bar
Kitchen
Donations
Membership
Rentals
Grants
Interest income

Expense recoveries

EXPENSES
Professional fees
Salaries and wages
Telephone
Utilities
Office
Miscellaneous
Advertising and proiuotion
Cosmo dances

Insurance

Kitchen
Rent - City of Moose Jaw
Rental refunds
Building repairs
Supplies
Interest and bank charges

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES

S 24,315
19,431
34,384

1,370
5,060

34,488
16,148

1,445
'" 4,530

141,171

1,450
51,553

1,618
14,028
6,276

;^ 898

11,015
6,729

17,232
1

6,750
16,497

1,401
289_

135,737

$ 5,434

s

__s_

30,310
23,060
29,934

5,795
5,880

30,719
22.700

2,070

150,468

1,450
54,625

1,561
15,885
4,925

2
44

12,735
6,380

22,541
1

5,798
45,351

2,679

173,977

(23,509)

See notes to financial statements
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COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE INCORPORATED

Individual Revenue and Expense Account Summaries

Year Ended December 31, 2016

(Unaudited)

2016 2015

Activities Revenue
Bridge
Canasta
Cribbagc
Jam Session
Miscellaneous
Billiards
ShufOeboard
Whist
Fundraising

Lottery

Utilities
Power and energy
Water

2,270
3,453

704
4,333
1,715

915
3,307
1,897
2,647
3,074

s 2,767
3,361

424
4,922
1,691
1,073
3,947

765
8,084
3,276

$ 24,315

$ 12,894
U34_

$ 14,028

s

s

$

30,310

13,870
2,015

15,885

See notes to financial statements
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COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE INCORPORATED

Statement of Cash Flow

Year Ended December 31, 2016

(Vnaudited)

2016 2015

OPERATING ACTIVITY
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH FLOW

Cash - beginning of year

CASH - END OF YEAR

CASH CONSISTS OF:
Cash
Term deposits

s_

s_

$

$_

5,434

5,434

77,881

83,315

14,965
68,350

83,315

s '

A.

_(23,509}

(23,509)

_10!,3_90_

77,881

10,801
67,080

77,881

See notes to financial statements
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COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE INCORPORATED

Statement of Financial Position

December 31,2018

(Unwdited)

2018 2017

ASSETS
CURRENT

Cash
Term deposits (Note 4)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT
Accounts payable
Short term debt (Note 5)

NET ASSETS

7,580
64,823

72,403 __ $

13,062
69,136

82,198

S 1 $
24,542

24,543

47,860

S 72,403 $

1
43,173

43,174

39,024

82,198

COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE INCORPORATED

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31,2018

(Vnaudited)

2018 2017

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR
EXCESS OF RBVENUES OVER EXPENSES

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

39,024 $
8,836

47,860 $

83,315
(44,291)

39,024

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD"""7%""T
^̂ {^ ^

^'^-^ Director

Director

See notes to fmancial statements
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COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE INCORPORATED

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Year Ended December 31,2018

(Un(tudited)

2018 2017

REVENUES
Activities
Cosmo dances/bar
Donations
Grants
Rentals
Kitchen
Membership
Interest income

EXPENSES
Professional fees
Salaries and wages
Telephone
Utilities
Office
Miscellaneous
Advertising and promotion
Cosmo dances
Insurance

Kitchen
Rent - City of Moose Jaw
Rental refunds
Building repairs
Supplies
Interest and bank charges

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES

S 18,877 3
19,628
7,300

32,018
33,161
31,995

4,881
939

148,799

1,5X5
52,148

1,440
14,269
2,910

379
574

10,703
1,907

15,484
1

4,662
30,197

2,774
1,000

139,963

S 8,836 $

; 19,448
18,106
6,960

31,602
36»869
37,594
5,570

937.

157,086

1,485
50,705

1,637
13,365
3,269

335
94

11,229
7,654

17,147
1

4>675
87,479

1,470
832

201,377_

(44.291)

See notes to financial statements
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COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE mCORPORATED

Statement of Cash Flow

Year Ended December 31,2018

(Vwudited)

2018 2017

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses
Change in non-cash working capital:

Accounts payable

Cash flow from (used by) operatmg activities

FINANCING ACTIVITY
Short term debt

DECREASE IN CASH PLOW

Cash • beginning of year

CASH " END OF YEAR

CASH CONSISTS OP:
Cash
Term deposits

8,836

(D

(44,291)

1

s

s

s

8,835

(18,630)

(9*795)

82,198

72,403 $

7,580 S
64,823

72,403 S

(44,290)

43,173

(1,117)

83,315

82,198

13,062
69,l3_6_

82,198

4. TERM DEPOSITS

Term deposits for the organization are as follows:

3 Year Term Bonus Builder term deposit maturing March 11,
2018. The interest rate is 1.30% and is paid annually.

3 Year Non - Redeemable term deposit maturing July 19, 2021.
The interest rate is 3.30% and is paid annually.

3 Year Term Bonus Builder term deposit maturing October 18,
2019. The interest rate is 1.70% and is paid annually.

5 Year Term Bonus Builder term deposit maturing March 11,
2020. The interest rate is 1.35% and is paid annually.

2018

12,119

28,374

24,330

2017

5,118

11,982

28,065

23,971

64,823 $ 69,136

5. SHORT TERM DEBT

The organization has a $50,000 revolving line of credit of which $24,542 was used as at December 31, 2018.
Bank advances on the credit line are payable on demand and bears interest at 5.20%.

6. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Some of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.

See notes to financial statements
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COMMUNICATION #42 
 
TITLE: Request to Address – Moose Jaw & District Senior Citizens Association Inc. 

and Cosmo Senior Citizens’ Centre 

 

TO:  City Council 

 

FROM:  City Clerk/Solicitor  

 

DATE:  May 15, 2019 

 

PUBLIC:  This is a Public Document.   

 

IN-CAMERA:  Not applicable to this report. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. THAT representatives from the Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc. 

(“MJDSA”) and the Cosmo Senior Citizens Centre (Cosmo) be allowed to address 

members of City Council; and 

 

2. THAT a decision on financial support to the organizations be a decision of City 

Council.  

 

TOPIC AND PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this report is to introduce a request to address City Council on May 27, 

2019 regarding the future of the Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association’s 

activity centre and the Cosmo Senior Citizens’ Centre.  Both organizations are seeking 

financial support from the City.   

 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 

 

The City has long term arrangements to lease property to both the MJDSA and the 

Cosmo.  The MJDSA Lease Agreement expired in 2011 and the tenancy lease has 

remained on a year to year tenancy at will basis with the same terms.   The MJDSA lease 

majority of the main floor and the basement of the former Eaton’s building in their lease 

agreement with the City. The Cosmo has a current Lease Agreement dated May 30, 2011 

with the City for an initial term of 20 years commencing (and retroactive to) January 1, 

2005 and expiring on December 31, 2025 with successive 5 year terms thereafter.  The 

formal rent charged to both organizations is $1 per year. 

 

 

 

 

 

City of  

Moose Jaw 
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As occupants of the respective buildings, Cosmo and the MJDSA (main floor and 

basement) are required to cover the cost of all utilities (water, gas, electricity, telephone). 

The cost of utilities for each unit and the common areas for the MJDSA and in the 

absence of separate meters is calculated by engineering calculations of the pro rata 

share of consumption of each of the units, which includes heat loss calculations, 41% for 

Unit A and 59% for Unit B.  Two commercial tenants and The Moose Jaw Non-Profit Housing 

Corporation (“MJNPHC”), which own the top two floors, cover the remaining utilities. 

 

The Lease Agreement between the City and MJDSA was established at a $1.00 per year, 

however, the MJDSA agreed to assume full responsibility for the City’s obligations under 

the Bylaws of the Condominium Corporation and the Management Agreement with the 

Moose Jaw Housing Authority. 

 
Both organizations receive funding through the Saskatchewan Lotteries Community 

Grant Program.  That history is outlined below.  

 
MJDSA received the following funding over the past five years through the Community 

Grant Program: 

 

2018 - $20,065.30 

2017 - $20,065.30 

2016 - $20,065.30 

2015 - $20,065.30 

2014 - $19,965.49 

 

Cosmo received the following funding over the past five years through the Community 

Grant Program: 

 

2018 - $6,420.90 

2017 - $6.420.90 

2016 - $7,408.73 

2015 - $6,420.90 

2014 - $6,520.71 

 

Summary of the annual funding the City received from Sask Lotteries over the past five 

years: 

 

2018 - $ 132,431 

2017 - $ 132,431 

2016 - $ 132,431 

2015 - $ 132,431 

2014 – $132,431 

 

 

The process the City uses to adjudicate Sask Lotteries Community Grant Program funding 

to the Seniors groups is as follows: 

 

• Guidelines set up by Saskatchewan Lotteries state that at least 30% of the overall 

grant amount must be allocated to target populations such as seniors, indigenous 

people, persons with disabilities, women, single parent families, etc. 
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• City policy further directs that two-thirds of the 30% shall be distributed (based on a 

percentage of membership), between the Cosmo’s Senior Citizen Centre and the 

Moose Jaw and District Seniors Association and the remaining one-third is disbursed 

in support of other qualifying target group programs. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

The City currently does not have a source of funding from which to provide potential 

financial support.  Any decision to provide support would require a determination of that 

matter by City Council. 

 

PRESENTATION 

 

VERBAL:  X  AUDIO/VISUAL:   NONE:  

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 
I. Letter dated May 8, 2019 from Moose Jaw and District Seniors Association Inc. 

II. Moose Jaw and District Seniors Association Inc. Financial Statements - 2016, 2017, 

2018. 

III. Letter from William Smith, President, Cosmo Senior Citizens’ Centre. 

IV. Cosmo Senior Citizens’ Centre Financial Statements - 2016, 2018. 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted By, 

 

 

Myron Gulka-Tiechko 

__________________________________________  

Myron Gulka-Tiechko, City Clerk/Solicitor  
 

 

 

APPROVAL OF REPORT RECEIVED     COMMENTS RECEIVED 

 

 

 

 

Jim Puffalt 

_________________________________________ 

Jim Puffalt, City Manager 
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Fraser Tolmie 

_________________________________________ 

Fraser Tolmie, Mayor 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be completed by the Clerk’s Department only. 

 

Presented to Regular Council or Executive Committee on _____________________________________________________. 

 

No. _________________________         Resolution No. _________________________________________________ 
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#101-510 Main St. ^

Moose Ja-w, SX S6^3^3

/TeC: (306) 694-4223 Sports LeveC: (306) 694-0023
jFax* (306) 694-1991 XmcdC: mjsenior@sasfiteCnet

May 8, 2019

Dear Mayor Fraser Tolmie and Council Members;

The representatives of Moose Jaw & District Seniors Association Inc (MJDSA) would like to

address the Mayor and Council at the May 27, 2019 City Council Meeting.

Our Association is facing growing financial difficulties. This financial uncertainty is having an

impact on our ability to create revenue through rentals and programs as people are questioning

if the facility will be available in the future.

The MJDSA is facing more immediate financial crisis/ with only enough savings left for

approximately 6 months of expenses. Compounding this is the lack of designated parking for

the Centre. This has always been a concern and has only increased with the recent parking

meter increases. As parking costs go up/ more and more people are unable to afford to

participate in our programs. The MJDSA has been without a lease since 2011 and have been

unsuccessful in attempts to negotiate one with the City. As you are aware/ we have been trying

to resolve this for the past 5 years.

We would like to open dialogue to address these issues. We acknowledge that this may be

referred to administration but we ask that elected officials (preferably ALL of you) be involved

in those discussions.

We have attached the audited financial statements for the last 4 years for the Moose Jaw &

District Seniors Association.

Moose Jaw & District Seniors Association INC

510 Main Street N
Moose Jaw, SK

S6H 3K3
(306) 694-4223
misenior@sasktel.net
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

Moose Jaw, Saskatchewan

December 31,2016
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Page 2

MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POStTtON

AS AT DECEMBER 31. 2016

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash
Bank
GST receivable
Conexus Credit Union membership
Equity" Conexus Credit Union
Inventory

CAPITAL ASSETS (note 2)
INVESTMENTS (note 3)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Wages payable
Deferred membership revenue

FUND BALANCES

INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS (note 2)
RESERVES (note 3)
FUND BALANCE

APPROVED PWEHALF OE/T,HE BOARD:

2016

605
12,317

316
15

134
2,069

15,456
65.969

131,454

212,879

2015
$

605
37.993

0
15

130
2,069

40,812
82,295
30,917

154.024

0
8.050

8.050

65,969
131,454

7,406

204,829

212,879_

98
7,473

7,571

82,295
30,917
33,241

146,453

154,024

^^^ ^^-Director ^ ^
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Page 3

MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2016

2016 2015

REVENUE

Catering and cafeteria - net, page 7
Fundraising
Program activities
Memberships
Rental of facilities
Donations
Interest

Expense recovery and commissions

Recovery - sublet space
Grants

EXPENDITURE, per schedule, page 8

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR

FUND BALANCE - beginning of year

Investment account - line of credit interest

Proceeds from surrender of insurance policy
Loan proceeds from insurance policy
Purchase of capital assets

Transfer to reserves

FUND BALANCE - end of year

3,988
84,242
26,941
20,298
10,088
45,361

2,294

2,705
9,793

19,077

224,787
255,127

(30,340)

33.241

(248)
106,521

0
0

(101,768)^

7,406

(3,276)
82,369
26,312
22,142
9,763

32,254
1,921
2,338

17,519
20.065

211,407
236,027

(24,620)

11,210

0
0

50.000
(3,349)

0

33,241
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Page 4

MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2016

2016 2015

SOURCES OF CASH

Operating income
Investment income
Grants
Donations
Non-cash working capital component

USES OF CASH

Operating expenses
Facility expenses
Administration expenses
Non-cash working capital component

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH - END OF YEAR

321
2

19
45

107

495

212
112
93

102

521

(25

38

12

,691
,294
,077
,361
,098

,521

,799

,594
,370

,434

,197

.676)

,598

,922

318,874
1,921

20,065
32,254
59,262

432,376

207,016
107.711

83,007
12,701

410.435

21,941

16,657

38,598
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Page 5

.MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc. is a charitable corporation incorporated in
1989 under the Non-Profit Corporations Act of Saskatchewan. its purpose if to provide facilities,
recreation, social sen/ices and information to persons of age 55 and older and their spouses (if younger),
residing in the City of Moose Jaw and surrounding district. The corporation is also a registered charity
within the meaning of The Income Tax Act,

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are recorded at cost. When capital assets are sold, if the original cost is not known, the
assets are removed at selling price. Amortization of capital assets is recorded on a straight line basis over
the estimated useful life of the assets at the foilowing rates:

2.

Leasehold improvements
Furnishings, fixtures and equipment

20 years
10 years

INVENTORY

Inventory of kitchen and catering supplies is

INVESTMENTS

Investments are valued at fair maket value.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Furnishings, fixtures and equipment
Leasehold improvements

recorded at cost.

Cost
$

161,521
287,509

449,030

Accumulated
amortization

$

156,181
226,880

383,061

2016
$

5,340
60,629

65,969

2015
$

7.292
75,003

82,295

INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS
2016 2015

Balance" beginning of year
Add: purchase of capital assets
Deduct: amortization of capital assets

Balance - end of year

82,

(16

,295
0

,326)

95
3

-06

,272
,349
.326)

65,969 82,295

Page  622 of 792



Page 6

MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2016

3. RESERVES

Purpose of Reserve

Future premises maintenance

Future recreation equipment replacement
Office equipment replacement and computer acquisition
Unspecified

4. CASH

Cash on hand
Bank - general
Bank - bingo

Bank - lottery
Bank - capital
RBC Dominion Securites

2016

9,000
4,000
2,000

116,454

131>454

2016
$

605
11,087

1,187
34
22

(13).

12,922

2015
$

9,000
4,000
2,000

15.917

30,917

2015
$

605
42.469

12
8

22
(4.518)_

38,598
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

Moose Jaw, Saskatchewan

December 31, 2017
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Page 2

MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION !NC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash
Bank
GST receivable
Conexus Credit Union membership

Equity - Conexus Credit Union
Inventory

CAPITAL ASSETS (note 2)
INVESTMENTS (note 3)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Wages payable
Deferred membership revenue

FUND BALANCES

INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS (note 2)
RESERVES (note 3)
FUND BALANCE

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

^^/--/ \ /•' v. .. !a^^^f^)--/i }

./'

^^y/--/. \ // '*•- . /^^/^»^-rf-^(5-^

DiceCto/ ' /"

^4</<.,^</c- ^>^-_^
P+fector ' /7

2017
$

605
15,607

217
15

134
3,467

20.045
49.642
83,386

153,073

605
12,317

316
15

134
2,069

15,456
65,969

131,454

212,879

527
6,180

6,707

49,642
83,386
13,338

. 146,366

153.073

0
8,050

8,050

65,969
131,454

7,406

204,829

212,879
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Page3

MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017

2017 2016

REVENUE

Catering and cafeteria - net, page 7

Fundraising
Program activities
Memberships
Rental of facilities
Donations

interest

Expense recovery and commissions

Recovery - sublet space

Grants

EXPENDITURE, per schedule, page 8

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR

FUND BALANCE - beginning of year

Investment account - line of credit interest
Proceeds from surrender of insurance policy

Transfer from (to) reserves

FUND BALANCE - end of year

(707)
89,398
25,107
20,655

6,958
12,581

1,495

3,202
15,369
20,065

194,123
243,191

(49,068)

7,406

0
0

55,000

13,338

3,988
84,242
26,941
20,298
10,088
45,361

2,294

2,705
9,793

19,077

224.787
255,127

(30,340)

33,241

(248)
106,521

(101,768)

7,406
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Page 4

MOOSE JAW AND DISTRiCT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC,

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016

SOURCES OF CASH

Operating income
Investment income
Grants
Donations
Non-cash working capital component

USES OF CASH

Operating expenses
Facility expenses

Administration expenses
Non-cash working capital component

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH-END OF YEAR

322,538
1,495

20,065
12,581
55,626

412,305

209.127
111,778
84,842

3,268

409,015

3.290

12,922

16,2-12

321,691
2,294

19,077
45,361

107,098

495,521

212.799
112,594
93,370

102,434

521,197

(25,676)

38,598

12,922
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Page 5

MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITiZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc. is a charitable corporation incorporated in
1989 under the Non-Profit Corporations Act of Saskatchewan. Its purpose if to provide facilities,
recreation, social services and information to persons of age 55 and older and their spouses (if younger),
residing in the City of Moose Jaw and surrounding district. The corporation is also a registered charity
within the meaning of The Income Tax Act.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are recorded at cost. When capital assets are sold, if the original cost is not known, the
assets are removed at selling price. Amortization of capital assets is recorded on a straight line basis over
the estimated useful life of the assets at the following rates:

Leasehold improvements
Furnishings, fixtures and equipment

INVENTORY

Inventory of kitchen and catering supplies is recorded at cost

INVESTMENTS

Investments are valued at fair maket value.

CAPITAL ASSETS

20 years
10 years

Furnishings, fixtures and equipment
Leasehold improvements

INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Cost
$

161,521
287,509

449,030

Accumulated
amortization

$

158,134
241,254

399,388

2017
$

3,387
46,255

49,642

2016
$

5,340

60,629

65,969

2017 2016

Balance - beginning of year
Deduct; amortization of capital assets

Balance-end of year

65,969
(16,327)

49,642

82,295
(16,326)

65,969
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Page 6

MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017

3. RESERVES

2017 2016
$ $

Purpose of Reserve

Future premises maintenance

Future recreation equipment replacement
Office equipment replacement and computer acquisition
Unspecified

9,

4,

2,

68

,000
,000

,000
,386

9
4
2

116

,000
,000

.000
,454

83.386 131.454

4. CASH

2017 2016

Cash on hand
Bank-general
Bank - bingo

BanK - lottery

Bank - capital

RBC Dominion Securites

605
15,532

26
27
22

0

16,212

11
1

12

605
,087

,187
34
22

(13)

,922
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MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

SCHEDULE OF CATERING AND CAFETERIA OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016

Revenue from catering and cafeteria sales 161,849 167,624

Expenditure

Food products

Wages and benefits
Non-food supplies

Equipment rental

Net income (loss) for the year

76
81

3
1

162

,049
,568
,815

.124

,556

(707)

77,460
81,526

3,526

1,124

163.636

3,988
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MOOSE JAW AND DISTRICT SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017

PageS

2016

FACILITIES

Administration fees
Contracted caretaking
Utilities
Insurance

Lease
Maintenance and supplies
Wages and benefits

ADMINISTRATION

Advertising
Professional fees
Memberships, subscriptions and fees
Office expense
Bank charges
Telephone
Liability insurance

Wages and benefits
Workers' compensation

FUNDRAISING

PROGRAM ACTIVITIES

2,242
24,848
50,101
8,563

1
24,465

1,558

111,778

964
3,135
3,829
5,489

131
2.975

1.500
65,525

1,294

84,842

40,463

6,108

243,191

2,208
24,866
52,141
10,956

1
20,393

2,029

112,594

1,011
3,135
3,231
8,361

224
2,842

1.500
71,766

1,300

93,370

41,944

7,219

255,127
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2018

Note 2018 2017

Assets

Current Assets
Cash on hand

Bank Accounts

GST Receivable

Conexus credit union membership

Equity - Conexus credit union

Inventory

?.c.(3),

?.c.(3».

2.d.

605

6,408

15
134

3,214

605

15,607

217
15

134

3.467

Total Current Assets

Investments

Capital Assets

Total Assets

(2).

(4).

A.

10.376

41,605

39,668

91,649 $

20,045__

83,386

49.642

153,073

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2018

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Current Liabilities

Wages payable

GST payable

Deferred membership revenue 2.f.

15
487

9,120

527

6,180

Total Current Liabilities 9,622 6,707

Fund Balances

Reserve Fund

Capital Fund

General Fund

41,604

39,668

755

83.386

49,642

13,338

Total Equity 82,027_ 146,366

Total Liabilities and Equity $ 91,649 $ 153,p73_

Approve^/cCn B

^7
ej^/^ .K) ^.\^^'^^<-)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Statement of General Fund Operations and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended Decembers'!, 2018

2018 2017

REVENUE
Net kitchen revenue(schedule,p.g. 9) $

Fundraising

Program activities

Memberships

Rental of facilities

Donations

Interest income

Expense recovery/commissions

Recovery -sublet

Grants

Other

Total Revenue 211.422 194.124

EXPENDITURES (schedule p.g.10)
Administration 92,529 85,049

Facilities 121,386 111,572

Fundraising 34,482 40,463

Program activities 5'306_._ 6^c)8

8,542 $

81,360

26,559

18,890

7,575

17,139

1,482

2,966

17,360

29,065

484

(706)
89,398

25.107

20,655

6,958

12,581

1,495

3,202

15,369

20,065

Total Expenditures 253,703 243,192

Excess (Deficiency)of revenue over expenditure (42,281) (49,068)

Fund Balance - beginning 13,338 7,406

Interfund transfers 35>000 55.000

Asset changes (5,302)

Excess(Deficiency) of revenue over expenditure (42,281) (49,068)

Fund Balance-end of year $ 755 $===iyH

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Statement of Capital Fund Operations and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

2018 2017

Fund Balance-beginning $ 49,642 $ 65,969

Amortization of Capital Assets (15,276) (16.327)

Asset changes 5,302

Fund Balance - end of year $-. ,39'668 $„ 49.642

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Statement of Reserve Fund Operations and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

2018 2017

Fund Balance - beginning $ 83,386 $ 131,454

interfund transfer - general fund (35,000) (55,000)

Investment return (6,782) 6,932

Fund Balance - end of year $-.„. 41-604 $—83^86

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Note 2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Revenue excess (deficiency) for the period

Amortization of capital assets

Increase (decrease) in GST

Increase (decrease) in inventories

Increase (decrease) in wages payable

increase (decrease) in unearned memberships

(42,281)

15,276

(1,083)
253

514

2,875

(49
16

(1

(1

,075)

,327

99

,398)

527

,870)

TOTAL CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (24,446) (35,390)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
increase (decrease) in investments

Payments to acquire capital assets

Interest earned on investments

(6,782)

(5,302)

326

5,932

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (11,758) 5,932

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Interfund transfers

OTHER ACTIVITIES:

Net cash increase (decreases) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

27,005

(9,199)
16,361

32,748

3.290

13.071

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 7,162 $ 16,361_

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

Cash

Conexus membership and equity

7,013

149

16,212

149

7,162 $ 16,361

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
For the Year Ended December 31> 2018

Schedule of Kitchen Revenue and Expenditures

2018 2017

REVENUE-KITCHEN
Kitchen 123,001 138,152

Catering 27,263 23,697

Total Revenue from Kitchen 150,264 161,849

EXPENDITURES - KITCHEN.
Food 65,826 76,049

Wages and benefits 72,851 81 ,568

Equipment rental 355 1,124

Non-food supplies 2,690 3,814

Expenditures from Kitchen _141,722 -(62,555
Net Kitchen (loss) revenue _$ 8.542 $ (706)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
For the Year Ended Decembers'!, 2018

Schedule of General Fund Expenditures

2018 2017

ADMINISTRATION
Advertising ' $

Professional fees

Membership, subscriptions and fees

Office expense

Bank charges

Telephone

Liabiiity insurance

Wages and benefits

Workers' compensation

FACILITIES
Administration fees

Contracted caretaking

Utilities

Insurance

TV and Internet

Maintenance

Wages and Benefits

Security

FUNDRAISING

Fund raising

PROGRAM ACTIVITIES
Program activities

2,045 $

3,219

5,922

7,681

2,910

2,055

67,715

981

2,242

24,848

55,476

11,368

771

23,369

2,707

605

34,482

5,306

964

3,135

3.964

5,561

131

2,975

1,500

65,525

1,294

2,242

24,848

49,244

8,563

637

23,437

1,558

1,043

40,463

6,108

Total expenditures __.__$ 253,702 $ 243,192

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
10
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

(1). Status and purpose of organization

Moose Jaw and District Association Inc. is a not-for-profit charitable organization incorporated on February 16,
1989 in the Province of Saskatchewan. Its purpose is to provide facilities, recreations, social services and
information to persons of age 50 and older and their spouses (if younger), residing in the City of Mooose Jaw
and surrounding district. The corporaton is also a registered charity within the meaning of the Income Tax Act.

(2). Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations in Part III of the CPA Canada Handbook and iclude the following signficant accounting policies.

11
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

(2). Significant Accounting Policies

2.a. Fund accounting and revenue recognition

The Association follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. The Association maintains
its accounts in accordance with the restrictions on the use of resources as designated by donors or the
board of directors.

Contributions are recorded as revenue when received or receivable except when the donor has
specified that they are intended for a specific use or for use in a future period, in which case they are
deferred and recognized in the period the related expenses are incurred. Contributions are recognized
when receivable if the amounts can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.
Donations are recognized when received, pledges receivable are not recorded.

Contributions restricted for the purchase of captia! assets at the fair value of contributed capital assets
are deferred and amortized to revenue on a basis consistent with the amortization of the capital assets
acquired.

When the Association is the named beneficiary under various wills, life insurance policies and trust
agreements, proceeds are recorded as revenue when the amounts are received.

For fund accounting purposes, the accounts have been classified into the following funds:

(i) General Fund

The General Fund comprises revenues and expenses relating to the kitchen, fundraising, program
activities, memberships, rental of facilities, donations and grants.

(ii) Capital Fund

The Capital Fund recognizes resources that the Association has invested in capital assets. The
amortization of captial assets and deferred captial contributions are recorded in this fund.

(ill) Reserve Fune}

The Rese^/e Fund comprises income designated by donors and the board of directors, investment
income earned by the funds is recorded on an accrual basis. Investments are recorded at fair value at
each financial statement date with unrealized gains and losses recorded in investment income.

2,b. Contributed services

The Association receives assistance from volunteers to assist in the Association carrying out its
administration and program activities. Due to the difficulty in determining their fair yalue at the date of
contribution, these contributed services are not recognized in these financial statements,

12
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

(2). Significant Accounting Policies

2.c. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes restricted and unrestricted cash on hand and short-term deposits
which are highly liquid with original maturities of less than three months at the date of acquisition.

2.d. Inventories

inventory consists of kitchen and catering supplies is stated at the iower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined on a specific identification basis.

Z.e. Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is calculated using the
straight-line method over estimated useful lives ranging from 10 to 20 years.

Leasehold improvements 20 years

Furnishings, fixtures and equipment 1 0 years

When capital assets are sold, if the original cost is unknown, the assets are removed at the selling price.

Amortization at December 31, 2018 was $ 15,276 (2017-$ 16,327).

2,f. Deferred membership revenue

Membership fee revenue represents annual membership fees paid by the Association's members. The
Association recognizes membership fees for the period in which they are applied to any unearned portion is
represents amounts paid in advance. As at the end of 2018, this was the equivalent of 152 memberships.

2.g. Financial instruments

The Association's financial instruments consist of cash, investments and accounts payable and accrued
liabilities.

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. Instruments that are quoted in an active
market are subsequently measured at fair value. All other financial instruments are subsequently recorded at
cost or amortized cost, unless managment has elected to carry the instruments at fair value, The Association
has elected to carry all investments at fair value.

Financial assets recorded at amortized cost are assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the
fiscal year if there are indicators of impairment. .

13
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

(2). Significant Accounting Policies

2.h. Allocation of expenses

Expenses are recorded and reported by programs and services. Other administrative costs are not allocated.
Certain employees perform administrative, fundraising, program functions' as a result wages and benefits are
allocated to the different areas for reporting purposes. The management wages and benefits are allocated to
Administration, maintenance wages and benefits to Facilities and kitchen personnel to Net Kitchen revenue.

2,!. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the determination of fair value of non-
cash donations and the determination of useful lives of property and equipment for calculating amortization.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(3). Cash and cash equivalents

2018 2017

Cash on hand

Bank -general

Bank-bingo

Bank - lottery

Bank - capital

Conexus share capital

Conexus redeemable equity

Total $ 7,162_$ 16,361

605

5,959

117

3

329

15

134

605

15,532

26

27
22

15

134

14
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

(4). Capital assets

Cost less accumulated amortization- net book value by period

Capital assets consist of the following:

2018 2017

Furnishings, fixtures and equipment

Leasehold improvements

Total

Cost

166,823

287,509

$ 454,332

Accumulated
Depreciation

(159,036)

(255,628)

$ (4-14,664)$

Net Book
Value

7,787

31,881

39,668 S

Net Book
Value

3,387

46,255

; 49.642

(5). Comparative figures

The current year financial statements contain comparative financia! statements minor differences are contained in
there have been minor adjustments in Administration and Facilities expenditures to reflect more accurate
classiication of expenditures.

(6). Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the realization of
assets and the payment of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. Should the Association be unable to
continue as a going concern, it may be unable to realize the carrying value of its assets and to meet its liabilities as
they become due.

The Association's ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon its ability to obtain grants and funding
to satisfy its operating costs.

15
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Moose Jaw and District Senior Citizens Association Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

(7). Membership Structure

The organization has 4 classes of membership;

Regular - persons 50 years of age or over, or a member's spouse who has not attained the age of 50 years of
age, shall be eligible for regular membership.

Life - persons who have donated $1,000 or more to the association

Honorary - honorary membership may be granted by a vote of the general memberhip to persons who have
performed distinguised service to the association

Associate - associate membership maybe granted by the Board of Directors to persons of special
circumstances such as but not excluded to widows, widowers and other.

2018 2017 201 6 2015 2014 201 3

Regular members 362 370 365 398 451 630

Lifetime members 24

16
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Al IAl;HMfcNI III

Dear Mayor and Council (to address the Mayor and Council at the May 27, 2019 council meeting)

We at the Cosmo Senior Citizens' Centre are sympathic to and can relate to the extreme financial

difficulties of Timothy Baton's, and our own financial difficulties facing us and our fight to keep our senior

centres open,

We are also delighted that we have contributed back to the economy of our fair city by increasing its

revenue as we continue to rent out our facility for weddings, anniversaries, special events, birthday

celebrations, which bring in people from all over Canada and just recently from the British Isles.

As with the Timothy Eaton Centre we are using due diligence to maintain our facilities, unfortunately, very

large unexpected expenses, rising costs for utilities, groceries, and the like, are depleting our reserves

more quickly than anticipated.

We realize that the city has a huge responsibility in subsidizing other complexes such as Mosaic Place,

Yara, Mae Wilson Theatre, the Library etc., and all we ask is to be given the same consideration

financially, and help give us the opportunity to stay viable and relevant for our seniors, and to do our part

in continuing to help the city's economy.

Respectfully,

William Smith, President
Cosmo Senior Citizens' Centre
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Ml lA^NMtlM I IV

COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE INCORPORATED

Statement of Financial Position

December 31,2016

(Unaudited)

2016 2015

ASSETS
CURRENT

Cash
Term deposits (Note 4)

NET ASSETS

S 14,965
68,350

$ 83,315

$ 83,315

s

s

s

10,801
67,079

77,880

77,880

ON BEHALF OF,THE^BOARD

//^^>

See notes to financial statements
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COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE INCORPORATED

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2016

(Unau^iled)

2016 2015

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR S 77,881 S 101,389
Excess of revenues over expenses _5,434 _ (23,509)

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 83,315 $ 77,880

See notes to financial statements
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COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE INCORPORATED

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Year Ended December 31,2016

(Vnwdhed)

2016 2015

REVENUES
Activities
Cosmo dances/bar
Kitchen
Donations
Membership
Rentals
Grants
Interest income

Expense recoveries

EXPENSES
Professional fees
Salaries and wages
Telephone
Utilities
Office
Miscellaneous
Advertising and proiuotion
Cosmo dances

Insurance

Kitchen
Rent - City of Moose Jaw
Rental refunds
Building repairs
Supplies
Interest and bank charges

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES

S 24,315
19,431
34,384

1,370
5,060

34,488
16,148

1,445
'" 4,530

141,171

1,450
51,553

1,618
14,028
6,276

;^ 898

11,015
6,729

17,232
1

6,750
16,497

1,401
289_

135,737

$ 5,434

s

__s_

30,310
23,060
29,934

5,795
5,880

30,719
22.700

2,070

150,468

1,450
54,625

1,561
15,885
4,925

2
44

12,735
6,380

22,541
1

5,798
45,351

2,679

173,977

(23,509)

See notes to financial statements
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COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE INCORPORATED

Individual Revenue and Expense Account Summaries

Year Ended December 31, 2016

(Unaudited)

2016 2015

Activities Revenue
Bridge
Canasta
Cribbagc
Jam Session
Miscellaneous
Billiards
ShufOeboard
Whist
Fundraising

Lottery

Utilities
Power and energy
Water

2,270
3,453

704
4,333
1,715

915
3,307
1,897
2,647
3,074

s 2,767
3,361

424
4,922
1,691
1,073
3,947

765
8,084
3,276

$ 24,315

$ 12,894
U34_

$ 14,028

s

s

$

30,310

13,870
2,015

15,885

See notes to financial statements
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COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE INCORPORATED

Statement of Cash Flow

Year Ended December 31, 2016

(Vnaudited)

2016 2015

OPERATING ACTIVITY
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH FLOW

Cash - beginning of year

CASH - END OF YEAR

CASH CONSISTS OF:
Cash
Term deposits

s_

s_

$

$_

5,434

5,434

77,881

83,315

14,965
68,350

83,315

s '

A.

_(23,509}

(23,509)

_10!,3_90_

77,881

10,801
67,080

77,881

See notes to financial statements
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COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE INCORPORATED

Statement of Financial Position

December 31,2018

(Unwdited)

2018 2017

ASSETS
CURRENT

Cash
Term deposits (Note 4)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT
Accounts payable
Short term debt (Note 5)

NET ASSETS

7,580
64,823

72,403 __ $

13,062
69,136

82,198

S 1 $
24,542

24,543

47,860

S 72,403 $

1
43,173

43,174

39,024

82,198

COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE INCORPORATED

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31,2018

(Vnaudited)

2018 2017

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR
EXCESS OF RBVENUES OVER EXPENSES

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

39,024 $
8,836

47,860 $

83,315
(44,291)

39,024

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD"""7%""T
^̂ {^ ^

^'^-^ Director

Director

See notes to fmancial statements
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COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE INCORPORATED

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Year Ended December 31,2018

(Un(tudited)

2018 2017

REVENUES
Activities
Cosmo dances/bar
Donations
Grants
Rentals
Kitchen
Membership
Interest income

EXPENSES
Professional fees
Salaries and wages
Telephone
Utilities
Office
Miscellaneous
Advertising and promotion
Cosmo dances
Insurance

Kitchen
Rent - City of Moose Jaw
Rental refunds
Building repairs
Supplies
Interest and bank charges

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES

S 18,877 3
19,628
7,300

32,018
33,161
31,995

4,881
939

148,799

1,5X5
52,148

1,440
14,269
2,910

379
574

10,703
1,907

15,484
1

4,662
30,197

2,774
1,000

139,963

S 8,836 $

; 19,448
18,106
6,960

31,602
36»869
37,594
5,570

937.

157,086

1,485
50,705

1,637
13,365
3,269

335
94

11,229
7,654

17,147
1

4>675
87,479

1,470
832

201,377_

(44.291)

See notes to financial statements
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COSMO SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRE mCORPORATED

Statement of Cash Flow

Year Ended December 31,2018

(Vwudited)

2018 2017

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses
Change in non-cash working capital:

Accounts payable

Cash flow from (used by) operatmg activities

FINANCING ACTIVITY
Short term debt

DECREASE IN CASH PLOW

Cash • beginning of year

CASH " END OF YEAR

CASH CONSISTS OP:
Cash
Term deposits

8,836

(D

(44,291)

1

s

s

s

8,835

(18,630)

(9*795)

82,198

72,403 $

7,580 S
64,823

72,403 S

(44,290)

43,173

(1,117)

83,315

82,198

13,062
69,l3_6_

82,198

4. TERM DEPOSITS

Term deposits for the organization are as follows:

3 Year Term Bonus Builder term deposit maturing March 11,
2018. The interest rate is 1.30% and is paid annually.

3 Year Non - Redeemable term deposit maturing July 19, 2021.
The interest rate is 3.30% and is paid annually.

3 Year Term Bonus Builder term deposit maturing October 18,
2019. The interest rate is 1.70% and is paid annually.

5 Year Term Bonus Builder term deposit maturing March 11,
2020. The interest rate is 1.35% and is paid annually.

2018

12,119

28,374

24,330

2017

5,118

11,982

28,065

23,971

64,823 $ 69,136

5. SHORT TERM DEBT

The organization has a $50,000 revolving line of credit of which $24,542 was used as at December 31, 2018.
Bank advances on the credit line are payable on demand and bears interest at 5.20%.

6. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Some of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.

See notes to financial statements
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COMMUNICATION # EC-2019-0141 
 
 

TITLE:  Options for the Introduction of an Infrastructure Levy - EC-2019-0141.docx 

 

TO:  Executive Committee  

 

FROM:  Department of Financial Services 

 

DATE:  August 7, 2019 

 

PUBLIC:  PUBLIC DOCUMENT    

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

THAT City Council approve an Infrastructure Levy of $100.00 per taxable property per year 

or $ 8.33 per month for all property classes except for the multi-unit residential property 

class which will have an Infrastructure Levy of $100.00 on each unit of the multi-unit 

residential property per year or $ 8.33 per month; and 

 

THAT the Infrastructure Levy extends to each mobile home in mobile home parks through 

an agreement with mobile park owners; and further 

 

THAT the Infrastructure Levy be held in a separate Capital Fund and only utilized to fund 

transportation related infrastructure rehabilitation including road rehabilitation related to 

the Cast Iron Watermain Program. 

 

TOPIC AND PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide several options related to a potential Infrastructure 

Levy. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The City of Moose Jaw has had ongoing discussions for several years in respect to the 

potential of implementing an Infrastructure Levy. The City of Moose Jaw, like all other 

municipalities in Canada, faces inadequate funding for infrastructure rehabilitation. In 

Moose Jaw the creation of new infrastructure has been the focus since its establishment, 

but the City is now into the latter stages of the life cycle of a large portion of its 

infrastructure including water lines, sewer lines, landfill, roadways, sidewalks, bridges and 

structures. 

 

 

City of  

Moose Jaw 
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Current levels of funding are not adequate to repair and rehabilitate much of Moose 

Jaw’s municipal infrastructure. Federal and Provincial Governments have proven to be 

unreliable sources of funding for infrastructure rehabilitation. Federal and Provincial grant 

funding tends to come in spurts around Provincial and Federal elections. The exception 

to this sporadic funding has been the Federal Gas Tax funding which has proven to be a 

stable source of infrastructure funding. 

 

In 2017, City Council at a regular meeting held on April 24, 2017, considered a report on 

watermain funding and passed the following motion in respect to Watermain Funding 

and more specifically transitioning the Hospital Levy into an Infrastructure Levy. 

 

“THAT the 2016 Cast Iron Watermain Budget not be carried over to 2017; and  

 

THAT the 2.25% allocation of Municipal Taxation in 2017 be reduced to 1.65% and 

be directed on an ongoing basis to the Cast Iron Watermain Replacement 

Program; and further 

 

THAT the source of funding for the remainder of the annual $5,850,000 (to be 

inflation adjusted annually) come from the transition of the Hospital Levy into an 

Infrastructure Levy to be levied on water utility customers based upon meter size 

starting in 2019.”  

 

During 2019 Budget deliberations, Council received a further report on a potential 

Infrastructure Levy utilizing the Water Utility as a basis for the levy. In response to that 

report, City Council passed the following motion: 

 

“THAT Administration provide a report to Council with options for the introduction of 

an Infrastructure Levy in advance of the 2020 Budget process.”  

 

DISCUSSION 

 

The first step in reviewing the need for an Infrastructure Levy is to analyse the need for this 

type of funding. In reviewing the 2019 to 2023 Capital Plans, it is clear that both the 

General Capital Reserve and the Waterworks Utility portions of the Capital Budget are in 

need of significant additional infrastructure funding. See attachment #1 General Capital 

Reserve Budget and attachment #2 Waterworks Capital Budget/Financial Model. 

 

The previous funding models developed in terms of an Infrastructure Levy anticipated a 

levy of approximately $100 per property per year or $ 8.33 per month which will generate 

approximately $1,600,000 annually for infrastructure renewal. 

 

Recent announcements of a doubling of the Gas Tax funding in 2019 and the Federal 

ICIP program will provide a benefit in 2020/21 primarily to the Waterworks Utility. It is hoped 

that this funding may lessen or eliminate the need for further borrowing by the utility. 

However, given the sporadic nature of Federal/Provincial funding, there is still the need 

for an Infrastructure Levy. 

 

The General Capital Reserve has a $17.6 million dollar deficit over five years which 

originates primarily in the Transportation area of this budget. 
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In reviewing other Cities in Saskatchewan, there are two forms of Infrastructure Levy in 

place. The first is a base tax applied to the various property classes. The table below 

summarizes some of the communities with this type of levy. 

 

 
    

The second type of Infrastructure Levy is one specific to a utility in which the utility levies 

a monthly or volume--based levy on users to help support the infrastructure renewal of 

that utility. The table below summarizes some communities with this type of levy. 

 

 
    

In reviewing options for implementing a levy, City Administration would recommend to 

City Council to adopt a levy based upon a base tax as it has the flexibility to be utilized 

for a wide range of infrastructure needs. A utility-based levy on the other hand is more 

restrictive and generally just utilized for that utility’s capital needs. By going with a broad- 

based Infrastructure Levy, it will be possible for Council to direct it to the area most in 

need of funding. 

 

  

Comparison of Base Tax

Infrastructure Levies

Saskatchewan Cities

Type Residential Commercial

Humboldt Roadway Rehabilitation 65 70 to 1750

Infrastructure Tax 130 135 to 3375

Matensville Wastewater Levy 75 75

Recreation Levy 100 100

North Battleford Underground and Asphalt Levy $4.36 a front foot $4.36 a front foot

Recreation Facilities 187.46 1.41 mills

Prince Albert Roadways Levy 189 500 to 14,500

Infrastructure Tax 60 125 to 4,700

Yorkton Recreation Levy 100 100

Comparison of Utility based

Infrastructure Levies

Saskatchewan Cities

Type Residential Commercial

Estevan Drainage Levy 21.05 bi monthly 21.05 bi monthly

Water Infrastructure 20.00 bi monthly 20.00 bi monthly

Humboldt Storm Infrastructure Fee NA NA

Melville Infrastructure Levy 23.12 monthly 23.12 monthly

North Battleford Water Undergrounds 10.67 to 864.27 10.67 to 864.27

based on meter size per month

Sewer Undergrounds 13.30 to 1370.52 13.30 to 1370.52

based on meter size per month

Prince Albert Water Capital Works 25.00 to 350.00 25.00 to 350.00

based on meter size per month

Sewer Capital Works 22.00 to 308.00 22.00 to 308.00

based on meter size per month

Saskatoon Infrastructure Consumption Charge 3.169 per 100 Cu.ft 2.631 per 100 Cu.ft
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City Administration would also recommend a flat $100 levy (Base Tax) or $ 8.33 per month 

for all property classes.  The treatment of commercial properties the same as residential 

will help lessen the property tax gap that exists between commercial and residential 

properties.  Also, all citizens utilize the transportation infrastructure so a flat rate for all 

reflects this usage. 

 

An alternative to a levy is simply to increase municipal taxation and utility rates to 

generate the additional monies needed to fund the City’s infrastructure needs. Those 

increases would be: 

 

 Municipal Tax increase of approximately 5.5% would generate $1,600,000 for 

infrastructure renewal. 

 

 Water Utility rate increase of approximately 16%. 

 

In reviewing all the options, City Administration would recommend that City Council 

adopt a base tax of $100 per taxable property levied or $ 8.33 per month on the same 

basis as the previous Hospital Levy. This will generate approximately $1,600,000 annually 

which City Administration would recommend be directed to the Transportation section 

of the General Capital Reserve portion of the Capital Budget; and that the funds be 

directed to fund Transportation related infrastructure rehabilitation including road 

rehabilitation related to the Cast Iron Watermain Program. By including Cast Iron 

Watermain road repair it will allow for some of the funding to be used to alleviate funding 

issues in the Waterworks Utility. 

 

OPTIONS TO RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. City Council refer this report to City Council budget deliberations. 

 

2. City Council recommend an alternative amount for the levy. 

 

3. City Council implement a Utility based levy. 

 

4. City Council increase taxation or water rates to generate the required funding. 

 

PUBLIC AND/OR STAKEHOLDER INVOLVEMENT 

 

This is a public communication as have been the previous communications on this 

matter.  Citizens or groups are invited to make their viewpoints known to City Council. 

 

COMMUNICATION PLAN 

 

Once Council has made a decision on the type of levy to pursue, it will come back before 

Council to be approved either as part of the Mill Rate Bylaw or Utility Bylaw. This will allow 

the public another opportunity to express their views on the matter at that time.  

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

 

The ability to fund strategic initiatives such as infrastructure renewal is necessary for 

rehabilitation of these assets to move forward. 
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BYLAW OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

 

Decisions made in respect to a levy will ultimately come back to Council in bylaw form 

for approval. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

The suggested implementation of an Infrastructure Levy in 2020 would generate 

approximately $1,600,000 annually which would go towards Transportation related 

infrastructure renewal.  

 

PRESENTATION 

 

VERBAL:    The Director of Financial Services will be in attendance to present an overview 

of the report. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

1. 2019 to 2023 General Capital Reserve Budget. 

 

2. 2019 to 2023 Waterworks Utility Budget and Financial Model. 

 

3. December 4, 2018 report from the Financial Services Department re: Utility rate 

Review. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL 

 

Written by:  Brian Acker, B.Comm., CPA, CMA, Director of Financial Services 

Reviewed by:  Tracy Wittke, Assistant City Clerk 

Approved by:    Jim Puffalt, City Manager  

Approved by:    Fraser Tolmie, Mayor 
 

Mayor’s Comments: 

 

The hospital levy had a start and end date to coincide with the construction of the new 

hospital. If an infrastructure levy is introduced which was part of the 2016 Cast Iron 

Referendum, then there should also be a start and end date to coincide with 

designated projects. 
 

 

 

To be completed by the Clerk’s Department only. 

 

Presented to Regular Council or Executive Committee on _____________________________________________________. 

 

No. _________________________         Resolution No. _________________________________________________ 
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Report Approval Details 

Document Title: Options for the Introduction of an Infrastructure Levy - 

EC-2019-0141.docx 

Attachments: - ATTACHMENT 1 - 2019 to 2023 General Capital Reserve 

Budget.pdf 

- ATTACHMENT 2 - 2019 to 2023 Waterworks Utility Budget 

and Financial Model.docx 

- ATTACHMENT 3 - December 4 2018 report  from the 

Financial Services Department re Utility Rate Review.pdf 

Final Approval Date: Aug 15, 2019 

 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

 
Tracy Wittke - Aug 12, 2019 - 2:59 PM 

 
Jim Puffalt - Aug 14, 2019 - 7:17 AM 

 
Fraser Tolmie - Aug 15, 2019 - 12:26 PM 
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ATTACHMENT #1 - 2019 to 2023 General Capital Reserve Budget

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total

7,010,116$           6,675,897$             1,822,417$         (7,502,054)$         (10,969,081)$       (14,468,418)$      

 

2,818,667$           2,814,524$             2,913,032$         3,014,988$          3,120,513$          3,229,731$          15,092,788$          

1,620,000$           257,000$                -$                       -$                         -$                         -$                        257,000$               

3,069,761$           3,583,283$             3,506,860$         3,640,805$          3,750,029$          3,862,530$          18,343,506$          

1,315,000$           1,295,000$             1,150,000$         1,450,000$          1,400,000$          1,500,000$          6,795,000$            

1,530,000$           910,000$                910,000$            1,125,000$          880,000$             880,000$             4,705,000$            

82,500$                20,000$                  98,500$              39,000$               39,500$               40,000$               237,000$               

Traffic Safety Reserve Cont 1,093,087$           -$                            -$                       -$                         -$                         -$                        -$                           

Accumulated Surplus 1,613,791$           -$                            -$                       -$                         -$                         -$                        -$                           

SaskEnergy Mun. Surcharge -$                          912,500$                930,750$            949,365$             968,352$             987,719$             4,748,686$            

Fundraising Contributions 206,989$              296,989$                329,495$            -$                         -$                         -$                        626,484$               

Transfer to Waterworks (2,193,874)$          (2,691,492)$            (2,668,666)$       (2,748,726)$         (2,831,188)$         (2,916,123)$        (13,856,194)$         

Uncompleted Works (5,531,900)$          (3,672,747)$            -$                       -$                         -$                         -$                        

12,634,137$         10,400,954$           8,992,388$         (31,622)$              (3,641,874)$         (6,884,561)$        36,949,271$          

6,030,800$           4,468,962$             12,706,200$       7,464,000$          7,336,930$          7,661,000$          39,637,092$          

1,642,115$           1,093,130$             1,072,995$         1,300,885$          1,244,010$          798,153$             5,509,173$            

3,914,222$           2,546,445$             1,875,247$         1,452,574$          1,445,604$          1,430,620$          8,750,490$            

50,000$                65,000$                  50,000$              50,000$               50,000$               50,000$               265,000$               

89,000$                -$                            -$                       -$                         -$                         -$                        -$                           

-$                          -$                            -$                       -$                         -$                         -$                        -$                           

800,000$              405,000$                790,000$            670,000$             750,000$             840,000$             3,455,000$            

12,526,137$         8,578,537$             16,494,442$       10,937,459$        10,826,544$        10,779,773$        57,616,755$          

108,000$              1,822,417$             (7,502,054)$       (10,969,081)$       (14,468,418)$       (17,664,334)$      

-$                          -$                            -$                       -$                         -$                         -$                        

108,000$              1,822,417$             (7,502,054)$       (10,969,081)$       (14,468,418)$       (17,664,334)$      

Parks and Recreation

Other Services

Police Services

Fire Services

Downtown Facility & FieldHouse

Storm Sewers

Total Funding Required

Surplus/Shortfall

Final Surplus/Shortfall

Transportation

GENERAL CAPITAL RESERVE SUMMARY

2019 - 2023

Carry over from previous year

SPC Funds Available

Hospital Levy

Taxation Revenue

Capital Expenditure Fund Interest

Land Sale Proceeds

Parks Dedication Reserve

Capital Funding Available

08/08/2019
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   Attachment #2 2019 to 2023 Waterworks Utility Budget and Financial Model 

 

 

 

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total

$8,793,648 $18,071,573 ($7,919,519) $29,018 ($1,028,477) ($1,174,050)

$6,587,995 $7,960,506 $10,125,207 $11,333,462 $12,154,384 $13,186,779 $54,760,338 

$30,000,000 $0 $20,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000,000 

$35,408,000 $20,885,349 $22,176,670 $12,390,957 $12,299,957 $13,099,957 $80,852,890 

$20,557,830 $13,066,249 $0 $0 $0 $0 

($10,584,187) ($7,919,519) $29,018 ($1,028,477) ($1,174,050) ($1,087,228)Year End Balance

less Uncompleted Works

WATER UTILITY RESERVE

2019 - 2023

Opening Balance

Contributions during the year

Loan Proceeds

less Water Works Projects
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City of Moose Jaw

Waterworks Utility

2019 to 2023 Financial Model

Waterworks Utility - Forecast

Revised February 12th, 2019 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Operating Budget Model
Revenues:

     General Service 10,600,000$   11,174,300$   12,325,935$   13,989,937$   15,123,122$   16,348,094$   

     Utility Billing Penalties 58,277           60,387           65,278           74,091           80,092           86,580           

     Connection Fees 62,235           62,940           63,000           65,000           67,000           70,000           

     Water Depots 35,075           28,390           30,690           34,833           37,654           40,704           

     House Connections 300,000         300,000         315,000         330,750         347,288         364,652         

     Miscellaneous Revenue 1,092             1,000             1,000             1,000             1,000             1,000             

     Water Meter Revenue 17,000           20,000           21,000           22,000           23,000           24,000           

Total Revenues 11,073,679$   11,647,017$   12,821,903$   14,517,610$   15,679,155$   16,935,030$   

Expenditures:

     Production 2,971,446$    3,047,945$    3,279,790$    3,752,742$    4,044,169$    4,266,440$    

     Distribution 4,018,372      4,032,213      4,128,986      4,228,082      4,329,556      4,433,465      

     Administration 1,361,636      1,500,084      1,556,961      1,640,761      1,748,248      1,829,777      

Total Expenditures 8,351,454$    8,580,242$    8,965,737$    9,621,584$    10,121,972$   10,529,682$   

     Reserve Contribution 2,722,225$    3,066,775$    3,856,166$    4,896,026$    5,557,183$    6,405,348$    

Reserve Cashflow Model 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Opening Balance of Reserve 8,326,765$    18,071,573$   (7,919,519)$   29,018$         (1,028,477)$   (1,174,051)$   

Reserve Contribution 2,722,225      3,066,775      3,856,166      4,896,026      5,557,183      6,405,348      

Interest Revenue 237,585         119,287         (102,577)        (14,242)          (34,139)          (37,876)          

Borrowing Proceeds 30,000,000    -                20,000,000    -                -                -                

Gas Tax Funding 2,033,041      2,082,952      2,082,952      2,082,952      2,082,952      2,082,952      

Borrowing Repayment (508,103)        (2,575,349)     (4,423,670)     (4,424,957)     (4,424,957)     (4,424,957)     

Tax Funding 2,706,874      2,691,492      2,668,666      2,748,726      2,831,188      2,916,123      

Infrastructure Levy -                -                1,620,000      1,620,000      1,717,200      1,820,232      

Carry Forwards -                (13,066,249)   -                -                -                -                

Capital Expenditures (27,446,814)   (18,310,000)   (17,753,000)   (7,966,000)     (7,875,000)     (8,675,000)     

Closing Balance of Reserve 18,071,573$   (7,919,519)$   29,018$         (1,028,477)$   (1,174,051)$   (1,087,229)$   

Forecast Rates: 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Projected Key Rates

Anticipated Cost Increases 2.4% 2.4% 2.4% 2.4% 2.4% 2.4%

Production Cost Increases 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

Approved Rate Structure 9.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Proposed Rate Structure 0.0% 6.0% 9.0% 15.0% 9.0% 9.0%

Conservation Rate 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%

Average Cost Example 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

75M3 per Qtr 15 - 20mm Meter 181.89$         192.81$         210.16$         241.68$         263.44$         287.14$         

25M3 per Mnth 15 - 20mm Meter 60.63$           64.27$           70.05$           80.56$           87.81$           95.71$           

Infrastructure Levy-15-20mm/Mnth -$              8.33$             8.33$             8.33$             8.83$             9.36$             
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LETTER OF COMMUNICATION 

 
 

TITLE:  Utility Rate Review 

 

TO:  Budget Committee 

 

FROM:  Department of Financial Services 

 

DATE:  December 4, 2018 

 

PUBLIC:  This is a public document   

 

IN-CAMERA:  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

THAT the Waterworks and Sanitary Sewer Utility Rate Schedule be amended to reflect a 

6% rate increase effective April 1, 2019; and  

 

THAT effective April 1, 2019, a Waterworks Infrastructure Levy be established based upon 

a variable monthly levy based upon meter size. That infrastructure Levy will be: 

 

 Monthly 

         Meter Size Levy 

15 - 20 mm       $8.33  

21 - 30 mm     $16.67  

31 - 40 mm     $33.33  

41 - 50 mm     $66.67  

51 - 75 mm   $133.00  

76 - 100 mm   $267.00  

101 - 150 mm   $533.00  

151 - 200 mm $1,067.00  

greater than 200mm  $2,133.00  

 

and further; 

 

THAT City Administration be directed to amend Bylaw No. 5152 The Sewer and Water 

Utility Bylaw. 

 

City of  

Moose Jaw 
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TOPIC AND PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide Budget Committee with the results of an analysis 

of Water and Sewer Utility rates. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The City of Moose Jaw provides water and sanitary sewer services to the citizens and 

businesses of the community via two separate utilities. The Waterworks Utility is set up to 

be a self-funded utility that provides potable water to the citizens and businesses of the 

City of Moose Jaw. Likewise, the Sanitary Sewer Utility is also self-funded and provides 

sanitary sewer disposal services to the citizens and businesses of Moose Jaw. 

 

On April 24, 2017, City Council passed the following motion in respect to Watermain 

Funding and more specifically transitioning the Hospital Levy into an Infrastructure Levy. 

 

“THAT the 2016 Cast Iron Watermain Budget not be carried over to 2017; and  

 

THAT the 2.25% allocation of Municipal Taxation in 2017 be reduced to 1.65% and 

be directed on an ongoing basis to the Cast Iron Watermain Replacement 

Program; and further 

 

THAT the source of funding for the remainder of the annual $5,850,000 (to be 

inflation adjusted annually) come from the transition of the Hospital Levy into an 

Infrastructure Levy to be levied on water utility customers based upon meter size 

starting in 2019.”  

 

Waterworks Utility 

 

The Waterworks Utility’s Operating Expenditures are funded from the revenue generated 

from utility rate charges to its customers. The excess of utility rate revenues, once 

operating expenditures have been satisfied, is contributed as a reserve charge to be 

utilized to fund its capital needs. It is estimated that the Waterworks Utility will generate 

approximately $2,492,475 in 2019 towards these capital needs.  

 

 

Descrip tio n
2018

Pro jection

2018

Budge t

2019

Budge t

2019 - 2018

INC (DCR)
% Change

GENERAL SERVICE 10,600,000 10,015,565 10,600,000 584,435 5.8%

UTILITY BILLING PENALTIES 58,277 42,438 60,387 17,949 42.3%

CONNECTION FEES 62,235 65,025 62,940 (2,085) (3.2)%

WATER DEPOTS 35,075 27,361 28,390 1,029 3.8%

HOUSE CONNECTIONS 300,000 250,000 300,000 50,000 20.0%

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 1,092 5,700 1,000 (4,700) (82.5)%

WATER METER REVENUE 17,000 29,000 20,000 (9,000) (31.0)%

REVENUES 11,073,679 10,435,089 11,072,717 637,628 6.1%

PRODUCTION 2,971,446 3,118,271 3,047,945 (70,326) (2.3)%

DISTRIBUTION 4,018,372 3,933,184 4,032,213 99,029 2.5%

ADMINISTRATION 1,361,636 1,337,706 1,500,084 162,378 12.1%

RESERVE CHARGE 2,722,225 2,045,928 2,492,475 446,547 21.8%

EXPENDITURES 11,073,679 10,435,089 11,072,717 637,628 6.1%

City of Moose Jaw

Budget Summary of Revenues & Expenditures

For Waterworks
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The Waterworks Utility is also the recipient of the City’s Gas Tax funding which will total an 

estimated $2,082,952 in 2019. In addition to this funding, the City currently redirects 

municipal taxation to the utility to partially fund the cast iron watermain replacement 

program. This appropriation of tax revenues totals $2,836,492. In summary, for 2019 the 

following are the anticipated funding sources for the utilities capital needs: 

 

 
 

The capital needs of the Waterworks Utility are estimated to be $119,654,432 over the 

next five years.  

 

Sanitary Sewer Utility 

 

The Sanitary Sewer Utility is estimated to generate $3,833,354 in 2019 as a reserve charge 

which will be utilized to fund current borrowings and future capital needs. The Sanitary 

Sewer Utility is a self-funded utility which means it relies on the revenue generated from 

utility rate charges and grant funding to fully fund its operations and capital needs. 

 

 
 

 

The Sanitary Sewer Utility has planned capital expenditures over the next five years of 

$32,314,133.  

 

  

Utility Rate Charges $2,492,475

Gas Tax Funding $2,082,952

Municipal Taxation $2,836,492

Total Funds for Capital Needs $7,411,919

Descrip tion
2018

Pro je ction

2018

Budge t

2019

Budge t

2019 - 2018

INC (DCR)
% Change

GENERAL SERVICE 7,670,000 7,636,647 7,670,000 33,353 0.4%

SEWER BLOCKS 450 4,663 806 (3,857) (82.7)%

UTILITY BILLING PENALTIES 44,998 40,127 46,217 6,090 15.2%

SEPTAGE FEES 34,793 21,171 26,811 5,640 26.6%

HOUSE CONNECTIONS 400,000 275,000 400,000 125,000 45.5%

REVENUES 8,150,241 7,977,608 8,143,834 166,226 2.1%

ADMINISTRATION 1,000,542 994,790 1,038,449 43,659 4.4%

RESERVE CHARGE 3,876,344 3,694,414 3,833,354 138,940 3.8%

SEWAGE TREATMENT 2,043,742 2,119,753 2,083,785 (35,968) (1.7)%

SANITARY SEWERS 1,229,613 1,168,651 1,188,246 19,595 1.7%

EXPENDITURES 8,150,241 7,977,608 8,143,834 166,226 2.1%

City of Moose Jaw

Budget Summary of Revenues & Expenditures

For Sanitary Sewer
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The table below shows the City of Moose Jaw’s Water and Sewer rate increases since 

2005: 

 

       Historical Review of Utility Rate Increases 

 

Water    Sewer 

2005    2.00%     2.00% * 

2006    2.00%    2.00% * 

2007    5.00% 10.00% 

2008  10.00% 15.00% 

2009  10.00% 15.00% 

2010    5.00% 13.00% 

2011  15.00% 15.00% 

2012    9.00%     9.00% 

2013    9.00%    9.00% 

2014    9.00%    9.00% 

2015    9.00%    9.00% 

2016    9.00%    9.00% 

2017  15.00%    6.00% 

2018    9.00%     6.00% 

 
* Note: Rate increases during the 2002 to 2006 period were not a flat across-the-board increase, but 

rather were made up of varying rate increases per type of meter and level of consumption. The 

increase shown is the average projected increase per Communication #178 dated July 11, 2001. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

The Water and Sewer Utilities are both facing expenditure pressures on the operating and 

capital areas. The discussion below attempts to address the challenges and potential 

ways to deal with those challenges for each utility.  
 

Waterworks Utility 

 

The Water Utility operational costs appear to be stabilizing with distribution costs more 

within a normal inflationary increase. In terms of production costs, there is a small 

decrease for 2019, but significant increases in water rates charged by the Buffalo Pound 

Water Treatment Corporation (BPWTC) for capital improvements will impact production 

costs going forward. 

 

These increased production costs are the result of the BPWTC now being responsible for 

all capital costs related to the facility. In order to fund an estimated $127 million to $224 

million dollar renewal project, the rates charged for water will climb in the future. The 

table below summarizes those projected increases: 

 

 

Rate per megaliter

2018 533.00

2019 543.00

2020 585.00

2021 672.00

2022 725.00

2023 765.00

Page  707 of 792



 

 
5 

In terms of the infrastructure needs of the utility, they total $119,935,619 and are detailed 

in Attachment #1 - 2019 to 2023 Waterworks Planned Capital Expenditures. This is an 

extreme amount of capital works for a utility of this size (annual revenue approx. $11 

million).  

 

The Financial Services Department has created a Financial Model for the Waterworks 

Utility that puts into perspective the extreme financial pressures being faced by the utility. 

This model can be found in Attachment #2 - 2019 to 2023 Waterworks Financial Model. 

 

As can be seen, the financial model calls for an additional $45 million in borrowing, which 

is in addition to the $30 million borrowed in 2018.  As well, the model has been produced 

with annual 6% rate increases which is the direction of City Council. Lastly, the transition 

of the Hospital Levy to a Waterworks Levy beginning in 2019 has been accounted for in 

the model. 

 

The one thing this financial model does not take into account is the potential for any 

Federal/Provincial Grant funding. If the City were successful in getting Federal/Provincial 

funding, this would reduce some of the borrowing needs.  

 

The financial model presented will meet the needs of the utility over the next five years, 

but does not provide long term financial stability for the utility. Going forward into the 

future, there will be a need for utility rate increases greater than 6% annually and/or 

significant amounts of Federal and Provincial grant funding. 

 

The current financial model also will not provide much if any room for future debt limit 

requirements related to the BPWTC renewal. The funding for the renewal project will 

come from the rates charged for water by BPWTC. However, since the corporation is 

jointly owned by the City of Regina (74%) and City of Moose Jaw (26%) any borrowing 

done by the corporation will count against the borrowing limits of the two cities.  

 

In Moose Jaw’s case, 26% of any borrowing will need to be absorbed in the City’s debt 

limit. The City’s debt limit currently sits at $95 million dollars and approximately $64 million 

dollars of that limit has been used to date. The waterworks financial model anticipates 

that an additional $45 million in borrowing for the Waterworks Utility will be required over 

the next three years. Given that a portion of the debt will be paid off over the next three 

years, it is estimated that the additional $45 million in borrowing will put the City at its debt 

limit of $95 million dollars. 

 

Where issues may potentially arise is the amount of additional debt limit that will be 

required for the City of Moose Jaw’s 26% share of the BPWTC renewal project. That could 

range from $33 million to $58 million if no grant funding is available. If 50% grant funding 

were available for the plant renewal, then the City’s share of debt would range from 

$16.5 to $29.0 million dollars. The lower range of this debt requirement is likely 

manageable; however, if significant Federal and Provincial funding is not available, then 

it may be difficult for the City to get that high a debt level approved by the 

Saskatchewan Municipal Board given our current planned debt levels. 
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The financial model presented with 6% annual rate increases, transition of the Hospital 

Levy to a Waterworks Infrastructure Levy and $45 million in borrowing is manageable over 

the five year Capital Plan period. Future periods beyond 2023 being manageable are 

predicated on a significantly reduced capital need and Federal and Provincial grant 

funding.  

 

Sanitary Sewer Utility 
 

The Sanitary Sewer Utility is experiencing more moderate cost pressures on its operations 

and capital needs. The debt that the corporation currently holds will be paid off at the 

end of 2023 and the financial model appears to be sustainable with moderate rate 

increases of 6% each year over the five year period. 

 

In the longer term, it may make sense to look at the potential of combining the 

Waterworks and Sanitary Sewer Utilities into one entity. This would have the benefit of 

creating a larger utility which could redirect resources from one area such as Sanitary 

Sewers to areas of financial need such as Waterworks. This type of amalgamation is 

several years off as the Sanitary Sewer Utility is just now getting on solid financial footings 

where at a point five or so years down the road, it may be able to contribute to 

Waterworks capital needs. 

 

In terms of the infrastructure needs of the utility, they total $32,314,133 and are detailed 

in Attachment #3 - 2019 to 2023 Sanitary Sewer Planned Capital Expenditures. This is a 

much more moderate capital request than the Waterworks Utility and in addition, long-

term borrowing for the utility will be fully repaid by 2023. Annual contributions from 

operations to capital are also strong at an estimated $3,833,354 in 2019 before the 

proposed 6% rate increase. 

 

The Financial Services Department has created a Financial Model for the Sanitary Sewer 

Utility that puts into perspective the financial pressures being faced by the utility. This 

model can be found in Attachment #4 - 2019 to 2023 Wastewater Financial Model. City 

Administration would recommend funding the Sanitary Sewer Utility with 6% rate 

increases over the next five years. 

  

Conclusion 

 

As can be seen from the discussion above, both utilities are facing financial pressures. 

The analysis above has proposed rate increases for each of the next five years for each 

utility.  

 

The uncertainty surrounding these financial models relates to: 

 

• Scope of work that must be performed over the next five years. 

• Federal/Provincial Infrastructure Funding. 

 

Given these uncertainties and the obvious need for a utility increase for 2019, City 

Administration would recommend to Council to proceed with a 2019 increase only at this 

point in time.  
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The rate adjustments recommended in this report are necessary for the utilities to be able 

to meet their financial obligations and continue to provide water and sanitary sewer 

services.  

 

A comparison of other cities’ 2017 rates for both residential and commercial usage is 

provided in Attachment #5 - 2017 Utility Rate Comparison (2018 comparison was not 

available). As can be seen, the City of Moose Jaw has the fifth lowest residential rates 

and the fourth lowest commercial rates amongst the cities surveyed.  

 

Also of specific interest is the water and sewer rates of Moose Jaw’s closest comparator, 

that being the City of Regina. (See attachment #6.) The City of Regina’s 2018 water and 

sewer rates are compared to the City of Moose Jaw’s in the attached table.  The table 

indicates that the City of Regina’s residential water and sewer charges are 22% more 

than Moose Jaw’s. 

 

The City of Moose Jaw’s water and sewer charge for a residential customer with a 20 mm 

meter and 25 M3 of usage a month is $109.69. The proposed rate increases will result in 

this same residential customer paying $116.27 for water and sewer services in 2019 plus 

the water infrastructure levy of $8.33 bringing the total monthly charge to $124.60. 

Although this is a significant increase in cost, it should be noted that the cost of water 

and sewer services is still reasonable when compared to the monthly charges that one 

pays for electricity, natural gas, cable and telephone.   

 

City Administration is recommending only a one-year utility rate increase be 

implemented at this time. The rationale for this recommendation is twofold. First of all the 

capital plans for both utilities are subject to fluctuation into the future and secondly the 

City is hopeful it will receive some Federal/Provincial funding over the next five years. For 

these reasons, a rate increase of 6% for the Waterworks Utility and 6% for the Sanitary 

Sewer Utility effective April 1, 2019 is being recommended. 

  

OPTIONS TO RECOMMENDATION      

 

1) Implement a longer term rate increase such as three years of 6% utility rate increases 

and implementation of the Infrastructure Levy. 

PUBLIC AND/OR STAKEHOLDER INVOLVEMENT 

 

As part of the City’s public input process, individuals or groups can present a submission 

to Budget Committee in respect to proposed utility rate increases. At this point, no groups 

or individuals have come forward but if any do, they will be allowed to present at this 

meeting.  

 

COMMUNICATION PLAN 

 

Once a decision on 2019 utility rate increases have been ratified, City Administration will 

inform the public of the upcoming increases through advertising as well as an insert in 

utility bills. 

 

In addition, as part of the communications plan for this rate increase, the City will make 

every effort to inform our customers about the Water Instalment Payment Plan (WIPPS) 

that the City offers. This plan allows customers to move from the regular three month 
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billing and payment cycle to a monthly payment cycle but which requires the customer 

to sign up for direct debit as a method of payment.  The move from quarterly to monthly 

billings under the WIPPS plan allows customers to be charged a more manageable 

monthly bill rather than facing a larger bill every three months, penalty free due to the 

direct withdrawal requirement.  Currently about 14.3 % of the City’s Water & Sewer 

customers take advantage of the monthly payment plan. 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

Developing an appropriate utility rate structure forms the basis for the carrying out of the 

City’s strategic and administrative plans as they relate to both the Waterworks and 

Sanitary Sewer Utilities.  This funding mechanism also provides for the funding necessary 

to move forward with infrastructure renewal and supports the administrative strategic 

theme of enhancing infrastructure planning and management. 

BYLAW OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

The approval of the recommendation in this report will result in the need to amend the 

rate schedule in Bylaw No. 5152 The Sewer and Water Utility Bylaw. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The proposed rate increases and levy introduction for the Waterworks Utility and the rate 

increase for the Sanitary Sewer Utility will generate annually approximately $2,192,000 

and $414,000 respectively. It is important to note that taxpayers will see a corresponding 

drop in the monies levied for the hospital of $1,620,000 annually. 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

Public Notice pursuant to the Public Notice Policy as incorporated into the City 

Administration Bylaw No. 5175 of 2016 is not required. 

PRESENTATION 

VERBAL:  X AUDIO/VISUAL: NONE: 

ATTACHMENTS 

1) 2019 to 2023 Waterworks Planned Capital Expenditures.

2) 2019 to 2023 Waterworks Financial Model.

3) 2019 to 2023 Sanitary Sewer Planned Capital Expenditures.

4) 2019 to 2023 Wastewater Financial Model.

5) 2017 Utility Rate Comparison.

6) Comparison to City of Regina Utility Rates.

7) Potential Waterworks Infrastructure Levy examples.
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Respectfully Submitted By, 

 

 

 

 Brian Acker     

Brian Acker, B.Comm., CPA, CMA 

Director of Financial Services 

 

BA/sp 

 

Attachs. 

 

 

APPROVAL OF REPORT RECEIVED     COMMENTS RECEIVED 

 

 

 

 

 Jim Puffalt     

Jim Puffalt, City Manager 

 

 

 

 Fraser Tolmie     

Fraser Tolmie, Mayor 
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COMMUNICATION # CC-2019-0154 
 

TITLE:  Recycling Collection Contract Renewal 

 

TO:  City Council 

 

FROM:  Department of Engineering Services 

 

DATE:  August 19, 2019 

 

PUBLIC:  PUBLIC DOCUMENT    

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

THAT the City continue with the first optional two-year extension of the recycling program 

with Loraas Disposal Services Inc. as outlined in the Recycling Collection Services 

Agreement. 

 

TOPIC AND PURPOSE 

 

To obtain Council support in continuing with the first two-year extension in the residential 

collection recycling program.   

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The City entered into the Recycling Collection Services Agreement with Loraas Disposal 

Services Inc. on October 1, 2015.  The contract included an initial three-year term along 

with two extensions of two years each.  The first extension commenced on October 1, 

2018 and will conclude on September 30, 2020.  If the City desires to enact the second 

two-year extension, it must do so on or before April 1, 2020.   

 

The City chose to finance the collection carts through Loraas Disposal Services Inc. over 

the initial term and potential extensions of the Agreement.  If the agreement was 

terminated prior to fulfilling both extensions, there is a buy-out fee required to pay for the 

balance remaining on the carts. The financial terms of this arrangement are shown in the 

following table: 

 

Period Time Cart Quantity Cost/Cart Buy-out 

Completion of Initial Term 3 years 12,500 $50 $625,000 

Conclusion of 1st Extension 2 years 12,500 $20 $250,000 

Conclusion of 2nd Extension 2 years 12,500 $0 $0 

 

 

City of  

Moose Jaw 
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DISCUSSION 

 

Large scale programs, which involve the majority of residents in a municipality, should be 

considered from multiple perspectives.  Recycling collection in Moose Jaw can be 

analysed through the Triple Bottom Line Concept.   The Triple Bottom Line Concept is a 

sustainability framework that examines a company’s or organization’s social, 

environment, and economic impact.  Instead of one traditional bottom line (economic), 

this concept proposes there should be three considered.  This balances the wants and 

needs of an organization with the desires of its customers or stakeholders both locally and 

globally. 

 

Economic 

 

The City collects solid waste and recycling from approximately 11,600 homes.  The 

monthly cost charged per property is $9.77 for solid waste collection and $7.09 for 

recycling collection.  The recycling cost to the City’s residents is partially offset by a 

subsidy from the Multi Material Recycling Western (MMSW) organization.  The 2018 grant 

amounted to $187,579 and is expected to increase in 2019 to $340,290.   

 

The Department of Engineering has contacted several municipalities in Saskatchewan to 

determine the different recycling collection models in use from a financial perspective.  

There are several different models in use making direct comparisons more difficult.  These 

models include multiple contractors and/or cities performing the collection.  Carts 

financed to own under a multi-year agreement, carts purchased outright, or carts owned 

completely by the contractor providing the collection service.  The agreements are of 

varying lengths with varying contract extensions and some including processing of the 

material.  This makes comparing the City of Moose Jaw’s rate difficult with regards to 

competitiveness.  The City has neither the lowest nor the highest collection rate in the 

Province rather being somewhere in the middle for costs.  In communities that provided 

responses the high cost was $9.25/mo.; the low cost was $5.09/mo.; Moose Jaw’s current 

rate is $7.09/mo. 

 

The solid waste tonnage collected from the residential cart program (household 

garbage) has decreased steadily over the last three years with the implementation of 

eight months of bi-weekly collection.  7,707 tonnes were collected and disposed of at 

the City landfill in 2018.  Through 2019, this total is trending down 6.9% through the first 6 

months.  Conversely, recycling tonnage has only increased 0.2% over three full years of 

collection going from 1,341.4 tonnes to 1,344.4 tonnes annually.  Based on current 

tonnages and customer charges, the cost for each household to dispose of a single 

kilogram of waste and recycling can be calculated.  The cost to dispose of waste is 

$0.18/kg and the cost to recycle is $0.74/kg.   

 

It is clear from an economic standpoint that the current multi-material recycling 

collection program is a cost-plus service. 

 

Environment 

 

The environment bottom line concept is where an organization strives to minimize its 

environmental impact, reducing its ecological footprint.  This can take many forms 

through programs aimed at managing the consumption of energy and non-renewables, 

reduction of waste, recovery of materials that can be re-purposed or recycled, etc.  
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Single stream recycling has been one common practice that municipalities have 

adopted to begin addressing capture and re-use of papers and plastics that are 

contributing to deforestation and non-degradable plasticized pollution worldwide.  

Generally, recycling is considered to have a positive environmental impact. 

 

Currently the recycling industry worldwide is in a fair amount of turmoil.  The effect of 

Asian countries closing their doors to the world’s “dirty” recycling streams has had a 

significant global impact on the entire industry.  Commodity prices have plunged, and 

material sorting and recycling facilities have begun to stockpile materials, waiting for the 

industry to sort itself out.  It is a complex industry from supplier to manufacturer to customer 

to disposal/reuse.  What is clear is that the most effective environmental control is 

reduction, elimination or innovation of materials used/created at their source.  

Unfortunately, North America has been slow in adopting these types of practices and it 

generally requires intervention from larger government bodies at provincial/state and 

federal levels in conjunction with large industry entities.    

 

Social 

 

Social equity bottom line concept is simply consideration of and impact on people and 

the community.  How do programs affect social well-being; what are the communities 

wishes?  As part of the solid waste master plan deliverables, community consultation was 

done on a variety of topics through phone surveys, online surveys and public 

consultation.  Feedback with respect to recycling was very clear and overwhelming. 

 

 
 

SUMA has an Urban Solid Waste Management Policy and has recently released three 

resolutions related to the reduction of plastic waste and pollution resolving to advocate 

and work with the federal and provincial governments.  They are as follows: 

 

1) Eliminate problematic and toxic products that pollute our environment such as 

micro-plastics and regulate the use of plastics and additives that are toxic or 

cannot be recycled; 

2) Reduce the use of single-use plastics; and 

77.0%

70.0%

69.0%

58.0%

19.0%

26.0%

26.0%

31.0%

Recycling Collection Services

Reducing Environmental Impact through waste
management practices

Decreasing the amount of garbage sent to the landfill

Preventing organics and recyclables from going into the
garbage where practical

Importance of Waste Management Plan Objectives

Very Important Somewhat Important Not Very Important Not Important at All
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3) Create incentives for reducing waste and the reusability of products and 

packaging, and to increase the reuse, recycling, and composting products and 

packaging. 

In consideration of the items discussed in the Triple Bottom Line approach, the 

Department of Engineering Services recommends that the City continues with the first 

optional two-year extension of the recycling program with Loraas Disposal Services Inc.  

In consideration of the upheaval that currently exists in the recycling markets there is a 

risk to rate payers if the City were to go back to market with a new tender for recycling 

collection.  Further, the community is very supportive of this program and in reducing 

environmental impact through waste management services.   

 

It should also be noted that under the terms of the contract, Loraas has provided notice 

and are requesting that clam shell containers labelled as #1, and film plastic (plastic bags 

and starch wrap) no longer be included in the recycling contract and program.  See 

Attachment ii.  Engineering will work with Loraas to provide public communication and 

education on this issue. 

 

The grant increase from MMSW is an additional $152,711.  In consideration of the 

significant infrastructure upgrades required within the city, City Council should consider 

how best to allocate these additional funds during budget deliberations. 

 

OPTIONS TO RECOMMENDATION 

 

1) Terminate the agreement with Loraas Disposal Services Inc. with a buy-out fee of 

$625,000 and go back to market with a tender for recycling collection. 

2) Terminate the agreement with Loraas Disposal Services Inc. with a buy-out fee of 

$625,000 and cancel the recycling collection program. 

 

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS/IMPLICATIONS 

 

There is no other considerations or implications applicable to this report. 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

Public Notice pursuant to the Public Notice Policy is not required. 

 

PRESENTATION 

 

VERBAL:  The Manager of Utilities, Department of Engineering Services, will be available 

to provide a brief verbal overview of this report.  

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

i. Recycling Collection Services Agreement  

ii. Letter from Loraas 
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REPORT APPROVAL 

 

Written by:  Darrin Stephanson, Manager of Utilities 

Reviewed by:  Tracy Wittke, Assistant City Clerk 

Approved by:  Josh Mickleborough, Director of Engineering Services 

Approved by:    Jim Puffalt, City Manager  

Approved by:    Fraser Tolmie, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be completed by the Clerk’s Department only. 

 

Presented to Regular Council or Executive Committee on _____________________________________________________. 

 

No. _________________________         Resolution No. _________________________________________________ 
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Report Approval Details 

Document Title: Recycling Collection Contract Renewal - CC-2019-

0154.docx 

Attachments: - Lorass Disposal Services Ltd. - Oct 1 2015.pdf 

- MJ Cart Contract Request_20190807163145.pdf 

Final Approval Date: Oct 7, 2019 

 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

 
Josh Mickleborough 

 
Tracy Wittke 

 
Jim Puffalt 

 
Fraser Tolmie 
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